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PROCEEDINGS RESUME ON 19 FEBRUARY 2021  

CHAIRPERSON:    Good morn ing . . .   Good a f te rnoon 

Mr  Se leka.   Good  a f te rnoon everybody.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Good a f te rnoon Cha i r.  

MS DANIELS:    Good a f te rnoon Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Good a f te rnoon Ms Dan ie ls .  

MS DANIELS:    Good a f te rnoon Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Good.   A re  we ready?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    We are  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay.  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:    I  shou ld  ind ica te  t ha t  Ms Dan ie l s  i s  

overseas.   So i t  is  morn ing  on  her  s ide .  

CHAIRPERSON:    D id  we wake he r  up  qu i te  ear ly?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I  th ink  we have Cha i r.  

MS DANIELS:    Yes,  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    [ laughs]   

ADV SELEKA SC:    [ laughs]  

CHAIRPERSON:    So you a re  no t  an  ear l y  r i ser.   So.   

[ laughs]   But  a f ter  th is ,  you can go  to  bed ear l y.  

MS DANIELS:    Yes.   Thank you Cha i rperson.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    [ laughs]   Okay a l r igh t .    

ADV SELEKA SC:    Thank you Cha i r.   Because o f  the  lapse 

o f  t ime.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    We may have to  admin is te r  
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. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  admin is te r  the  oa th  aga in .    

REGISTRAR:    P lease s ta te  your  fu l l  names fo r  the  record .  

WITNESS:    Suzanne Margare t  Dan ie ls .  

REGISTRAR:    Do you have any ob jec t ion  in  tak ing  the  

prescr ibed oath?  

WITNESS:    No.  

REGISTRAR:    Do you cons ider  the  oa th  b ind ing  on  your  

consc ience?  

WITNESS:    Yes.  10 

REGISTRAR:    Do you so lemnly  swear  tha t  the  ev idence 

you w i l l  g ive ,  w i l l  be  the  t ru th ,  the  who le  t ru th  and noth ing  

bu t  the  t ru th?   I f  so ,  p lease ra ise  your  r igh t  hand and say,  

so  he lp  me God.  

WITNESS:    So  he lp  me God.  

SUZANNE MARGARET DANIELS :   (d .s .s . )  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay thank you.   You may proceed  

Mr  Se leka.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Thank you Cha i rperson.    

CHAIRPERSON:    Wi l l  you  jus t  b r ie f l y  remind the  pub l i c  20 

what  you w i l l  be  dea l ing  or  te l l  the  pub l i c  what  we  w i l l  be  

dea l ing  w i th  today.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Thank you Cha i r.   Ms Dan ie l s ,  the  las t  
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t ime when she was here ,  she tes t i f ied  on  the  t ransact ions  

and the re  was a  coup le  o f  aspects  in  regard  to  the  

t ransact ions,  the  Tegeta  t ransact ions,  wh ich  invo lved a  

prepayment  dec is ion  o f  R 1 .6  b i l l i on .    

 She took us  th rough tha t ,  the  submiss ion  and the  

dec is ion  made in  respect  o f  tha t  aspect .   We ended up w i th  

he r,  jus t  hav ing  touched on the  guarantee.  

 That  p repayment  dec is ion  ought  to  be  conver ted  

in to  a  guarantee  on the  10 t h  o f  December  2015 .   She 

touched br ie f l y  on  tha t  and we had to  ad jou rn .  10 

 She w i l l  con t inue f rom there  Cha i rperson and  

a lso  touch on  the  prepayment  in  regard  to  the 

R 659 mi l l ion  tha t  was dec ided in  Apr i l  2016.    

 And she w i l l  show by v i r tue  o f  cor respondence 

emai ls  how par t ies  ou ts ide  o f  Eskom,  even in  respect  o f  

the  guarantee,  even in  respect  o f  the  dra f t ing  o f  the  

under l in ing  agreement  to  tha t  guarantee,  go t  invo lved in  

tha t  d ra f t ing  p rocess,  wh ich  is  what  she d id ,  a lso ,  in  

respect  o f  the  submiss ion  fo r  the  R 1 .68  b i l l i on .  

 We wi l l  then touch on the  McKinsey/Tr i l l i an  20 

mat te r  inso far  as  Ms Dan ie l s  fea tures  there .   I t  i s  no t  a  

long aspect .   Jus t  two aspects  o f  the  meet ings o f  Tr i l l i an  

where  she fea tures  Cha i r.  

 And fo r  tha t  purpose,  we wou ld  use two o f  her  

a f f idav i t s .   The one a f f idav i t  i s  a l ready in  Eskom Bund le  
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18A on page 236.   That  i s  marked Exh ib i t  U-34.1 .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  I  have got  i t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Then Ms Dan ie ls  p rov ided an a f f idav i t  

in  the  ear l y  hours  o f  th is  morn ing  Cha i rpe rson.   I t  has  

inco rpora ted  in  Eskom Bund le  8 (a ) .    

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  so  i t  i s  th is  o ther  bund le  tha t  I  have  

got  here?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Cor rec t  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay a l r igh t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    And tha t  i s  on  . . . [ in te rvenes]   10 

CHAIRPERSON:    And tha t  has go t  to  do  w i th?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    She responds to  ce r ta in  a l legat ions  

made aga ins t  he r  by  those who –  some o f  the  w i tnesses 

who have come before  the  Cha i rpe rson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m? 

ADV SELEKA SC:    And then she  g ives a  sect ion  dea l ing  

w i th  the  Tr i l l i an /  McK insey mat te r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    And tha t  i s  the  las t  par t  we w i l l  be  

address ing  w i th  her.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I  m igh t  add a lso  Cha i r.   We wi l l  touch  

on the  R 2 .1  b i l l i on  pena l t ies  bu t  very  br ie f l y  in  regard  to  

tha t .   The new a f f idav i t  i s  on  page 1079 in  Eskom Bund le  

8(a ) .  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  I  have got  i t .  

EXAMINATION BY ADVOCATE SELEKA SC :    Ms Dan ie ls ,  

do  you have the  a f f idav i t  as  we l l?  

MS DANIELS:    Yes,  I  do .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I s  you r  page re ference,  the  number ing  

the  same as I  have been ment ion ing?  

MS DANIELS:    Uhm . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC:    Eskom Bund le  8(a) .   I t  w i l l  on  page 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

MS DANIELS:    I  have jus t  go t  Eskom Bund le  8 .  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Okay.   Go to  page 1079 o f  tha t  bund le .   

I  th ink  the  e lec t ron ic  bund les  are  no t  g iv ing  a lphabet ica l  

number ings.   Page 1079.  

MS DANIELS:    I  do  no t  th ink  i t  i s  inco rpora ted  in to  th is  

bund le  Adv Se leka.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Not  on  your  e lec t ron ic  bund le?  

MS DANIELS:    No.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Okay le t  us . . .   You have . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MS DANIELS:    No,  i t  i s  no t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I t  i s  no t  incorpora ted .   Okay the  20 

pag ina t ion  –  i f  we fo l low the  pag ina t ion  a t  the  foo t  o f  the 

page on your  –  on  tha t  supp lementary  a f f idav i t .  

MS DANIELS:    What  page number  wou ld  tha t  be?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I f  you  have i t  separa te ly  i t  w i l l  be  f rom 

page 1 .  
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MS DANIELS:    Oh,  yes  I  do  have i t  separa te ly.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.   On the  cover  sheet  . . . [ in tervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l ,  Mr  Se leka .   I  wonder  whether  they 

cou ld  qu ick ly  pag ina te  i t ,  even a t  th is  s tage,  so  tha t  when 

you re fer  to  pages,  then we a l l  have the  same pag ina t ion .   

A l l  she  wou ld  need to  do  is ,  jus t  pu t  l i ke  1079 and 8 .   From 

8  one to  the  las t  page.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    On the  le f t -hand  corne r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Then when you  re fer  to  pages,  you jus t  

s t i ck  to  the  pag ina t ion .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  I  wou ld  use the  pag ina t ion  fo r  the 

purposes o f  the  record .  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    And then fo r  her  conven ience,  I  cou ld  

use the  page numbers  a t  the  foo t  o f  the  page.  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    So  I  w i l l  use  i t  a t  the  same t ime .  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:    S imul taneous ly.  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I s  tha t . . .?  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l ,  i f  you  th ink  tha t  i s  f ine ,  we  can go 

on w i th  tha t .  
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ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Le t  us  see.   Le t  us  t ry  i t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Thank you Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ms Dan ie l s ,  there  is  a  cover  sheet  

wh ich  is  on  or  page 1079,  a  cer t i f i ca te  o f  au thent ica t ion .  

MS DANIELS:    Yes,  tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wi th  tha t  a f f idav i t?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Cor rec t  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay a l r igh t .  10 

MS DANIELS:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I  jus t  w ish  you  to  p lace  i t  on  record  so  

tha t  we . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I  beg leave to  have i t  admi t ted .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay a l r igh t .   Oh,  and a lso  fo r  i t s  

admiss ion?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Cor rec t  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Jus t  fo r  the  pu rpose fo r  now.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.   When you tu rn  the  page 

Ms Dan ie ls ,  i t  i s  our  page 1080.   That  w i l l  be  the  f i rs t  page  

o f  the  a f f idav i t .  

MS DANIELS:    Yes,  tha t  i s  cor rec t .  
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ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.   The a f f idav i t  runs up  to  –  on  ou r  

s ide  i t  i s  page 1102.   On your  s ide  i t  i s  page 203.  

MS DANIELS:    That  i s  co r rec t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    A s ignatu re  appears  there .   Do you 

conf i rm tha t  to  be  your  s ignature?  

MS DANIELS:    I  con f i rm tha t  tha t  is  my s ignature .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Jus t  above s ignature  o f  deponent .   And 

the  da te  o f  the  a f f idav i t  i s  18  February  2021.  

MS DANIELS:    Yes,  tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    You conf i rm tha t .   You conf i rm  th is  to  10 

be  your  fu r ther  a f f idav i t  –  fu r ther  supp lementary  a f f i dav i t  to  

the  Commiss ion?  

MS DANIELS:    Yes,  tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Thank you.   Ja ,  I  beg leave to  have i t  

admi t ted  as  Exh ib i t  U-18.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  guess what  we  shou ld  do  is .   S ince the 

cer t i f i ca te  o f  au thent ica t ion  is  separa te ,  we shou ld  admi t  i t  

separa te ly  and g ive  i t s  own exh ib i t  number  and he r  

a f f idav i t  wh ich  you were  say ing  w i th  the . . .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Okay.   Yes,  Cha i r.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    I t  i s . . .   I  mean,  I  do  no t  know – i t  seems 

to  be  separa te  a l t hough on my re fe rence here  i t  i s  one s ide  

o f  the  same page  as  the  f i rs t  page o f  her  a f f idav i t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I t  i s  a  separa te  document .   

Cha i rperson is  co r rec t .  
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CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    However,  i t  does re la te  to  her  a f f idav i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I t  reads:   I ,  the  unders igned. . .   And the  

person ’s  name i s  there ,  o f  the  South  A f r i can Consu la te  

Genera l  in  Los Ange les .   I t  i s  cer t i f ied .    

“ I t  i s  Suzanne Margare t  Dan ie ls  o f  whose  

ident i f y  I  have jus t  sa t is f ied  myse l f  has th is  

day s igned the  a t tached document  in  my 

presence,  th is  day,  18  February  2021. ”  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  you see.   Our  normal . . .  o r  she –  o r  

the  Vice  Consu l  Genera l  has  a lso  s igned whereas 

commiss ioner  o f  oa ths .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  guess the  cer t i f i ca te  o f  au then t ica t ion  

re la tes  to  au thent ica t ing  the  ac tua l  a f f idav i t  and the  

commiss ioner  o f  oa ths ,  a t  the  end  o f  the  a f f idav i t ,  serves 

the  normal  purpose tha t  i s  cer t i f i ca tes  ends.   I t  does –  bu t  

i t  does seem to  me. . .   Do you have i t  as  on  the  same page 

as  her  f i r s t  a f f idav i t  o r  you have i t  as  a  separa te  document  20 

a l l  togethe r,  the  cer t i f i ca te  o f  au thent ica t ion?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I t  i s  p r in ted  ou t  doub le -s ided.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    So  i t  i s  on  the  f l ips ide .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  so  i t  i s  no t  par t  o f  the  a f f idav i t  
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i t se l f?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    No.  

CHAIRPERSON:    You see,  i t  i s  a  s tanda lone.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I t  i s  a  s tanda lone document .   Then th i s  

i s  the  a f f idav i t .   I  th ink  we must  g i ve  i t  i t s  own exh ib i t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Exh ib i t  number.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  th ink  you can jus t  conf i rm wi th  her,  

conf i rm the  cer t i f i ca te  o f  au thent ica t ion  w i th  he r  and then 

we can admi t  i t .  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.   Ms Dan ie l s ,  the  –  back to  the  

cover  o f  –  cover ing  sheet  wh ich  is  the  ce r t i f ica te  o f  

au thent ica t ion  in  the  a f f idav i t  you gave us  ea r ly  th is  

morn ing .   A re  you  a t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MS DANIELS:    Yes,  I  have tha t .    

ADV SELEKA SC:    On tha t  ce r t i f ica t ion  o f  au thent ica t ion .   

I  have read the  contents  thereof  to  the  record .   Do you  

conf i rm tha t  to  be  a  commiss ioner. . .   Wel l ,  in  th is  case i t  i s  

a  Vice  Consu l ,  South  A f r i can Consu la te  Genera l  in  Los  

Ange les  cer t i f y ing  the  contents  o f  your  a f f idav i t .  20 

MS DANIELS:    Yes,  tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    And who has got  the  or ig ina l  o f  the 

cer t i f i ca te  o f  au thent ica t ion?  

MS DANIELS:    I  have the  o r ig ina l  here  Mr  Cha i rman.  

CHAIRPERSON:    You have i t?   Oh,  okay a l r igh t .  
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ADV SELEKA SC:    I t  has  no t  been send th rough ye t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay a l r igh t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MS DANIELS:    And i t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    I t  i s  no t  sent  th rough . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MS DANIELS:    So . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    . . . in  the  meant ime but  you  conf i rm 

Ms Dan ie ls  tha t  th is  i s  the  cer t i f i ca te  o f  au thent ica t ion  tha t  

was s igned by  the  Vice  Consu l  in  regard  to  your  a f f i dav i t?  10 

MS DANIELS:    Yes,  Mr  Cha i rman I  had to  a t tend  there  in  

person.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MS DANIELS:    To  have i t  s igned and commiss ioned.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay a l r i gh t .   What  exh ib i t  number  must  

we g i ve  i t  Mr  Se leka?  I t  w i l l  be  separa te  f rom the  exh ib i t  

number  o f  the  a f f idav i t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.   Yes,  Cha i r.   I t  w i l l  be  U18.4 .    

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay the  cer t i f i ca te  o f  au thent ica t ion  

s igned by  the  Vice  Consu l  o f  the  South  A f r i can Consu la te  20 

Genera l  in  Los Ange ls  wh ich  appears  on  page 1079 is  

admi t ted  and w i l l  be  marked as  Exh ib i t  U18.4 .  

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHENTICATION OF DANIELS 

MARGARET DANIELS IS ADMITTED AND MARKED AS 

EXHIBIT  718.4  
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ADV SELEKA SC:    Thank you  Cha i r.   And then the  

a f f idav i t  o f  Ms Dan ie ls  wh ich  appears  –  wh ich  s ta r ts  on  

page 1080,  I  beg leave to  have tha t  admi t ted  as  Exh ib i t  

U18.5 .  

CHAIRPERSON:    And she has conf i rmed,  i f  I  remember.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    She has Cha i r,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON:    The a f f idav i t  o f  Ms Suzanne Margare t  

Dan ie ls  wh ich  s ta r ts  a t  page 1080 i s  admi t ted  as  an  exh ib i t  

and w i l l  be  marked as  Exh ib i t  U18.5 .  

AFFIDAVIT  OF SUZANNE MARGARET DANIELS IS  10 

ADMITTED AND MARKED AS EXHIBIT  U18.5  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Thank you Cha i r.   Ms Dan ie l s ,  sha l l  we  

then p roceed w i th  your  tes t imony?  And you cou ld  have in  

f ron t  o f  you the  a f f idav i t ,  your  a f f idav i t  on  the  t ransact ions  

wh ich  is  in  Eskom Bund le  18 ,  page 236.    

MS DANIELS:    What  numbers  are  you us ing  Mr  Se leka,  

the  red  o r  the  b lack  ones?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    The b lack ,  the  b lack  numbers .  

MS DANIELS:    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]   

ADV SELEKA SC:    A re  you there?   I  w i l l  no t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   20 

MS DANIELS:    I  am there .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Okay.   Ms Dan ie ls ,  the  l as t  t ime you  

tes t i f ied  on  how the  board ’s  dec is ion  to  make a  prepayment  

o f  R 1 .6  b i l l i on  about ,  you had been ins t ruc ted  by  Mr Koko,  

as  you sa id ,  to  do  –  to  d ra f t  the  submiss ion .   That  
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submiss ion  was p roceeded by  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MS DANIELS:    That  i s  co r rec t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Go ahead.  

MS DANIELS:    That  i s  co r rec t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    That  submiss ion  was preceded  by  a  

le t te r  wh ich  you had a lso  been asked by  Mr  Koko to  d ra f t  

and have i t  addressed to  the  DMR.   Do you reca l l?  

MS DANIELS:    Yes,  tha t  i s  cor rec t .    

ADV SELEKA SC:    That  le t te r  fo rmed par t  o f  the 

submiss ion  tha t  was submi t ted  to  the  board  in  o rder  to  10 

mot iva te  fo r  the  board ’s  reso lu t ion  on  the  R 1 .6  b i l l i on  by  

way o f  a  Round-rob in .   Remember?  

MS DANIELS:    That  i s  co r rec t .   Yes,  tha t  i s  cor rec t .    

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja .   And you took us  th rough the  

dra f t ing  o f  tha t  submiss ion  wh ich  went  to  Mr  Er ic  Wood and  

u l t imate ly  to  Bus inessman.  

MS DANIELS:    Yes,  tha t  i s  cor rec t .    

ADV SELEKA SC:    Now,  tha t  Round- rob in  dec i s ion  o f  the 

board  was made  on the  9 t h  o f  December  2015.   On the  

10 t h  o f  December,  we see new deve lopments  i n  regard  to  20 

tha t  dec is ion  o f  the  board .   And tha t  new deve lopment  i s  a  

convers ion ,  fo r  a  lack  o f  a  be t te r  word ,  o f  the  board  

dec is ion  fo r  mak ing  the  cash payment  in to  a  guarantee.   

Do you remember  tha t?  

MS DANIELS:    Yes.  
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ADV SELEKA SC:    Now we have prov ided w i th  Mr  Ano j  

S ingh ’s  a f f idav i t .   In  h is  a f f idav i t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MS DANIELS:    Yes,  you have.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.   In  h is  a f f idav i t ,  Mr  Ano j  S ingh  

makes an a l legat ion  tha t ,  to  the  e f fec t  tha t  you came up 

w i th  the  idea fo r  tha t  guarantee.   What  i s  your  response? 

MS DANIELS:    No,  tha t  i s  incor rec t  Mr  Cha i rperson.   I  am 

not  qu i te  sure  how the  guarantee d iscuss ion  came about  

bu t  there  was a  memorandum f rom the  Eskom Treasure r,  

Ms Caro l ine  H ind ley  on  the  guarantee wh ich  Mr  S ingh 10 

d iscussed w i th  me.    

 In  i t  she  se ts  ou t  the  advantages  o f  no t  pay ing  

ou t  the  cash and l im i t ing  the  r i sk  to  Eskom.   I t  was on tha t  

bas is  tha t  he  then asked me is  i t  poss ib le  to  do  tha t  and I  

adv ised tha t  yes  i t  i s  in  te rms o f  the  reso lu t ion  tha t  was  

prov ided by  the  board .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Now can you te l l  the  Cha i rperson,  why 

d id  you  ho ld  the  v iew tha t  i t  was  poss ib le  fo r  tha t  board  

dec is ion  to  be  conver ted  in to  a  guarantee?  

MS DANIELS:    Mr  Cha i rman,  in  the  reso lu t ion  there  is  a  20 

tax  a l l  fa res .   I  am jus t  s t rugg l ing  to  ge t  to  the  submiss ion .    

ADV SELEKA SC:    I s  tha t  the  R 1 .6  b i l l i on  submiss ion?  

MS DANIELS:    The R 1 .68  b i l l i on  so  tha t  I  can read  i t .    

ADV SELEKA SC:    You have the  –  i f  you  have the  Tegeta  

re ference.  
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MS DANIELS:    I  am a t  Eskom Bund le  18 .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    That  i s  r igh t .  

MS DANIELS:    I s  tha t  the  co r rec t  one?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  tha t  i s  the  co r rec t  one.  

MS DANIELS:    Uhm . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC:    The submiss ion  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MS DANIELS:    Can you jus t  he lp  me wi th . . .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    You want  the  one to  the  board  or  to  the  

IFC?  

MS DANIELS:    To  the  board  wou ld  be  the  one tha t  I  wou ld  10 

re ference.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Go to  page . . .   Ja ,  do  you want  the  

submiss ion  or  the  reso lu t ion  Ms Dan ie ls?  

MS DANIELS:    The reso lu t ion  wou ld  be  f ine  Mr  Se leka.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Okay the  board  reso lu t ion  then is  on  

page 580.    

MS DANIELS:    And th is  i s  Bund le  18?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Cor rec t .   Bund le  18 ,  yes .  

MS DANIELS:    Okay I  am a lmost  there .   Okay.   The 

reso lu t ion  tha t  I  –  the  par t  o f  the  reso lu t ion  tha t  I  re l ied  on  20 

was the  one tha t  sa id :    

“The Ch ie f  F inanc ia l  Off i ce r  i s  hereby 

author ised to  take  a l l  the  necessary  s teps to  

g ive  e f fec t  to  the  vo te(?)  inc lud ing  the  s ign ing  

o f  any consensus or  any documenta t ion  
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necessary  or  re la ted  there to . ”  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Okay so  fo r  the  pu rpose o f  the  record .   

You a re  on  page 580 o f  Eskom Bund le  18?  A re  you  

read ing  f rom paragraph 2 .1 .4?  

MS DANIELS:    Yes,  tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.   But  then,  you wou ld  have seen  

Mr  Koko ’s  a f f idav i t  where  he  says the  submiss ion  he  made 

and p repared to  the  board  d id  no t  inco rpora te  a  guarantee.   

So the  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MS DANIELS:    No,  i t  d id  no t .  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Okay.   Sor ry,  can  you see me when I  

speak?  

MS DANIELS:    I  can  see you now,  yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.   Okay what  d id  you want  to  

conf i rm?  

MS DANIELS:    No,  i t  d id  no t  –  i t  d id  no t  spec i f i ca l l y  

ment ion  a  guaran tee.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.   So tha t  p rov is ion  2 .1 .4  you have 

jus t  read,  wou ld  have re la ted  to  necessary  s teps in  re la t ion  

to  the  board  dec i s ion  fo r  a  p repayment?  20 

MS DANIELS:    That  i s  co r rec t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    We heard  f rom Ms Na idoo,  Vi rosh in i  

Na idoo. . .   Oh,  no  tha t  i s  in  respect  o f  the  o ther  two  

payments .   Oh,  yes .   That  Ms Cass im took par t  in  the  IFC 

meet ing ,  te leconference o f  the  board  on  the 
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9 t h  o f  December  2015.    

MS DANIELS:    Yes,  tha t  i s  cor rec t  Mr  Cha i rman.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Now d id  you and h im not  d iscuss the  

poss ib i l i t y  o f  tak ing  the  mat te r  back to  the  board  i f  you  

were  go ing  to  conver t  a  board  dec is ion  in to  someth ing  

e lse ,  o ther  than what  the  board  had dec ided?  

MS DANIELS:    Mr  Cha i rman,  no t  a t  tha t  s tage.   On the  9 t h ,  

there  was no ta lk  o f  a  guarantee.   I t  was pure ly  a  

prepayment  to  the  proposed purchaser  o f  Opt imum.   On the  

–  I  th ink  i t  was on the  morn ing  o f  the  10 t h ,  the  ema i l  f rom 10 

the  ABSA person came th rough  and tha t  was the  f i rs t  

ind ica t ion  o f  a  guarantee cons idera t ion .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Wel l ,  in  fac t ,  there  was an emai l  much  

ear l ie r  than tha t  Ms Dan ie l s .   Remember  the  emai l  that  

Mr  Koko rece ives  f rom in fopor ta l?   And he fo rwards tha t  

emai l  to  you and on the  bas i s  o f  tha t  emai l  you gave 

ins t ruc t ions to  CDH.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  am sor ry  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MS DANIELS:    A re  you re fe r r ing  to  the  emai l  o f  Mr  Koko? 

CHAIRPERSON:    I  am sor ry  Mr  Se leka and Ms Dan ie ls .   20 

P lease do not  fo rge t  your  quest ion .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And p lease do  not  fo rge t  you r  answer  

Ms Dan ie ls .  

MS DANIELS:    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]   
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CHAIRPERSON:    I  jus t  want  to  go  back to  the  reso lu t ion .   

The –  because you are  g iv ing  ev idence Ms Dan ie ls  to  say  

C lause 2 .1 .4  o f  the  Reso lu t ion  appear ing  a t  page 580,  

Bund le  18  gave author i t y  fo r  the  issu ing  o f  a  guaran tee,  i s  

tha t  r igh t?  

MS DANIELS:    That  i s  co r rec t ,  Mr  Cha i rman.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   Now I  jus t  want  us  to  exp lore  tha t  

a  l i t t le  b i t  be fore  we go fo rward .   There  is  no  re fe rence in  

the  reso lu t ion  to  a  guarantee,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MS DANIELS:    That  i s  co r rec t .  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    So  to  the  ex ten t  tha t  one wou ld  say tha t  

c lause 2 .1 .4  au thor i ses  the  issu ing  o f  a  guarantee tha t  

wou ld  have to  be  on  the  bas is  t ha t  c lause 2 .1 .4  imp l ies  

such author i t y  o r  i s  w ide  enough to  inc lude a  guaran tee,  i s  

tha t  r igh t?  

MS DANIELS:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  Mr  Cha i rman,  my  v iew a t  

the  t ime tha t  i t  was w ide  enough to  inc lude the  guarantees  

based on the  fac t  tha t  the  mot iva t ion  se t  ou t  by  the  Eskom 

Treasurer  Ms Henry  was to  m i t iga te  the  r i sk  o f  pay ing  ou t  

tha t  amount  o f  cash.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  I  wou ld  l i ke  us  to  jus t  exp lore  tha t  

because I  want  to  make sure  I  understand your  reason ing  

cor rec t l y.   The  reso lu t ion  tha t  i s  sa id  to  have been  

requ i red ,  wh ich  I  take  is  the  reso lu t ion  tha t  was g iven  

says:  
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“ I t  i s  hereby reso lved tha t  the  request  f rom the  

Depar tment  o f  Minera l  Resources is  he reby noted. ”  

That  does not  seem to  say much in  te rms o f  what  we are  

look ing  fo r.   In  2 .1 .2 :  

“The Group Ch ie f  Execut ive  together  w i th  the  Group  

Execut ive  fo r  Genera t ion  and  Ch ie f  F inanc ia l  

Off i cer  a re  hereby author i sed to  negot ia te  and 

conc lude a  pre-purchase o f  coa l  agreement  w i th  the  

proposed owners  o f  OCM.  

(a )  2 .1 .3 :  10 

“Th is  agreement  sha l l  be  sub jec t  to  the  necessary  

regu la tory  approva ls  hav ing  been obta ined by  

Eskom and the  supp l ie r  respect ive ly  as  and when  

necessary. ”  

That  m ight  no t  mean much.   So  i t  seems tha t  –  because 

2 .1 .4  has go t  to  be  read w i th  c lause 2 .1 .2  to  see whether  i t  

p roduces tha t  mean ing  but  I  th ink  you a l so  re fer red  to  the  

f i rs t  paragraph wh ich  says:  

1 .  “Hav ing  had due regard  to  a l l  the  fo l low ing 

fac tors  Eskom faces a  supp ly  r i sk  o f  coa l  to  the  20 

Hendr ina  power  s ta t ion  o f  5 .5Mtpa by  OCM as a  

resu l t  o f  bus iness  rescue proceed ings. ”  

2 .  “There  i s  po ten t i a l  p roposa l  f rom the  bus iness  

rescue prac t i t ioners  suppor ted  by  the  Depar tment  

o f  Minera l  Resources.  
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3 .  The so lu t ion  re la tes  to  a  pre-pu rchase o f  coa l  to  

the  va lue  o f  R1.68 b i l l i on  wh ich  m i t iga tes  supp ly  

r i sk  fo r  the  fund ing  o f  the  pre-pu rchase w i l l  be  

made by  an  inventory  work ing  cap i ta l  reduct ion  

o f  54  days to  approx imate l y  40  days.   The 

proposa l  w i l l  resu l t  in  a  ne t  p resen t  va lue  benef i t  

to  Eskom of  R238,9  m i l l ion .   In  conc lus ion  th is  

p roposa l  p rov ides  much needed coa l  fo r  bus iness 

opera t ions and mi t iga tes  the  supp ly  r i sk  and  

prov ides f inanc ia l  benef i t  fo r  Eskom. ”  10 

As I  read th is ,  i t  seems to  me,  and I  wou ld  l ike  your  

comment ,  tha t  the  s teps wh ich  the  Ch ie f  F inanc ia l  Of f i cer  

i s  au thor i sed to  take  under  c lause  2 .1 .4  a re  s teps tha t  a re  

meant  to  ensure  tha t  the  conc lus ion  o f  the  pre -purchase o f  

coa l  agreement  re fe r red  to  in  2 .1 .2  happens.   What  do  you  

say to  tha t?   Do you th ink  the  same or  do  you th ink  

d i f fe ren t ly?  

MS DANIELS:    Yes,  Mr  Cha i r,  and  one o f  those s teps was  

to  lay  ou t  the  amount  o r  pay the  amount  o f  R1.68 b i l l i on  in  

cash to  the  supp l ie r.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t  tha t  – bu t  was tha t  go ing  to  p recede  

the  conc lus ion  o f  the  coa l  ag reement  o r  was i t  go ing  to  

come a f te r?  

MS DANIELS:    I t  was go ing  to  come a f te r  the  conc lus ion  

o f  the  coa l  agreement .  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  so  i f  i t  was go ing  to  …[ in tervenes]  

MS DANIELS:    I t  was ac tua l l y  –  i f  you look –  i f  you… 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  go  ahead?  

MS DANIELS:    I f  you  look a t  the  coa l  ag reement  i t  i s  

ac tua l l y  in  there  upon s ignature  tha t  the  supp l ie r  wou ld  be  

pa id  w i th  the  –  pa id  the  amount  o f  1 .68  b i l l i on .  

CHAIRPERSON :    A re  you say ing  in  te rms  o f  the  

agreement  tha t  was conc luded the re  was prov i s ion  tha t  the 

supp l ie r  wou ld  be  pa id  upon s ignature?  

MS DANIELS:    That  i s  how I  reca l l  i t ,  Mr  Cha i r.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Where  do  we f ind  tha t  agreement?   I  jus t  

want  to  qu ick ly  have a  look a t  i t .  

MR SELEKA SC :     The under ly ing  agreement ,  Cha i r,  i s  on  

page 442.7 ,  the  s igned copy o f  tha t  agreement .   442.7 .  

CHAIRPERSON :    442.7?  

MR SELEKA SC :   Po in t  7 ,  tha t  i s  on  bund le  18 .  

CHAIRPERSON :    A re  you go ing  there ,  Ms Dan ie ls?  

MS DANIELS:    Yes,  I  am,  Mr  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Do you reca l l  the  c lause tha t  says what  

you are  ta l k ing  about .  20 

MS DANIELS:    Sorry,  Mr  Cha i r,  I  los t  the  sound the re .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  I  see  c lause 6 .1  o f  the  agreement  

a t  page 442.8 .   Ms Dan ie l s ,  can you hear  me now? 

MS DANIELS:    Yes,  I  can hear  you now.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  c lause 6 .1  may be the  c lause you are 
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ta lk ing  about ,  I  am not  sure ,  i t  says :  

“Eskom wi l l  make  an advanced payment  to  OCM to  

pre -purchase cruc ia l  coa l  supp ly  in  te rms o f  the  

ex i s t ing  coa l  supp ly  agreement  in  the  amount  o f  

1 .68  b i l l i on  payment  on  fu l f i lment  o f  the  cond i t ions  

precedent  se t  ou t  in  c lause 5 .1 . ”  

I s  tha t  what  you are  ta lk ing  about? 

MS DANIELS:    That  i s  what  I  am ta lk ing  about .  

CHAIRPERSON :    6 .2  then says:  

“Pursuant  to  c lause 6 .1  Eskom wi l l  i ssue a  bank 10 

guarantee in  favour  o f  Tegeta  in  the  amount  o f  

R1,680 b i l l i on ,  tha t  i s  guarantee amount ,  to  secure  

the  payment  o f  the  advance payment .   I t  i s  recorded  

tha t  the  issue o f  the  guarantee w i l l  be  cond i t iona l  

on  the  s im i la r  te rms as  se t  ou t  in  c lause 5  he reof . ”  

I s  tha t  what  you are  ta lk ing  about  when you sa id  

…[ in tervenes]     

MS DANIELS:    Yes,  Mr  Cha i rman.  

CHAIRPERSON :    So  but  now – okay,  what  the  reso lu t ion  

sa id  in  2 .1 .2  i t  tha t :  20 

“The Group Ch ie f  Execut ive  Off i cer  together  w i th  

Group Execut ive  fo r  Genera t ion  and Ch ie f  F inanc ia l  

Off i ce r,  I  hereby author i se  to  negot ia te  and 

conc lude a  pre-purchase o f  coa l  agreement  w i th  the  

proposed owners  o f  OCM.”  
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Now the  reso lu t ion  does not  say  what  te rms and cond i t ions  

these th ree  o f f i c i a ls  o f  Eskom shou ld  b ind  Eskom to ,  i s  tha t  

r igh t?  

MS DANIELS:    That  i s  co r rec t ,  Mr  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I t  s imp ly  says they were  be ing  

author ised to  negot ia te  and conc lude a  pre-purchase o f  

coa l  agreement  so  i t  d id  no t  requ i re  them to  come back to  

the  board  and  say are  these te rms and cond i t ions  

acceptab le ,  can we go ahead and  conc lude an agreement ,  

i s  tha t  r igh t?  10 

MS DANIELS:    That  i s  cor rec t  i t  was a  very  open – what  i s  

the  word ,  a  b lanket  au thor i t y  to  conc lude the  agreement .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  the  th ree  o f f i c ia ls  were  bas i ca l l y  

even a  b lank cheque to  agree  to  whatever  te rms and  

cond i t ions  they thought  were  acceptab le  w i thout  hav ing  to  

go  back to  the  board ,  i s  tha t  r igh t?  

MS DANIELS:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  usua l l y  –  tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  

Mr  Cha i rman,  tha t  was my unders tand ing  because when we 

do negot ia te  and  conc lude the re  i s  no  need to  go  back to  

the  board ,  you know,  fo r  permiss ion  to  conc lude.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    I  accept  tha t  i f  the  board  g i ves  you the  

au thor i t y  to  negot ia te  and conc lude an agreement ,  you 

have not  ob l iga t ion  to  go  back to  t he  board ,  tha t  wou ld  be  I  

guess on  the  bas is  tha t  the  board  has conf idence tha t  the  

th ree  o f f i c ia l s  knew what  they were  do ing  and tha t  they 
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wou ld  were  do ing  and tha t  they  wou ld  ac t  in  the  best  

in te res t  o f  Eskom,  I  wou ld  imag ine .   Would  you agree tha t  

such a  bank cheque …[ in tervenes]  

MS DANIELS:    Yes,  I  agree w i th  tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    …be g i ven  on tha t  unders tand ing ,  

genera l l y  speak ing .  

MS DANIELS:    Yes,  in  genera l ,  Mr  Cha i r,  tha t  wou ld  be  

the  unders tand ing .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   And then what  they then wen t  on  to  

do ,  the  th ree  o f f i c ia ls ,  I  assume,  was to  go  and conc lude 10 

an agreement  wh ich  sa id  they shou ld  –  Eskom shou ld  i ssue 

a  guarantee,  tha t  i s  c lause 6 .2 ,  I  th ink ,  tha t  we read.  

MS DANIELS:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    And i t  may we l l  be  tha t  once the  board  

had g iven them tha t  w ide  autho r i t y  tha t  the  board  shou ld  

no t  compla in  i f  they  ac ted  –  they  issued a  guaran tee but  

the  reso lu t ion ,  by  the  mere  fac t  tha t  i t  au thor ised the  th ree  

o f f i c ia ls  to  conc lude a  pre -purchase o f  coa l  ag reement  

wh ich  I  unders tand to  be  a  p repayment ,  d id  tha t  no t  

necessar i l y  imp ly  tha t  the  ag reement  tha t  the  th ree  20 

o f f i c ia ls  were  au thor ised to  conc lude was an agreement  

tha t  a l lowed a  prepayment ,  a  payment  fo r  coa l  be fore  coa l  

was de l i vered.  

MS DANIELS:    Yes,  Mr  Cha i r,  i t  in  e f fec t  was the  payment  

o f  cash up f ron t ,  up f ron t  cash o f  1 .68  b i l l i on .  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MS DANIELS:    To the  supp l ie r.   I f  you  s t r ip  away  a l l  the  

lega l i t ies .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  o f  what  i t  was.  

MS DANIELS:    I  mean,  no t  the  lega l i t ies ,  I  mean,  you 

know,  the  word ing .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MS DANIELS:    What  i t  e ffec t i ve l y  meant  i s  tha t  Eskom –  

tha t  the  board  au thor i sed upf ron t  cash payment  o f  1 .68  

b i l l i on .  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes and there fore ,  the  issu ing  o f  a  

guarantee in  favour  o f  Tegeta  in  c i rcumstances,  i f  th is  

in te rpre ta t ion  i s  cor rec t ,  in  c i r cumstances  where  the  

reso lu t ion  au tho r ised in  e f fec t  the  payment  o f  cash,  the  

payment  to  be  made was no  worse  than what  was  

author ised and ac tua l l y  –  I  am not  sure ,  i t  m igh t  have been 

–  i f  they  had taken cash and g iven i t  to  Tegeta  to  th is  

amount  they wou ld  have ac ted  w i th in  the  reso lu t ion ,  i s  tha t  

cor rec t?  

MS DANIELS:    Wel l ,  Mr  Cha i r,  tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  and tha t  i s  20 

why,  you know,  the  issu ing  o f  the  guarantee,  as  s t range as  

i t  may seem,  was  ac tua l l y  a  be t te r  r i sk  m i t iga t ion  fac tor  fo r  

Eskom because can you imag ine  had we pa id  the  money in  

cash over  to  the  supp l ie r,  there  wou ld  have been  greate r  

i ssues.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MS DANIELS:    So i t  was fo r  tha t  reason tha t ,  you  know,  I  

–  when Ms Henry  –  she put  i t  in  a  memorandum and you 

w i l l  see  f rom her  memorandum tha t  she ac tua l l y  i t  i s  be t te r  

fo r  Eskom and I  suppor ted  tha t  w i th in  the  ambi t  o f  what  

was prov ided because i t  was a  be t te r  op t ion  fo r  Eskom to  

ho ld  on  to  the  cash than to  g ive  i t  to  a  supp l ie r  because we 

wou ld  have g iven  12 months  o f  cash ac tua l l y.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I ssu ing  the  guarantee as  opposed to  

pay ing  cash cer ta in ly  d id  no t  pu t  Eskom in  a  worse  pos i t ion  10 

than Eskom wou ld  have been i f  cash had been  pa id  in  

advance.  

MS DANIELS:    That  i s  cor rec t  and tha t  was the  reason ing  

tha t  we adopted.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Mr  Se leka?  

MR SELEKA SC :     Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  wanted to  jus t  exp lore  th is .  

MR SELEKA SC :   Yes,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    You are  f ree  to  exp lo re  i t  fu r ther  and 

fee l  f ree  to  ind ica te  anyth ing  tha t  m ight  ind i ca te  a  d i f fe ren t  20 

in te rpre ta t ion  o r  unders tand ing .  

MR SELEKA SC :   Yes.   Ja ,  no ,  tha t  i s  a l r igh t ,  Cha i r.   Ms  

Dan ie ls ,  le t  us  see th is  because,  you see,  we need to  jus t  

ge t  the  fac ts  r igh t .   When Tegeta  was conc lud ing  a  sa le  

agreement  w i th  Oakbay OCH,  the  bus iness  rescue 
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p rac t i t ioner  says  in  h is  a f f idav i t ,  tha t  i s  Mr  Marsden,  tha t  

the  consor t ium o f  banks requ i red  Tegeta  to  show tha t  i t  has  

su f f i c ien t  funds to  do  the  dea l ,  to  pay the  2 .1  b i l l i on  

purchase pr i ce .   That  i s  on  the  one hand.  

 Now Tegeta  seems to  have not  had –  and I  say  

seems,  you can  comment  on  tha t ,  no t  to  have had the  

funds requ i red .   What  then happens is ,  ea r ly  on  the  10  

December  2015 and th i s  i s  immedia te l y  a f te r  m idn igh t ,  

Cha i rperson,  you see tha t  emai l  tha t  comes  f rom a  

bus inessman,  i s  sent  to  Mr  Koko and i t  se t s  ou t  what  10 

essent ia l l y  became the  te rms o f  a  guarantee to  be  issued 

by  Eskom in  favour  o f  Tegeta .   

 So the  memorandum and what  happens the reaf te r  i s  

p receded by  tha t  communica t ion  wh ich  is  fo rwarded to  you 

by  Mr  Koko on the  bas is  o f  wh ich  ins t ruc t ions are  g iven to  

CDH.    

So comment  on  th is  because based on those fac ts  i t  

wou ld  seem tha t  even the  idea o f  a  guarantee d id  no t  

o r ig ina te  f rom Eskom’s  o f f i c ia ls ,  i t  seems to  have come 

f rom outs ide  o f  Eskom in  order  t o  do  what  p resumably  Mr  20 

Marsden i s  say ing ,  Tegeta  needed  to  demonst ra te  t ha t  they 

have su f f i c ien t  funds to  do  the  purchase o f  OCH.   Your  

comment  on  tha t?  

MS DANIELS:    Mr Cha i rman,  based on the  communica t ion ,  

yes ,  i t  d id  come f rom outs ide  bu t  I  th ink  in  our  execut ion  i t  
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was bet te r  fo r  Eskom to  i ssue the  guarantee.   I  jus t  cannot  

remember  the  t im ing ,  Mr  Se leka,  i f  you  can jus t  show me 

the  emai l .  

MR SELEKA SC :   Yes.  

MS DANIELS:    I  th ink  i t  came on  the  morn ing  o f  the  10 t h  

as  we l l .  

MR SELEKA SC :   Yes,  I  am go ing  to  g i ve  you tha t  page 

re ference,  tha t  i s  page 724 o f  Eskom bund le  18 .  

CHAIRPERSON :    724?  

MR SELEKA SC :   724,  Cha i rperson.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    No but  th is  one cannot  have  

…[ in tervenes]  

MR SELEKA SC :   Bund le  18 ,  18A.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Bund le  18  cannot  go  to  7  someth ing ,  i t  

goes up to  597,  b lack  numbers .  

MR SELEKA SC :   The b lack  numbers?  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m,  my one.  

MR SELEKA SC :   18A?  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  i t  i s  18A.  

MR SELEKA SC :   You are  the re ,  Cha i rperson?  Okay.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  I  am not  on  the  page you are  ta lk ing  

about ,  I  am say ing  I  have got  bund le  18A but  i t  does  not  go  

to  page 700 and someth ing ,  the  las t  page is  597.  

MR SELEKA SC :   Oh.   Yes,  i t  i s  in  –  my jun io r  says i t  i s  

18B,  Cha i r,  sor ry.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  okay.  

MR SELEKA SC :   724,  where  i t  i s  the  same emai l  on  723.   

Ms Dan ie ls ,  a re  you there?  

MS DANIELS:    Yes,  I  am there .  

MR SELEKA SC :   Yes,  so  the  emai l ,  the  one be low f rom 

bus inessman,  da ted  2015.12.10 a t  00 .15 ,  to  Matshe la  

2010,  the  sub jec t  i s  Two Pager :  

“Two Pager  be tween Tegeta  and Eskom,  Sa l ien t  

Facts .   Eskom wi l l  p rov ide  bank guarantee  

…[ in tervenes]  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Sa l ien t  po in ts .  

MR SELEKA SC :   Sa l ien t  po in ts .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR SELEKA SC :   I  beg your  pa rdon,  Cha i r,  I  beg your  

pardon.  

CHAIRPERSON :    To  the  ex ten t  tha t  i t  makes a  d i f fe rence 

but  in  te rms o f  what  i s  wr i t ten  here .  

MR SELEKA SC :   Sa l ien t  po in ts .  

“Eskom wi l l  p rov ide  bank guarantee fo r  1 .68  

b i l l i on . ”  20 

Cha i rperson,  le t  me acce le ra te  th i s  because i f  you tu rn  the  

page,  Ms Dan ie ls ,  when you go to  the  next  page,  wh ich  is  

page 725,  i t  i s  Ms Dan ie l s ’ emai l  to  Mr  R ishaban Mood ley  

o f  CDH.   That  i s  on  the  10 t h  aga in  o f  December  2015 but  

th is  t ime i t  i s  a t  8 .42  and Ms Dan ie ls  says:  
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“P lease ca l l  me,  I  need your  ass is tance in  d ra f t ing  

th is  agreement .   Urgent  t ime pressure ,  I  need the  

dra f t  by  12 .00. ”  

Then Cha i rperson ,  the  two pager  i s  on  the  next  page  wh ich 

is  page 726.   Ms Dan ie ls ,  you a re  fo l low ing,  hey?  

MS DANIELS:    Yes,  I  am fo l low ing ,  Mr  Cha i rman.  

MR SELEKA SC :   Yes.   Then the re  is  the  two pager,  two  

pager  be tween Tegeta  and Eskom Sa l ien t  Po in ts  and we 

can compare  po in t  fo r  po in t ,  Cha i r,  what  you see  in  the  

emai l  wh ich  goes  to  Mr  Koko and  th is  two pager  wh ich  is  10 

sent  to  the  a t to rneys.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  I  wro te  here  prev ious l y  when one o f  

the  w i tnesses was g iv ing  ev idence ,  compare  th is  document  

w i th  the  one a t  page 724.   I  th ink  we compared i t  on  tha t  

occas ion .  

MR SELEKA SC :     That  i s  cor rec t ,  tha t  was Ms Dan ie ls ,  

Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR SELEKA SC :   Yes.  

MS DANIELS:    Yes.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Remember  tha t ,  Mr  Se leka,  the  po in t  

wh ich  I  wanted to  c la r i f y  w i th  Ms Dan ie l s  was s imp ly  about  

whethe r  the  issu ing  o f  the  guarantee was autho r ised by  the  

reso lu t ion  and no th ing  e lse .  

MR SELEKA SC :     Yes.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    So  the  quest ion  o f  who the  idea o f  

guarantee came f rom.  

MR SELEKA SC :   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Obv ious l y  tha t  i s  separa te  bu t  i t  was 

s imp ly  the  quest ion  o f  whether  the  th ree  o f f i c ia ls  and Ms  

Dan ie ls  cou ld  say  tha t  the  issu ing  o f  a  guarantee fe l l  w i th in  

the  au thor isa t ion  in  the  reso lu t ion .  

MR SELEKA SC :   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    So  I  jus t  want  to  make sure .   Obv ious l y  

a t  some s tage you w i l l  ind ica te  what  your  th ink ing  is  bu t  10 

you can go ahead.   So I  th ink  she –  Ms Dan ie ls  conf i rms 

tha t  the  idea o f  a  guarantee came f rom outs ide  o f  Eskom.  

MR SELEKA SC :     That  i s  r igh t ,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja  and we can  see tha t  the  document  

she a t taches to  her  emai l ,  wh ich  is  the  emai l  a t  page 725 

and the  a t tachment  i s  a t  726 ,  we can see tha t  the  

a t tachment  inso far  as  i t  re la tes  to  the  guarantee tha t  

[ ind is t inc t ]  27 .09  is  the  same as the  document  a t  page 724.   

I f  there  are  any d i f fe rences they w i l l  be  m inor.  

MR SELEKA SC :   Cor rec t ,  Cha i r,  cor rec t ,  Cha i r.   Ms 20 

Dan ie ls ,  yes ,  jus t  to  c la r i f y  and  maybe make c lear  the  

response to  the  Cha i rperson ’s  quest ion ,  whether  on  the  

te rms o f  the  reso lu t ion  o f  the  board  fo r  the  prepayment  o f  

R1.6  b i l l i on  cou ld  one re l y  on  those te rms to  make a  

conc lus ion  tha t  those te rms a lso  au thor ised the  CFO,  Mr  
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Ano j  S ingh to  i ssue a  guarantee in  favour  o f  Tege ta .   Mr  

Koko says tha t  submiss ion  d id  no t  incorpora te  a  p roposa l  

regard ing  a  guarantee.    

The board  i s  a lso  surpr i sed tha t  there  was a  

guarantee issued  the  day a f te r  they made tha t  dec i s ion .   

They say they d id  no t  au thor i se  a  guarantee.    

I  know you have  a l ready sa id  tha t  you re l ied  on  

paragraph 2 .1 .4  o f  the  reso lu t i on  bu t  s t r i c t l y  speak ing ,  

what  wou ld  be  your  answer  to  the  Cha i rperson whether  tha t  

re l iance can be  substant ia ted  by  the  prov i s ions  o f  the 10 

reso lu t ion .   Whe ther  you look a t  i t  then or  now you can  

make the  d i s t inc t ion  is  up  to  you.  

MS DANIELS:    Ja,  I  am go ing  to  look  a t  i t  then answer  the  

aspects  o f  your  quest ion  in  the  fo l low ing manner  and te l l  

me i f  I  am in te rpre t ing  cor rec t l y.    

 Number  one,  my ins t ruc t ions  regard ing  the  

guarantee came f rom Mr  Koko so  fo r  Mr  Koko to  say tha t  

he  does not  know about  the  guarantee,  I  mean,  i t  i s  c lear  

f rom the  ev idence tha t  he  fo rwarded the  emai l  to  me.   We 

had a  d iscuss ion  and tha t  i s  how I  ins t ruc ted  CDH on the  20 

mat te r.  

MR SELEKA SC :   Ja ,  can I ,  sor ry  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MS DANIELS:    Second . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC:    Sor ry  can I  jus t ,  he  does not  

necessar i l y  say  he  does not  know about  the  guaran tee but  
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what  I  am say ing  to  you is  he  says the  submiss ion  d id  no t  

inco rpora te  a  recommendat ion  fo r  a  guarantee,  tha t  i s  a l l  I  

was say ing .  

MS DANIELS:    That  i s ,  tha t  i s  –  oh  okay,  tha t  i s  co r rec t  in  

te rms o f  the  guarantee was not  spec i f ied  as  an  ins t rument ,  

okay.    However,  what  the  Board  d id  au tho r ise  was the  

up f ron t  payment  o f  cash,  the  amount  o f  R1.68b i l l i on  and i t  

was in  tha t  contex t  tha t  we looked  a t  the  r i sk ,  to  Eskom,  I  

cannot  remember  what ,  I  jus t  los t  my thought .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l  the  quest ion  I  am not  sure  tha t  i t  10 

went  beyond tha t .   You may,  in  dea l ing  w i th  i t  Mr  Se leka 

the  quest ion  o f  whether  i ssu ing  o f  a  guarantee was  

author ised fo r  purposes o f  ass is t ing  me because Mr  

S ingh 's  p resence there  does seem to  me tha t  the  

reso lu t ion  was w ide  enough.   

But  i t  may be tha t  there  is  someth ing  I  am miss ing  

tha t  you might  be  ab le  to  po in t  ou t .   I t  seems to  me tha t  

th is  cou ld  be  compared to  a  s i tua t ion  where  I  au thor ise  you  

to  pay somebody f rom my money in  cash R100,00 and  

ins tead o f  pay ing  them in  cash you issue a  cheque .   How 20 

can I  compla in ,  un less  tha t  o ther  person compla ins  bu t  the 

agreement  was cash,  so  by  you g iv ing  me a  cheque but  I  

do  no t  see how I  can compla in ,  i f  i t  does not  make a  

d i f fe rence to  the  o ther  person tha t  you have g iven a  

cheque,  i f  they  are  happy w i th  a  cheque.  
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ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  I  hear  what  the  Cha i rperson i s  

say ing .  

CHAIRPERSON:    In  the  end i f  the  cheque is  p resented,  

then honoured money w i l l  go  ou t  and in  te rms o f  what  I  had 

author ised you,  cash wou ld  have gone out  p robab ly  ear l ie r  

than,  cash wou ld  go  out  by  way o f  a  cheque.   The on ly  

compla in t  I  can have,  about  you issu ing  a  cheque ins tead  

o f  cash is  i f  I  th ink  tha t  the  issu ing  o f  a  cheque w i l l  

p re jud ice  the  o ther  person or  the  o ther  person w i l l  

compla in  because o f  whatever  de lays  there  may be  before  10 

they ge t  cash but  i f  the  o ther  person is  happy,  I  do  no t  see  

why I  wou ld  have  a  prob lem wi th  t he  fac t  tha t  you issued a  

cheque.   

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  I  th ink  Cha i r  the  u l t ima te  issue  

tu rns  on  the  purpose o f  e i the r  the  cash payment ,  I  mean 

fo r  our  purposes,  e i ther  the  cash payment  o r  the 

guarantee.   The  u l t imate  pu rpose tha t  was meant  to  be  

ach ieved or  ob jec t i ve  to  be  ach ieved by  issu ing  e i ther  the  

cash o r  the  guarantee.   

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  no ,  no  I  do  no t  have a  prob lem wi th  20 

tha t  tha t  i s  impor tan t .   I t  i s  jus t  tha t  a l l  a long  I  have 

unders tood tha t  there  i s  an  issue about  whether  the  Board  

had author ised the  issu ing  o f  a  guarantee.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And obv ious l y,  we need to  app ly  ou r  
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m inds to  tha t  bu t  i f  the  reason ing  tha t  ind ica ted  is  cor rec t  

i t  seems to  me tha t  the  Board  cannot  compla in  or  shou ld  

no t  compla in  o r  b lame the  o f f i c ia ls  fo r  i ssu ing  a  guarantee  

in  c i rcumstances  where  they had author ised them actua l l y  

to  pay even cash,  you see.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:    So  obv ious l y  we can look a t  o ther  

i ssues,  i f  there  i s  no  ind i ca t ion  tha t  th is  const ruc t ion  o f  the  

reso lu t ion  is  wrong but  i f  there  i s  anyth ing  tha t  suggests  

tha t  i t  i s  no t  sound,  we can look a t  i t .   Bu t  on  the  face  o f  i t ,  10 

tha t  seems to  be  the ,  tha t  seems to  me to  be  the  pos i t ion  

and there fore  the  Board  shou ld  have no grounds to  

c r i t i c ise  the  o f f i c i a ls  i f  they  d id  no t  app ly  the i r  m inds to  the  

reso lu t ion  tha t  i s  there  p rob lem.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I s  i t  no t  the  Cha i rpe rson look ing  a t  

u l t imate ly  wh ich  one is  the  wors t  o f  the  two?  Because on  

the  face  o f  i t ,  the  reso lu t ion  is ,  i t  con templa tes  a  cash  

payment .   So s teps to  be  taken a re  in  re la t ion  to  t he  cash 

payment .   What  the  Cha i rperson is  say ing  is ,  bu t  i s  tha t  

no t  in  i t se l f  to  take  a l l  the  necessary  s teps to  g i ve  e f fec t  to  20 

the  above?  Does tha t  no t  open the  door  fo r  them to  do  

even the  less  o f  the  two wors t  s i tua t ion?  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l ,  you  see,  i t  seems to  me tha t  one  

has to  s ta r t  w i th  what  au thor i t y  the  th ree  o f f i c ia ls  -  what  

te rms and cond i t ions  the  th ree  o f f i c ia ls  were  au thor ised to  
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agree to  in  te rms  o f  the  agreement ,  and i t  seems tha t  the  

Board  gave them a  b lank cheque as  i t  were  to  say you w i l l  

see  what  te rms and cond i t ions  you ag reed to  and they 

dec ided to  agree  to  among o thers  a  c lause tha t  says a  

guarantee wou ld  be  issued.   

Now,  i f  you  accep t  tha t ,  tha t  fe l l  w i th in ,  tha t  was le f t  

to  them to  dec ide  what  te rms and cond i t ions  they  shou ld  

b ind  Eskom to ,  they bound Eskom to  among o the rs to  tha t  

and once they had bound Eskom to  tha t  te rm they had to  

i ssue the  guarantee.    10 

I f  the  Board  d id  no t ,  i f  the  Board  wanted to  nar row  

the  scope fo r  the i r  mandate ,  to  say,  you can ag ree to  

whatever  te rms and cond i t ions  except  no t  about  A ,  B ,  C,  D 

i t  was f ree  to  say so  in  the i r  reso lu t ion ,  they d id  no t  say  

so ,  they jus t  gave them a  w ide  the  w idest  poss ib le  

au thor i t y  in  te rms  o f  what  te rms to  agree to .  

I t  may we l l  be  tha t  they were  te rms and cond i t ions  

tha t  a re  usua l l y  agreed to  be tween Eskom and such  

supp l ie rs  in  such  a  case and they  expected the  o f f ic ia ls  to  

agree to  usua l  te rms but  they d id  no t  say  so  in  the  20 

agreement ,  they  d id  no t  say  they must  negot ia te  and  

conc lude an agreement  on  the  usua l  te rms and cond i t ions.   

They jus t  sa id  you negot ia te  and conc lude and the  

o f f i c ia l  dec ided one o f  the  th ings we w i l l  agree to  w i l l  be  a 

guarantee but  tha t  was not  vo iced then what  had been  
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au thor ised i f  one reads the  reso lu t ion  to  mean tha t  the  

Board  au thor i sed pre -payment  wh ich  cou ld  be  cash,  ja .   

ADV SELEKA SC:     I  mean,  I  have mul led  over  tha t  

Cha i rperson I  know tha t  the  guarantee wou ld  have in  the 

m inds o f  the  execut ive  be  more  sa feguard ing  to  the  

in te res ts  o f  Eskom exact ly  fo r  what  Ms Suzanne Dan ie l  i s  

say ing  tha t  the cash const ra in t s  a t  the  t ime,  f inanc ia l  

const ra in ts  a t  the  t ime in  regard  to  Eskom and maybe the  

Board  does not  have a  leg  to  s tand on.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  on  the  face  o f  i t  un less  the  Board  10 

comes up w i th  someth ing  e lse  or  un less  somebody p icks  up  

in  i t  someth ing ,  i t  does appear  tha t  the  reso lu t ion  

au thor ised th is  k ind  o f  th ing ,  i t  le f t  i t  to  the  th ree  o f f i c ia ls  

to  agree the  te rms and cond i t ions  and one o f  the  te rms  

they agreed to  was the  issu ing  o f  a  guarantee.  

So tha t  o f  course  does not  dea l  w i th  the  quest ion  

whethe r  i t  was r igh t  o r  i t  was proper,  i t  was jus t i f ied  to  

agree to  a  pre -payment  on  the  pa r t  o f  the  Board  in  the  f i rs t  

p lace .   

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  i t  answers  the  quest ion  whether  the  

th ree  o f f i c ia l s  were  au thor i sed to  i ssue a  guarantee .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Wel l ,  Cha i rperson I  wanted to  add tha t  

in  te rms o f  the  PFMA tha t  you may we l l  say  we l l  tha t  i s  

exact ly  what  the  Board  d id  bu t  in  te rms o f  the  PFMA,  the  
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gua rantee can on ly  be  issued by  the  account ing  au thor i t y  

in  the  case o f  Eskom.   I  th ink  Ms Suzanne Dan ie l s ,  you can  

exp la in  tha t  we d id  go  th rough tha t  and I  know tha t  the  

Par l iamentary  Por t fo l io  Commi t tee ,  there  was a  debate  

about  whethe r  i t  does not  requ i re  m in is te r i a l  p r io r  

approva l ,  hav ing  l i f ted  the  prov is ions o f  the  PFMA,  

ac tua l l y,  in  th is  case,  the  account ing  au thor i t y.   

But  I  am a lso  m indfu l  o f  what  Ms  Na idoo sa id  tha t  

the  Board ,  I  th ink  she sa id  the  Board  had the  au thor i t y  on ly  

up  to  R750mi l l ion  to  i ssue a  guarantee.  So beyond tha t ,  10 

accord ing  to  her,  then you w i l l  requ i re  m in is te r ia l  approva l .  

I  th ink  Ms Suzanne Dan ie ls  can exp la in  tha t  to  us .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  you see i t  i s  impor tan t  to  separa te  

a l l  the  issues.   

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:    So  fa r,  a l l  we were  ta l k ing  about  and a l l  

I  was ra i s ing  was whether  the  issu ing  o f  a  guarantee fe l l  

w i th in  the  te rms o f  the  reso lu t ion .   

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    That  does not  necessar i l y  mean  i t  was 20 

fo l low ing the  te rms o f  the  PFMA,  i t  does not  mean i t  was in  

o rder  in  te rms o f  any o ther  ins t rument .   I t  may we l l  be  tha t  

one might  say  the  Board  d id  au thor ise  by  i t s  reso lu t ion  the  

issu ing  o f  a  guarantee,  bu t  obv ious l y  cou ld  no t  au thor i se  

the  issu ing  o f  a  guarantee tha t  fa l l s  on  i t s  de legated 
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au thor i t y  o r  beyond i t s  power.   So i f  the  guaran tee was 

beyond i t s  power,  and one assumes the  o f f ic ia l s  wou ld  

know tha t  because we are  ta lk ing  here  about  the  ch ie f  

execut ive  o f f i ce r  o f  Eskom and ch ie f  f inanc ia l  o f f i cer  tha t  

they wou ld  know what  fa l l s  w i th in ,  what  fe l l  w i th in  the  

mandate  w i th in  the  power  o f  the  Board  in  te rms o f  

amounts .   

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    So  i f  the  argument  i s  f rom the  Board ,  we  

are  no t  say ing  tha t  the  o f f i c ia ls  d id  no t  -  the  reso lu t ion  d id  10 

no t  au thor ise  the  issu ing  o f  a  guarantee a t  a l l .   We accept  

tha t  the  reso lu t ion  d id  au thor i se  i n  e f fec t  o r  by  imp l ica t ion  

issu ing  o f  a  guarantee,  bu t  i t  cou ld  no t  au thor ise  the  

issu ing  o f  a  guarantee tha t  i s  your  power  in  te rms o f  

amounts  o f  the  Board ,  then tha t  i s  a  d i f fe ren t  a rgument .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  I  am wi th  you.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Cha i r  I  th ink  what  -  the  way I  have  

seen i t  i s  to  res t r i c t  the  reso lu t ion  to  a  cash pre-payment  

by  v i r t ue  o f  tha t  paragraph wh ich  says:  20 

“You take a l l  necessary  s teps to  g ive  e f fec t  to  the  

above,  i t  does go on inc lud ing  the  s ign ing  o f  any  

concerns o r  any o ther  documenta t ion  necessary  o r  

re la ted  there  too . ”  

Which  i s  the  above,  i t  i s  a  contempla t ion  or  a  dec is ion  fo r  



19 FEBRUARY 2021 – DAY 346 
 

Page 42 of 144 
 

the  pre-purchase  o f  coa l  and I  am separa t ing  tha t  aspect  

f rom the  lesser  o f  the  two ev i l s ,  u l t imate ly,  a  s tep  be ing  

taken the  next  day.   I  mean,  the  execut ives  m ight  we l l  have 

seen tha t  we l l  i t  w i l l  be  r i sky  fo r  us  to  par t  w i th  cash,  as  

opposed to  i ssu ing  a  guarantee,  le t  us  ra ther  resor t  to  the  

lesser  o f  the  two ev i l s  and dec ided  we l l  i t  i s  no t  necessary  

to  even go to  the  Board  because we ac tua l l y  sav ing  Eskom 

money.   And the  quest ion  obv ious l y  i s  on  the  face  o f  i t ,  i f  

the  reso lu t ion  is  res t r i c ted ,  in  te rms o f  the  above and what  

i s  in  re la t ion  there to ,  where  does i t  take  us?  Because 10 

u l t imate ly  the  execut ives  took a  s tep  tha t  was favourab le  

to  Eskom,  you know.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l  you see i t  seems to  me tha t  c lause  

2 .1 .2  o f  the  reso lu t ion  and I  am not  look ing  a t  I  am jus t  

ment ion ing  i t  f rom memory.   I s  so  w ide  tha t  fo r  purposes o f  

whethe r  there  was ent i t lement  to  i ssue a  guarantee there  

m ight  be  no  need  to  go  to  the  c lause tha t  Ms Dan ie ls  was 

re ly ing  on  because you say c lause 2 .1 .2  g ives  the  th ree  

o f f i c ia ls  comple te  d iscre t ion  to  what  they must  bound  

Eskom to  in  te rms o f  tha t  agreement .   20 

And i f  they  choose to  bound Eskom to  say ing  issue 

a  

guarantee,  in  c i r cumstances where  the  reso lu t ion  ac tua l l y  

au thor ises  the  payment  o f  cash tha t  i s  w i th in  the  

reso lu t ion .   
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ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And once they have inc luded tha t  in  the  

agreement ,  obv ious l y  i t  i s  go ing  to  be  honoured and then 

maybe w i th  o r  w i thout  c lause 2 ,  was i t  c lause 2 .1 .4  the  one  

tha t  Ms Dan ie l s  re l ied  on .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Maybe w i th  o r  w i thout  i t  s t i l l  they  are  

au thor ised but  cer ta in l y  i t  seems you can say once they  

have inc luded the  issue o f  a  guarantee in  the  agreement  as  

a  te rm or  cond i t ion  tha t  c lause 2 .1 .4  a l lows them to  take  10 

whatever  s teps to  g ive  e f fec t  to  tha t  agreement .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja ,  because,  we l l ,  i f  you  take  i t  to  i t s  

log ica l  conc lus ion  the  guarantee  wou ld  s imp ly  de fer  the  

da te  o f  payment .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja ,  because tha t  i s  exact ly  what  they  

even say here  in  the i r  agreement .   

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  so  i t  seems tha t  the  Board  un less  

they come up w i th  someth ing  more  conv inc ing  cannot  rea l l y  

compla in  tha t  in  i ssu ing  the  guarantee the  o f f i c ia ls  d id  20 

someth ing  tha t  they were  no t  au thor i sed by  the  reso lu t ion  

to  do .   

Yes,  bu t  o f  cou rse  you fee l  f ree  to  -  you can a lways  

come back la te r  on  i f  you  re f lec t  and you or  you come 

across someth ing  tha t  m ight  change one 's  th ink ing .  But  in  
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the  meant ime,  you can exp lore  the  o ther  i ssues  o f  you 

know,  Ms Dan ie ls  has conf i rmed tha t  the  idea o f  th is  

guarantee came f rom outs ide  o f  Eskom.   I  do  no t  know 

whethe r  she may  have dea l t  w i th  th is  be fo re ,  Ms Dan ie l s  

you say i t  came f rom outs ide  f rom whom outs ide  o f  Eskom 

d id  i t  come? 

MS DANIELS:    Mr  Cha i rman,  a t  the  a t  the  t ime I  d id  no t  

know because you can see f rom the  emai l  i t  came f rom Mr  

Matshe la  Koko,  and then i t  came f rom Bus inessman,  based  

on the  ev idence  and the  o ther  emai ls ,  you know,  i t  was  10 

more  than l i ke ly  tha t  th is  l i s t  o f  bus iness p lan  is  Mr  Sa l im 

Essa.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l…[ in te rvene ]  

MS DANIELS:    Because…[ in tervene]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  cont inue.  

MS DANIELS:    Wel l  because  la te r  on  in  the  emai l  

exchange both  the  invest iga to rs ,  and I  th ink  i t  was in  2018 

the  Mai l  and Guard ian  showed me the  emai ls  and they are  

inc luded in  the  bund le  tha t  the  paperwork  tha t  we prepared  

ins ide  o f  Eskom actua l l y  went  to  Mr  Sa l im Essa and Mr  Er ic  20 

Wood.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  now Mr  Koko when he gave 

ev idence here  a  few weeks ago sa id  tha t ,  I  th ink  he  sa id  he  

was shocked or  he  wou ld  be  shocked i f  the  pos i t ion  was  

tha t  Bus inessman was  Sa l im Essa or  was somebody f rom 
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ou ts ide  o f  Eskom.   I  cannot  remember  how he  put  i t  

because as  fa r  as  he  was concerned,  he  had been to ld  and  

I  do  no t  know whether  he  sa id  he  had been to ld  by  you,  I  

th ink  he  sa id ,  you had to ld  h im tha t  Bus inessman was Dr  

Ngubane the  Cha i rperson o f  the  Board .   What  do  you say  

to  tha t?  

MS DANIELS:    Ah ,  no  Mr  Cha i rman,  I  th ink  Mr  Koko is  

t ry ing  to  m is lead  the  Commiss ion .   I  a t  no  s tage to ld  h im  

tha t  the  in fo  por ta l  address o r  bus inessman address 

be longs to  Dr  Ngubane.   I  d id  no t  use  i t ;  I  ca tegor i ca l l y  10 

deny tha t .   Dr  Ngubane had a  pe rsona l  emai l  and  i t  was 

Ba ldwin [? ]  -  I  am jus t  read ing  f rom my a f f idav i t  tha t  I  -  the  

la tes t  one I  subm i t ted .   

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MS DANIELS:    I t  i s  ba ldwin .ngubane@gmai l . com.  That  

was h is  pe rsona l  address tha t  you used a t  Eskom and  

there  wou ld  have been no reason.   

CHAIRPERSON:    Was tha t  persona l  emai l  address o f  Dr  

Ngubane known to  Mr  Koko a t  the  t ime as  fa r  as  you know? 

MS DANIELS:    Yes,  i t  was as  fa r  as  I  know yes,  i t  was.   I  20 

th ink  Mr  Koko in  h is…[ in te rvene]  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  am sor ry,  I  am ask ing  whethe r,  to  your  

knowledge d id  Mr  Koko a lso  used the  –  Dr  Ngubane ’s  

persona l  emai l  address,  o r  i s  tha t  someth ing  you do not  

know? 
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MS DANIELS:    I  am not  sure  a t  the  t ime was  the  Mr.  

Cha i rman,  bu t  he  wou ld  have known about  i t  because on 

the  cor respondence tha t  I  wou ld  have sent  ou t ,  you wou ld  

see on the  co r respondence to  the  Board  and the  

execut ives ,  I  wou ld  have used  the i r  Eskom and the i r  

persona l  addresses.  So i t  wou ld  have been known to  the 

execut ives .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  so  a re  you say ing  tha t  there  a re  

documents ,  Eskom documents  or  emai ls  tha t  you sent  to  

Board  members  and maybe some o f  the  sen ior  execut ives 10 

a t  Eskom which  inc luded Dr  Ngubane ’s  pe rsona l  emai l  

add ress tha t  you have jus t  ment ioned? 

MS DANIELS:    Yes,  tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    And Mr  Koko wou ld  have been one o f  the  

rec ip ien ts  o f  such emai ls  tha t  you  sent ,  wh ich  inc luded Dr  

Ngubane ’s  personne l  emai l  address tha t  you have  

ment ioned?  

MS DANIELS:    Yes,  tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  Mr  Cha i rman.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Do we by  any chance have such  

documents  Mr  Se leka?  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:    I  w i l l  check in  suspens ion…[ in te rvene]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Maybe I  cou ld  ask  her  Ms Dan ie ls  she 

might  know,  in  the  bund les  tha t  we a re  us ing  have you  

come across any documents  tha t  you send to ,  among  

o thers ,  Mr  Koko  wh ich  had Dr  Ngubane ’s  persona l  emai l  
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add ress tha t  he  used a t  Eskom tha t  you ment ioned?  

MS DANIELS:    I  th ink  i f  you  ac tua l l y  look  a t  the  round  

rob in  reso lu t ion ,  Mr  Cha i rman tha t  I  sent  ou t ,  I  am jus t  

t ry ing  to  ge t  the  page i t  may jus t  be  on  there  as  we l l .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  ja ,  you can look.  

MS DANIELS:    I  jus t  wou ld  need he lp  f rom 

the…[ in tervene]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ev idence Leader.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I  am look ing  fo r  he r  emai l  where  she 

seeks,  inv i tes  the  Board  members  to  a  round rob in .  10 

MS DANIELS:    I t  i s  on  Eskom 18 ,  oh  no  tha t  i s  jus t  Ano j  

S ingh.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja ,  th is  on  page 524 Ms Dan ie l s  i t  

does not  show the  emai l  address i t  shows the  name o f  Dr  

Ben Ngubane tha t  i s  where  you send an emai l  request ing  

the  Board  to  make a  round rob in  dec i s ion  on  the  9 t h  o f  

March .  

MS DANIELS:    Bu t  I  am sure  we  can f ind  an  emai l  fo r  you 

Mr  Cha i rman where  we,  where  I  sent  i t  to  everybody.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  and you th ink  i t  m igh t  be  qu i te  a  20 

few tha t  cou ld  be  found?  

MS DANIELS:    Yes,  there  w i l l  be  qu i te  a  few,  Mr  Koko was  

qu i te  invo l ved in  some o f  the  dec is ions tha t  were  made.   

So he wou ld  be  we l l  aware  tha t  Dr  Ngubane ’s  address is  

ba ldwin .ngubane@gmai l . com.  



19 FEBRUARY 2021 – DAY 346 
 

Page 48 of 144 
 

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  i f  –  have you found someth ing  Mr  

Se leka?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I  found i t  on  page 571 on  Eskom 

bund le  18 ,  571 but  i t  i s  on ly  an  exchange between Ms 

Suzanne Dan ie ls  and Dr  Ngubane.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  i t  does not  invo lve  Mr  Koko but  

Miss  Ms Dan ie l s  says there  w i l l  be  qu i te  a  few.   I  guess  

whethe r  in  the  bund les  o r  no t  in  the  bund les ,  i f  they  are  

no t  in  the  bund les  you th ink  they can be found eas i l y  Ms 

Dan ie ls?  10 

MS DANIELS:    Yes,  Mr  Cha i rman,  I  th ink  i f  you ,  i f  the  

invest iga t ing  team does a  search  on the  emai ls  tha t  I  sent  

to  the  Board  members  and execut ives ,  you w i l l  f ind  them.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  then they shou ld  come ac ross  those.   

MS DANIELS:    Yes,  you w i l l  de f in i te ly  come across those.   

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  do  you know whethe r  there  wou ld  

be  a  ca tegory  o f  emai ls  where  you wou ld  inc lude the  

personne l  emai ls ,  emai l  addresses or  in  o ther  words,  how 

wou ld  one know when you inc lude pe rsonne l  emai l  

add resses o f  the Board  members  and when you do  not  o r  20 

does i t  happen when i t  happens and then i t  d id  no t  happen 

when d id  no t  happen?  

For  example ,  i f  you  were  send ing  minutes  o f  the  

Board  meet ings,  do  you know whether  you wou ld  inc lude  

the  pe rsonne l  emai l  add resses o f  the  Board  members ,  o r  a t  
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leas t  o f  Dr  Ngubane or  i s  i t  when  you were  dea l ing  w i th  a 

d i f fe ren t  ca tegory  o f  documents  tha t  you wou ld  inc lude i t?  

MS DANIELS:    Mr  Cha i rman,  du r ing  th is  t ime,  you know,  

in  the  ear ly  s tages o f  le t  us  say  2015/2016 Eskom’s  IT 

sys tem d id  no t  -  was not  sor t  o f  compat ib le  fo r  some o f  the  

Board  members .   So they asked -  so  you wou ld  f ind  tha t  I  

had to  send i t  to  bo th  the  Eskom address and the  persona l  

emai l  address.    

So I  d id  no t  have  a  de f ined ca tegory  ye t ,  you know,  

as  to  when I  wou ld  send,  so  you wou ld  see on the  emai ls  10 

tha t  I  wou ld  send i t  to  the  Gmai l  address and the  Eskom 

address.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  so  tha t  i s  f ine .   So…[ in tervenes]  

MS DANIELS:    So  i t  was . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    . . .o r  the  pe r iod  when you d id  tha t  

because tha t  was  because o f  the  cha l lenges . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MS DANIELS:    Yes.   

ADV SELEKA SC:    . . .o f  the  an t i  in  Eskom?  

MS DANIELS:    Yes.   And I  th ink  tha t  even when  Eskom 

deve loped an app fo r  the  board  members ,  you know,  a  20 

secure  por ta l ,  there  was s t i l l  p rob lems wi th  the  board  

members  and they wou ld  ask  tha t  i t  be  send to  the i r  

persona l  emai ls .   And tha t  i s  why you see persona l  emai ls ,  

work  emai l s . . .   You know,  there  is  a  m ix ture .   I t  was  not  ye t  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   
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CHAIRPERSON:    A spec ia l  . . . [ in tervenes]   

MS DANIELS:    . . . in  te rms o f  a  board  po r ta l  ye t .   

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay a l r igh t .   Mr  Se leka.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:    You. . .  the  invest iga tors  o r  somebody  

must  jus t  pursue tha t .    

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja .   Or  I  can address o ther  emai ls  to  

the  board  members  w i th  p r iva te  emai l  addresses wh ich  is  

no t  Eskom emai l  addresses but  Mr  Koko i s  no t  in  tha t  

cor respondence.    

 Ms Dan ie l s ,  jus t  –  okay so  we have t raversed the  

issue o f  the  guarantee.   I t  i s  i ssued in  favour  o f  Tegeta .   

We have read the  agreement  wh ich  says:  

“ I t  suspends the  payment  un t i l  the  fu l f i lment  o f  

the  cond i t ions .  

The cond i t ions  have an exp i ry  da te  wh ich  is  20 

the  31s t  o f  March  2016. ”  

 Do you reca l l  tha t?  

MS DANIELS:    Yes,  I  do .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Which  is  in  C lause 5  o f  the  Agreement  

by  the  . . . [ in te rvenes]   
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CHAIRPERSON:    I  am sor ry  Mr  Se leka.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  jus t  want  to  go  back to  th is  issue o f  

Mr  Koko say ing  tha t  he  was to ld  by  Ms Dan ie l s  tha t  the  

in fopor ta l  address was fo r  Dr  Ngubane.    

 In  your  d i scuss ions –  or  when Mr  Koko wou ld  send 

emai ls  to  Dr  Ngubane,  wou ld  those emai ls  be  opened by  

you and handed over  to  Dr  Ngubane by  yourse l f  o r  wou ld  i t  

be  opened by  h is  PA and handed over  to  h im or  wou ld  he  

open i t  themse lves?  10 

 Or,  somet imes he wou ld  do  so ,  somet imes they  

wou ld  do  so  and somet imes you wou ld  do  so?  

MS DANIELS:    I t  wou ld  be  a  combinat ion  o f  the  th ree ,  the  

las t  scenar io  tha t  you ment ioned Mr  Cha i rman.  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m,  h ’m.  

MS DANIELS:    I  d id  no t  have d i rec t  access to  m is ter. . .   

Sor ry,  D r  Ngubane ’s  emai l  a t  Eskom.   That  wou ld  be  the  

pre rogat ive  o f  the  PA.  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  

MS DANIELS:    And she wou ld  br ing  to  my a t ten t ion  i f  20 

there  were  emai ls  tha t  she was not  sure  what  to  do  w i th .  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  

MS DANIELS:    D r  Ngubane d id  a t tend a t  the  Eskom of f ice .   

Then he wou ld  a l so  go  th rough h is  emai ls .  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  
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MS DANIELS:    And i f  he  rece ived emai l s  on  h i s  persona l  

emai l  tha t  he  needed,  he  wou ld  send them to  me.  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  

MS DANIELS:    So  i t  rea l l y  depended on what  the  na ture  o f  

the  emai l  was and what  he  wanted  done.  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.   D id  you ever  have an occas ion  to  

d iscuss w i th  Mr  Koko any emai ls  o r  documents  tha t  he  sent  

to  the  emai l  address o f  Bus inessman,  the  in fopor ta l  emai l  

add ress a t  any s tage g i v ing  tha t  wh i le  you were  bo th  a t  

Eskom? 10 

MS DANIELS:    Cha i r,  Bus inessman o r. . .   You see ,  i t  i s  a  

d i f f i cu l t  one.   The sub jec t  mat te r  o f  the  t ransact ions,  we  

d id  d iscuss.   I t  was not  –  I  was no t  aware  tha t  he  had sent  

them to  the  in fopor ta l .    

You wou ld  see in  my supp lementa ry  a f f idav i t  tha t  I  

f i l ed  today or  yes terday,  tha t  I  do  h igh l igh t  some 

t ransact ions based on Ms Mat jeko ’s  ev idence but  he  wou ld  

d iscuss w i th  Dr  Ngubane i f  i t  were  a  board  mat te r.    

CHAIRPERSON:    So  are  you say ing  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MS DANIELS:    And . . . [ in te rvenes]   20 

CHAIRPERSON:    . . . you  may have d iscussed documents  

tha t  he  wou ld  have sent  to  Bus inessman but  i f  you  –  you  

wou ld  no t  know tha t  he  had sent  them to  Bus inessman.   

That  i s  what  you are  say ing?  

MS DANIELS:    That  i s  what  I  am say ing .  
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CHAIRPERSON:    You never  d iscussed a  document  tha t ,  to  

your  knowledge,  he  had sent  to  Bus inessman? 

MS DANIELS:    Wel l ,  a t  the  t ime Mr  Cha i rman because i f  I  

–  when I  l i s tened to  the  ev idence tha t  has been  coming 

out ,  there  have been documents  tha t  have been  sent  to  

Bus inessman tha t  came before  the  board  and were  

d iscussed w i th  Mr  Koko.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  bu t  what  I  am say ing  is .   A t  the 

t ime o f  you d i scuss ing  such documents .   You are  say ing  

you wou ld  no t  have known tha t  he  had sent  them to  10 

Bus inessman?  

MS DANIELS:    That  i s  co r rec t  Mr  Cha i rman.  

CHAIRPERSON:    You might  found out  la te r  bu t  a t  tha t  

t ime,  you say you were  no t  aware .   You wou ld  have 

d iscussed documents  wh ich  m ight  la te r  on  tu rn  ou t  to  be  

documents  tha t  he  had sent  to  Bus inessman.  

MS DANIELS:    Yes,  tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.   Mr  Se leka ,  you may cont inue.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And you can take  fu r ther  whatever  may 20 

ar ise  f rom the  ev idence.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja .   I  w i l l  send the  broadcast  Cha i r  

w i th  Ms Suzanne Dan ie ls  in te rv iew a t  07 :02 .   In  tha t  

b roadcast  Ms Dan ie ls  i s  the  –  a  c l ip  o f  a  p rev ious in te rv iew 

wi th  Mr  Koko.   And he is  asked:   Who is  Bus inessman?  He  
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says :   Suzanne Dan ie l s .   Do you remember  tha t?  

CHAIRPERSON:    I s  i t  Mr  Koko who says tha t?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I t  i s  exact ly  on  these l ines  to  say 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    He i s  in te rv iewed and he te l l s  the  

in te rv iewer  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:    . . . tha t  the  emai l  address is  –  the  

in fopor ta l1@zoho .com is  Ms Dan ie l s ’ emai l  address.   So he 

is  asked:   Who  is  Bus inessman?  And he says :   I t  i s  

Suzanne Dan ie l s .   And Ms Dan ie l s  had to  be  asked exact ly  

these quest ions about  the  emai l .  

CHAIRPERSON:    So  tha t  in te rv iew was between Mr  Koko 

and somebody no t  invo lv ing  Ms Dan ie ls  as  we l l?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Cor rec t .   Ja ,  i t  d id  no t  invo l ve  her.   

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    So  there  is  a  p rev ious in te rv iew wi th  –  20 

o f  Mr  Koko.   Th is  t ime Ms Dan ie l s  has –  i s  on  the  s ta t ion  

fo r  an  in te rv iew.   Then they p layed  the  c l ip .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    The p rev ious c l ip  o f  Mr  Koko.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And asked fo r  her  comment?  
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ADV SELEKA SC:    And asked fo r  her  comment ,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .   Wel l ,  what  d id  you say on  tha t  

occas ion  Ms Dan ie ls?  

MS DANIELS:    He got  me f i xed  up  Mr  Cha i rman.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   Wel l  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MS DANIELS:    To  even be . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Wou ld  the  imp l ica t ion  o f  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MS DANIELS:    . . . tha t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Wou ld  the  imp l ica t ion  o f  tha t  vers ion ,  

Mr  Se leka,  be  tha t  what  Mr  Koko  to ld  the  in te rv iewer  in  10 

tha t  c l ip  and what  he  to ld  the  Commiss ion  are  cont rad ic to ry  

in  the  sense tha t  in  the  Commiss ion  he  sa id  he  unders tood  

the  in fopor ta l  emai l  address to  be  be long ing  to  Dr  Ngubane 

but  in  the  c l ip  tha t  you say tha t  was p layed to  Ms Dan ie ls ,  

he  does not  say  tha t  emai l  i s  Dr  Ngubane ’s  bu t  he  says i t  

i s  Ms Dan ie ls?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    In  the  c l ip  yes  Cha i r.   I  shou ld  say 

tha t ,  I  do  no t  th ink  they p layed  the  en t i re  in te rv iew o f  

Mr  Koko.  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:    They p layed a  c l ip  and then they asked 

Ms Suzanne Dan ie ls  to  comment  and they asked he r  

fu r ther  quest ions on  tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    So  . . . [ in te rvenes]   



19 FEBRUARY 2021 – DAY 346 
 

Page 56 of 144 
 

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  obv ious ly,  tha t  c l ip  –  the  en t i re  

in te rv iew shou ld  be  obta ined.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    So  tha t  i t  can  be looked a t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    H ’m.  

CHAIRPERSON:    So  I  th ink  tha t  shou ld  be  done.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Thank you.    

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay.  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja .   Ms Suzanne Dan ie ls ,  qu i ck ly  on . . .   

Okay so  the  board  is  approached on the  bas is  tha t  there  i s  

an  urgent  need fo r  coa l  in  te rms  o f  the  submiss ion .   Or  was 

i t  the  submiss ion  on  page 527 o f  Eskom Bund le  18?  

 But  I  suppose you accept  th is  i s  the  g i s t  on  wh ich  

or  the  bas is  on  wh ich  the  board  was approached to  make a  

Round-rob in  dec i s ion  overn igh t  on  the  

9 t h  o f  December  2015?  

MS DANIELS:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja .   And when u l t imate ly  the  board  20 

dec is ion  is  executed or  imp lemented,  i t  resu l ts  in  a 

guarantee be ing  issued but  the  guarantee i s  sub jec t  to  

suspens ive  cond i t ions  as  we l l  as  the  under l in ing  ag reement  

in  tha t  guarantee  and tha t  i s  the  per iod  o f  th ree  months ,  

fo r  about  th ree  months ,  un t i l  31  March 2016.  
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MS DANIELS:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Which  –  on  the  bas i s  o f  wh ich  Mr  Ano j  

S ingh tes t i f ied  a t  the  Par l iamentary  Por t fo l io  Commi t tee  

tha t  he  was aware  tha t  coa l  was not  go ing  to  be  supp l ied  

dur ing  tha t  per iod .   Hence he op ted fo r  a  guaran tee as  

opposed to  a  cash payment .   I  do  no t  know whether  you  

know about  tha t?  

MS DANIELS:    I  saw i t  –  you brought  i t  to  my a t ten t ion  in  

our  d iscuss ions.   I  saw tha t .   I  rea l l y  cannot  make sense o f  

i t .  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja .  

MS DANIELS:    Because the  –  I  th ink  the  coa l  supp ly  and i t  

was e f fec t i ve  f rom the  1s t  o f  January  2016 sub jec t  to  those  

suspens ive  cond i t ions .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

MS DANIELS:    So  i t  i s  rea l l y  a  much about  muchness.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja .   Wel l ,  tha t  i s  a l r igh t .   And then –  I  

mean a t  C lause 6 .1  o f  the  P re-pu rchase Agreement  wh ich  

says:    

“Payment  w i l l  on ly  be  made upon the  fu l f i lment  20 

o f  the  cond i t ions . ”  

 So eve ry th ing  is  de fer red  unt i l  the  

31 s t  o f  March  2016.  

MS DANIELS:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    The po in t  I  am t ry ing  to  make  is  tha t ,  
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the  execut ion  o f  the  board  dec i s ion  by  de fer r ing  every th ing  

fo r  th ree  months ,  i t  undercu ts  the  mot iva t ion  o f  an  urgent  

need fo r  coa l  to  the  Hendr ina  Power  S ta t ion .  

 So i t  weakens the  very  mot iva t ion  why the  board  

had to  make th is  dec is ion  on  an urgent  bas is  fo r  to  aver t  a  

r i sk  wh ich  was sa id  to  be  eminent  a t  the  t ime.   You see the  

po in t  I  am mak ing? 

MS DANIELS:    Yes,  I  see the  po in t  tha t  you are  mak ing 

Adv Se leka.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  10 

MS DANIELS:    Mr  Cha i rman,  I  th ink  the  –  you know i f  you 

look a t  the  submiss ion  c lose ly,  the  under l in ing  issue was  

secur i t y  o f  supp ly.   And I  th ink  tha t  was a  l i t t le  b i t  b roader  

than jus t  the  urgency o f  l i ke  an  immedia te  need.   So yes i t  

was premised on  urgency but  i t  was de layed a t  the  end o f  

the  day.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  bu t  I  th ink  the  par t  o f  the  po in t  tha t  

had been –  tha t  Mr  Se leka seeks to  make is ,  the  board  was 

prevented f rom d iscuss ing  th is  i ssue in  a  proper  board  

meet ing .   And i t  was sent  a  Round-rob in  reso lu t ion  on  the  20 

bas is  tha t  th is  was u rgent  because there  were  –  you were  

seek ing  to  address an  u rgent  coa l  supp ly  demand.   I s  i t  

no t?   That  i s  wha t  the  reso lu t ion  sa id ,  i s  tha t  no t  so? 

MS DANIELS:    That  i s  how i t  was f ramed Mr  Cha i rman.   

So,  yes ,  bu t  I  jus t  want  to  po in t  ou t  tha t ,  you know,  I  th ink  
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tha t  in  the  beg inn ing  i t  was supposed to  be  a  meet ing  bu t  

because the  board  members  were  no t  ava i lab le  dur ing  tha t  

t ime,  i t  then became a  Round- rob in  reso lu t ion .   And yes,  

the  execut ives  d id  push the  urgency fac tor  a t  tha t  po in t  in  

t ime.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  bu t  i t  seems tha t  the  board  cou ld  

have met  in  a  week ’s  t ime,  i t  cou ld  have met  in  two weeks ’ 

t ime,  i t  cou ld  have met  even in  a  month ’s  t ime to  d iscuss  

th is  i ssue.   I s  tha t  no t  so?  

MS DANIELS:    That  i s  so  Mr  Cha i rman.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    And then when the  management  wanted 

the  board  to  au thor ise  th is  mat te r.   A re  you say ing  tha t  f i rs t  

there  was an a t tempt  to  a r range  fo r  a  board  meet ing  to  

take  p lace and  there  seems to  be  prob lems o f  the  

ava i lab i l i t y  o f  members  o f  the  board  and tha t  i s  why the  

idea o f  a  Round- rob in  was resor ted  to?   I s  tha t  what  you  

are  say ing?  

MS DANIELS:    Cha i r,  my –  what  I  am say ing  is ,  when  

Dr  Ngubane approached me,  he  wanted me to  convene a  

meet ing .    20 

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m? 

MS DANIELS:    As  the  d iscuss ions  went  a long,  you w i l l  see  

there  is  an  emai l  o f  the  CFO’s  o f f i ce ,  Mr  S ingh ’s  o f f i ce ,  

ask ing  fo r  i t  to  be  a  Round-rob in .   And I  do  ask ,  as  the 

Cha i rman knows about  th is ,  because my unders tand ing  was  
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tha t  he  wanted  a  meet ing .   I t  then became a  Round- rob in  

because i t  was u rgent .    

CHAIRPERSON:    So  the  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MS DANIELS:    And . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    The idea tha t  i t  shou ld  be  a  Round-

rob in ,  f rom whom d id  i t  come f rom? 

MS DANIELS:    There  is  an  emai l  f rom the  genera l  

manager  f rom Mr  S ingh ’s  o f f i ce  ask ing  tha t  i t  be  sent  ou t  

and now a  Round- rob in .  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.   A t  tha t  s tage,  do  you know 10 

whethe r  be fore  the  manager  sent  tha t  memo or  no te  or  

emai l .   Do you know whether  there  had been a t tempts  to  

communica te  w i th  the  board  members  to  ask  them to  ava i l  

themse lves fo r  a  meet ing  on  some date  d iscuss ing  the  

issue?  

MS DANIELS:    Wel l ,  Mr  Cha i rman I  was s t i l l  check ing  

ava i lab i l i t y  dur ing  tha t  t ime.   I t  rea l l y  happened so  qu ick ly.   

I t  was a l ready the  f i rs t  week in  December  and peop le  were  

a l ready go ing  on ho l iday.    

CHAIRPERSON:    So  who wou ld  ord inar i l y  speak to  board  20 

members  about  a  need fo r  a  meet ing  and who wou ld  ta lk  to  

them about  da tes?  Would  i t  have been the  company  

secre tary?  

MS DANIELS:    Yes,  tha t  wou ld  have been –  a t  tha t  t ime 

tha t  was me.    
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CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MS DANIELS:    I  was the  Company  Secre tary.  

CHAIRPERSON:    But  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MS DANIELS:    I t  was mis te r. . .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  cont inue.  

MS DANIELS:    The Ch ie f  o f  D i rec to r  a lso  spoke  to  the 

board  members  d i rec t l y.    

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m? 

MS DANIELS:    So ,  you know,  Mr  S ingh and execut ive  

d i rec tors  were  the  Ch ie f  F inanc ia l  Off i cer  and the  Ch ie f  10 

Execut ive .   So they wou ld  –  you know,  as  par t  o f  the  board 

they wou ld  d iscuss i t  w i th  the  board  members .  

 Somet imes I  wou ld  jus t  be  to ld  tha t  we need a  

meet ing ,  bu t  in  th is  ins tance,  I  had been approached by  Dr  

Ngubane to  say t ry  and ar range a  meet ing  and I  wou ld  ge t  

the  in fo rmat ion  f rom Mr  S ingh and Mr  Koko.  

 As  th ings un fo lded,  there  was an emai l  f rom – I  

th ink  i t  was Ms Na idoo,  ask ing  tha t  th is  go  ou t  on  Round-

rob in  and he was in  the  o f f i ce  o f  Mr  S ingh.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.   I s  my unders tand ing  cor rec t  tha t  20 

you yourse l f  d id  no t  engage w i th  board  members  pr io r  to  

th is  emai l  o r  l e t te r  f rom Mr  S ingh ’s  o f f i ce?   You d id  no t  

engage w i th  board  members  and  w i th  the  cha i rperson o f  

the  board ,  Dr  Ngubane about  poss ib le  da tes  fo r  a  meet ing?  

MS DANIELS:    I  ac tua l l y  d id  no t  ge t  a  chance to  do  tha t .   
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I  had a l ready checked some o f  the  peop le ’s  ava i lab i l i t y.   

There  were  some commi t tee  meet ings  s t i l l  happen ing  a t  

Eskom but  there  was no p lace fo r  a  board  meet ing  a t  tha t  

po in t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay but  you say,  Dr  Ngubane was the  

person tha t  approached you f i rs t  and asked you to  convene  

a  meet ing  o f  the  board?  

MS DANIELS:    Yes,  he  d id .   He ca l led  me.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .   So a t  tha t  s tage,  he  was ta lk ing  

about  conven ing  a  meet ing  ra ther  than ta l k ing  about  a  10 

Round-rob in  ar rangement?  

MS DANIELS:    That  i s  co r rec t .   That  i s  cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.   But  la te r  on ,  an  emai l  f rom 

Mr  S ingh ’s  o f f i ce  came wh ich  sa id :   Le t  us  go  the  Round-

rob in  rou te .  

MS DANIELS:    Yes,  tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    You sa id  –  I  th ink  you sa id  you asked  

somebody whether  Dr  Ngubane knew about  th is  la tes t  idea 

o f  the  Round-rob in  as  opposed to  a  phys i ca l  meet ing .   I s  

tha t  r igh t?  20 

MS DANIELS:    Yes,  tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    And who d id  you speak to ,  the  au thor  o f  

the  emai l  tha t  was suggest ing  a  Round- rob in .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Can I  ass i s t  you?  

MS DANIELS:    Yes,  I  d id .   And I  a lso  subsequent ly  spoke  
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to  Dr  Ngubane and asked h im and he was f ine .   You w i l l  

see –  tha t  i s  why the  emai l  says  a t  the  reques t  o f  the  

cha i rman.   I  sent  i t  ou t  in  Round-rob in .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay a l r igh t .   Mr  Se leka.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  thank you Cha i r.   Ms Dan ie ls ,  

p lease check on  page 492 o f  Eskom Bund le  18 ,  p lease.   

There  is  an  emai l  there .   You  can ident i f y  i t  to  the 

Cha i rperson and say whether  th i s  cou ld  be  the  emai l  tha t  

you are  ta l k ing  about .   Page 492 Cha i rperson.  

MS DANIELS:    Yes,  tha t  i s  the  emai l  tha t  I  am ta lk ing  10 

about  Mr  Cha i r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    So tha t  . . . [ in tervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  yes  I  see i t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes. ,  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I t  i s  the  emai l . . .   Tuesday,  

8  December  2015  a t  16 :41 .   I t  i s  addressed to  you 

Ms Dan ie ls ,  Mr  Ano j  S ingh,  Mr  Matshe la  Koko.   Board  

Round-rob in  request ,  Opt imum Coa l  Mine (P ty)  L td .   And i t  

says :  20 

“He l lo ,  Suzanne.   Can you p lease ass is t  w i th  a  

Round-rob in  to  the  board?”  

 A re  you say ing  tha t  i s  the  emai l  o f  the  request  

fo r  the  mat te r  to  be  dec ided by  way o f  a  Round-rob in?  

MS DANIELS:    That . . .   Yes,  tha t  is  the  request .    
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ADV SELEKA SC:    Bu t  the  dra f t  tha t  was p repared –  I  

mean,  there  is  an  a t tachment  to  th is  emai l .   The d ra f t  i t se l f  

wh ich  comes be fore  th is  emai l  a l ready bo re  the  word  

Round-rob in  submiss ion  to  the  board  i f  you  go to  page 481.    

 And I  th ink  a l l  the  dra f ts  be fore  them,  even  page  

475.   Page 475  even bet te r  because i t  has  the  t rack 

changes wh ich  I  th ink  were  made by  o f f i c ia l s  o f  Tr i l l i an .   I t  

i s  a t tached to  the  emai l  o f  Mr  Mohammed Bobat  and  

Faheema Badat  on  page 474.   They a l ready had  Round-

rob in  submiss ion  to  the  board .    10 

MS DANIELS:    . . .Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I s  tha t  the  same date  Mr  Se leka?  I s  tha t  

the  8 t h?  

MS DANIELS:    Yes,  tha t  i s  the  8 t h  o f  December  

Mr  Cha i rman.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    That  emai l . . .   Yes,  Cha i r  the  emai l  

t ra i l s ,  they  s ta r t  way back.   They are  on  the  8 t h .   They are  

cer ta in ly  be fore  16 :41.    

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.   So i t  may be tha t  you may not  20 

have been cor rec t  inc lud ing  tha t  the  idea o f  Round- rob in  

came f rom Ms Badat (? )  [00 :24 :34]  

ADV SELEKA SC:    [ Ind is t inc t ]   

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  

MS DANIELS:    I  m igh t  have got  the  t ime sequence wrong  
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there .  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  

MS DANIELS:    But  a t  th is  t ime,  Mr  Cha i rman the  –  so  the  

ava i lab i l i t y  o f  the  board  members  was the  issue.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay.   I  th ink  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MS DANIELS:    So  in  th is  per iod ,  we wou ld  no t  have had  

been ab le  to  have a  meet ing  bu t  you are  cor rec t  in  say ing  

i t  cou ld  have been pushed out  by  a  week or  two.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Or  even a  month  i f  you  ended up  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   10 

MS DANIELS:   Bu t  as  o f  th is  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    I f  you  ended up wa i t ing  fo r  end o f  

March.   Even in  January,  you cou ld  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MS DANIELS:    Yes,  tha t  i s  co r rec t .   I  mean,  i t  was 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    I t  was not  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MS DANIELS:    I t  was not . . .  

CHAIRPERSON:    There  a re  no  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MS DANIELS:    A le r ts (?)  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    . . . tha t  suggests  tha t  i t  was u rgent  tha t  20 

the  dec is ion  be  taken by  the  10 t h  o r  somewhere  around 

there  by  the  board .  

MS DANIELS:    Not  ins ide  o f  Eskom,  no .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  ja .   Okay.   Mr  Se leka.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Thank you Cha i r.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    We might  have  taken too  long on th is  

i ssue.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  have in  m ind  my own est imat ion  tha t  

we shou ld  be  ab le  to  f in ished about  f i ve ,  ha l f -past  f i ve ,  s ix .   

You might  say  maybe not  bu t  jus t  t ry  and move.   Of  course ,  

i f  there  i s  s t i l l  someth ing  o f  subs tance about  the  i ssue or  

u rgency.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Then we can.   But  I  th ink  we can move.  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    She has made the  concess ion .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja .   Indeed Cha i r.   I  mean,  the  

suspens ive  cond i t ions  in  the  pre-purchase agreement  and 

the  guarantee . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    . . . the  a l legat ion  o f  u rgency.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ms Dan ie ls  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    I  th ink  le t  us  take  a  shor t  ad journment .   20 

I t  i s  four  o ’c lock .   Ten minutes ’ ad journment  and then when  

we come back,  we t ry  and see i f  we can . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    . . .go  or  another  hour,  hour  and a  ha l f  o r  

two.   But  I  th ink  we can t r y  and cover  as  much as  poss ib le .  
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ADV SELEKA SC:    I  w i l l  t ry  less  than two hours  Cha i r.   

Le t  us  see what  happens.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay a l r igh t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:    We wi l l  ad journ  fo r  ten  m inutes .   We 

ad journ .  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  le t  us  cont inue.  

MR SELEKA SC :   Thank you,  Cha i r.   Ms Dan ie l s ,  a re  you  10 

w i th  us?  

MS DANIELS :    Yes,  I  am.  

MR SELEKA SC :   Okay.   The same bund le ,  page 487,  

Eskom bund le  18 ,  page 498.   Jus t  a  fo l low up on the  emai l  

you were  re fer r ing  to  o f  Ms Bana.  

MS DANIELS :    Yes.  

MR SELEKA SC :   I t  i s  an  ema i l  f rom you,  Tuesday 8 

December  2015,  16 .44 ,  tha t  i s  a f te r  Ms Bana ’s  emai l  o f  

16 .41  and there  you are  ask ing :  

“Has the  Cha i rman been not i f ied  or  do  I  have to  20 

request  h im to  a l low?”  

I  th ink  tha t  i s  ta l k ing  about  a  round rob in ,  the  emai l  s t i l l  

appears  be low your  …[ in tervenes]  

MS DANIELS :    Yes.   Yes,  tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

MR SELEKA SC :    Cou ld  tha t  be  what  you were  t ry ing  to  
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exp la in  to  the  Cha i rperson?  

MS DANIELS :    Yes.  

MR SELEKA SC :   That  you  enqu i red  whether  the  

Cha i rperson was aware  tha t  the  meet ing  shou ld  proceed by  

way o f  a  round rob in?  

MS DANIELS :    Yes,  tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

MR SELEKA SC :   Jus t  to  add,  Cha i r,  to  the  urgency  o f  the 

s i tua t ion ,  th is  a l leged urgency,  the  pre -purchase 

agreement  i s  sub jec t  to  suspens ive  cond i t ions .   Coa l  i s  no t  

supp l ied  pursuant  to  tha t  agreement  and in  i t s  a f f idav i t…”  10 

In  i t s  a ff idav i t ,  I  say  i t  i s ,  tha t  i s  CDH’s  a f f idav i t .   Mr  

Mood ley  says tha t  a t  tha t  s tage,  th is  i s  December  2015,  an  

even before  tha t ,  I  th ink  f rom September  2015,  OCM and  

Eskom had an in te r im ar rangement  in  te rms o f  wh ich  OCM 

was supp ly ing  coa l  to  Eskom,  Eskom’s  Hendr ina  power  

s ta t ion .   D id  you know tha t?  

MS DANIELS :    That  i s  ment ioned in  the  agreement  bu t  I  

d id  no t  know the  spec i f i cs .  

MR SELEKA SC :    Wel l ,  you  see …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Can I  in te rpose,  Mr  Se leka,  jus t  on  20 

someth ing  tha t  goes back,  I  am sor ry  tha t  I  am tak ing  you 

back,  do  no t  fo rge t  you r  quest ion .   Ms Dan ie l s ,  te l l  me,  

how d id  Eskom’s  need o r  even pu rpor ted ly  u rgent  need fo r  

–  o r  to  secure  coa l ,  coa l  supp ly,  how was tha t  addressed in  

December  by  a  reso lu t ion  au thor i s ing  tha t  a  p re -coa l  a  p re -
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agreement  o f  coa l  supp ly  be  conc luded w i th  peop le  who d id  

no t  own the  coa l  tha t  you are  ta l k ing  about  a t  tha t  t ime?  

The reso lu t ion  i t se l f  says  the  agreement  shou ld  be  

conc luded w i th  the  proposed owners  wh ich  obv ious l y  

means conc lude an agreement  w i th  no t  the  owners  bu t  the  

proposed owners .   How d id  tha t  address the  u rgen t  o r  the 

need fo r  the  secur i t y  o f  coa l  supp ly?  

MS DANIELS :    The ( i nd i s t inc t  –  record ing  d is to r ted)  Mr  

Cha i rman,  i t  d id  no t  in  the  immedia te  address the  coa l  

supp ly  u rgency.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes because a lso  th is  was not  even a  

s i tua t ion  where  the  idea was le t  us  conc lude an ag reement  

w i th  the  proposed owners  to  say i f  and when you become 

owners  you w i l l  supp ly  us  w i th  coa l  on  the  fo l low ing te rms  

and  cond i t ions ,  t h is  i s  no t  what  was author ised,  i s  tha t  

r igh t?  

MS DANIELS :    That  i s  cor rec t ,  Mr  Cha i rman,  in  fac t  I  th ink  

the  under l y ing  issue is  he re  tha t  th is  was ac tua l l y  to  ass is t  

the  proposed owners  to  acqu i re  Op t imum.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes because i f  you were  in  –  i f  you –  i f  20 

Eskom wanted to  secure  coa l  supp ly,  the  idea was to  

conc lude agreements  w i th  the  owners  o f  coa l .   Do you 

agree?  

MS DANIELS :    Yes,  I  agree w i th  you,  s i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t  a t  the  t ime o f  the  submiss ion  tha t  
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you  made to  the  board  d id  you not  apprec ia te  th is?  

MS DANIELS :    Mr  Cha i rman,  you must  remember  tha t  I  

was d ra f t ing  i t  fo r  Mr  S ingh and Mr  Koko and  a t  the  t ime I  

must  admi t  I  d id  no t  rea l l y  ask ,  you know,  in te r roga te  i t  to  

tha t  degree,  i t  has  been on re f lec t ion  and  the  subsequent  

quest ions tha t  these issues have come to  l igh t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t  i t  i s  d i f f i cu l t  to  th ink  tha t  – le t  me 

ask th is  quest ion  f i rs t .   D id  Mr  Koko say to  you d ra f t  an  

agreement ,  d ra f t  a  submiss ion  on  the  bas i s  tha t  we are  

ask ing  the  board  to  au thor ise  tha t  we conc lude an  10 

agreement  w i th  the  proposed owners  o f  OCM fo r  a  p re-

purchase.   I s  tha t  what  he  sa id  to  you? 

MS DANIELS :    That  was ins t ruc t ions,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON :    And d id  he  advance to  you h i s  reason o f  

Eskom seek ing  to  secure  coa l  supp ly  as  the  reason why i t  

was urgent  tha t  the  board  prov ides au thor isa t ion?  

MS DANIELS :    Yes,  tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  u rgency was  in  h is  

m ind and a l so  the  b ig  secur i t y  o f  supp ly  about  Hendr ina .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   One o f  the  th ings tha t  I  have sa id  

to  a  few members  o f  the  board ,  maybe two,  maybe th ree  20 

who have tes t i f ied ,  i s  i t  i s  d i f f i cu l t  fo r  me to  unders tand 

how they cou ld  no t  have seen tha t  the  reso lu t ion  tha t  was  

be ing  asked fo r,  f rom them,  was  a  reso lu t ion  tha t  they 

au thor ise  the  th ree  Eskom of f i c ia ls  to  conc lude a  

prepayment  ag reement  w i th  the  proposed owners  w i th  
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Tegeta ,  so  to  speak and not  w i th  G lencore .   I  have sa id  

tha t  i t  i s  d i f f i cu l t  fo r  me to  unders tand tha t  they a l l  d id  no t  

see tha t  because those tha t  have come here  seem to  –  

maybe one sa id  she saw i t  o r  he  saw i t ,  I  cannot  

remember,  bu t  I  th ink  Dr  Ngubane sa id  he  d id  no t  see i t ,  he  

was under  the  impress ion  or  he ,  as  fa r  as  he  was 

concerned,  the  board  was autho r is ing  the  conc lus ion  o f  

th is  p re -purchase agreement  w i th  G lencore  and not  w i th  

Tegeta .   Dr  Ngubane is  a  med ica l  docto r,  he  has  been a  

po l i t i c ian ,  he  was a  m in i s te r,  he  was a  Premier  o f  a  10 

prov ince,  he  was an ambassador,  I  th ink  he  was or  

cont inues to  be  a  bus inessman.   Then I  had Pro fessor  –  

was i t  P ro fessor  Na idoo?  

MR SELEKA SC :   Pa t  Na idoo,  yes ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  P ro f  Na idoo .   I  do  no t  know whethe r  

he  was the  one who sa id  he  d id  see i t  bu t  never the less  he  

s t i l l  con t inued to  th ink  he  was author i s ing  a  prepayment  

agreement  w i th  G lencore  and I  th ink  Ms  K le in  may have  

sa id  she d id  no t  remember  whether  she saw i t  o r  no t  bu t  

she a lso  s t i l l  thought  tha t  she was author i s ing  a  20 

prepayment  agreement  w i th  G lencore .   Now you are  say ing  

you d id  no t  p i ck  up  tha t  po in t ,  i s  tha t  r igh t?   You saw tha t  i t  

was –  you say you were  ins t ruc ted  to  d ra f t  a  submiss ion  

tha t  wou ld  ask  the  board  to  au tho r ise  the  conc lus ion  o f  an  

agreement  fo r  p repayment  w i th  the  proposed owners  bu t  
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you  say i t  d id  no t  c l i ck  to  you tha t  hang on,  bu t  why must  

we do tha t?   I s  tha t  what  you a re  say ing?  

MS DANIELS :    No,  tha t  i s  no t  what  I  am say ing ,  I  am 

say ing  tha t  when you ta lk  about  the  urgency.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  so  –  okay,  so  what  i s  your  pos i t ion  

in  te rms o f  d id  you not ice  tha t  the  –  you were  dra f t ing  a  

submiss ion  tha t  was say ing  the  board  shou ld  g ive  a  

reso lu t ion  tha t  au thor i ses  the  conc lus ion  o f  an  agreement  

w i th  the  proposed owners  as  opposed to  the  [ ind is t inc t ]  

12 .30  owners  a t  the  t ime? 10 

MS DANIELS :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    You say you d id  –  you knew you were  

do ing  tha t?  

MS DANIELS :    Yes,  tha t  was the  in ten t ion  because you 

w i l l  see  tha t  the  under l y ing  agreement  re fe rs  to  Tegeta .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   I  am sor ry,  you say the  under ly ing  

what?  

MR SELEKA SC :   Agreement .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Jus t  repeat .  

MS DANIELS :    Agreement .  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Jus t  repeat  the  par t  tha t  re la tes  to  what  

i s  under l y ing  someth ing?  

MS DANIELS :    The coa l  supp ly  agreement  tha t  we 

prepared,  i t  re fe rs  to  Tegeta ,  the  sources.  

CHAIRPERSON :    There  i s  a  pa r t  tha t  I  cou ld  no t  hear  
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because I  th ink  there  was a  techn ica l  p rob lem.   Would  you  

l i ke  to  s ta r t  tha t  sentence aga in  p lease?  

MS DANIELS :    I  sa id  tha t  when you look a t  the  under ly ing  

agreement  tha t  we were  asked to  p repare ,  the  coa l  supp ly  

( ind is t inc t  –  record ing  d i s to r ted)  resources.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  th ink  the  techno logy does not  want  me 

to  hear  the  who le  sentence.  

MR SELEKA SC :     She says …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t  I  th ink  I  unders tand you to  be  say ing  

the  submiss ion  and the  reso lu t ion  contempla ted  tha t  the  10 

agreement  wou ld  be  conc luded w i th  Tegeta  bu t  I  may be 

miss ing  someth ing  e lse  and I  do  no t  know whether  i t  i s  

someth ing  to  say  i f  you  look a t  the  submiss ion  or  i f  you  

look a t  the  reso lu t ion  there  is  someth ing  tha t  makes i t  

c lea r  tha t  i t  i s  Tegeta  tha t  was contempla ted .   I s  tha t  what  

you are  say ing?  

MS DANIELS :    In  the  coa l  supp ly  ag reement  tha t  I  was 

asked to  d ra f t ,  Mr  Cha i rman.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  okay,  ja .   No,  no ,  tha t  i s  f ine.   

Obv ious l y  the  ag reement  wou ld  have to  re f lec t  who a l l  the 20 

par t ies  to  the  agreement  were  and  i t  had to  re f lec t  Tegeta  

as  one o f  the  par t ies  because Tegeta  was the  p roposed 

owner  o f  OCM.  

MS DANIELS :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .   But  i f  you  were  aware  tha t  you were  
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d ra f t ing  a  submiss ion  tha t  wou ld  ask  the  board  to  au thor i se  

the  conc lus ion  o f  a  p repayment  ag reement  w i th  the  owners  

o f  OCM and not  –  o r  the  proposed owners ,  tha t  i s  Tegeta ,  

and not  G lencore ,  why d id  you not  ask  the  quest ion  why 

are  we –  why  do we seek to  conc lude prepayment  

agreement  w i th  peop le  who do not  own OCM when there  

are  peop le  who own the  OCM now?  Why d id  you  not  ask  

Mr  Koko tha t?  

MS DANIELS :    Mr  Cha i rman,  a t  the  t ime there  was a  due 

d i l igence exerc i se  underway so  i t  rea l l y  –  i t  rea l l y  d id  no t  10 

s t r i ke  me as odd and I  d id  no t  th ink  tha t ,  you know,  i t  was 

my p lace to  second-guess the  execut ives  a t  tha t  s tage,  I  

took  i t  a t  face  va lue .  

CHAIRPERSON :    No but  were  you not  the  lega l  adv iser  as  

we l l  as  the  company secre tary  a t  the  t ime?  

MS DANIELS :    No,  I  was not .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Which  one were  you not ,  o r  bo th?  

MS DANIELS :    I  was not  the  lega l  adv i se r,  I  was the  

company secre tary.   

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes bu t  i s  i t  no t  the  job  o f  the  company 20 

secre tary  –  does the  job  no t  o f  a  company secre tary  

inc lude g i v ing  lega l  adv i ce  to  the  board?  I  thought  so .  

MS DANIELS :    Ja ,  none o f  the  board  members  ac tua l l y  

asked fo r  adv ice  a t  tha t  t ime …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  bu t  they m ight  no t  ask  …[ in te rvenes]  



19 FEBRUARY 2021 – DAY 346 
 

Page 75 of 144 
 

MS DANIELS :    I  focused …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t  they m ight  no t  ask  because they do  

not  know but  you ,  as  a  lega l l y  qua l i f ied  person,  wou ld  see 

and then you can  a le r t  them to  a  po tent ia l  lega l  p rob lem,  i s  

i t  no t?   And i f  somebody does not  know,  i f  …[ in te rvenes]  

MS DANIELS :    That  i s  –  ja .   That  is  co r rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    I f ,  as  a  judge,  a  sc ien t is t  g i ves  me a  

cer ta in  document  tha t  ta lks  about  some sc ience,  I  m igh t  

no t  p ick  up  any danger  bu t  another  sc ien t is t  who looks a t  

the  document  tha t  m ight  have been g iven to  me might  p ick  10 

up someth ing  and say hang on ,  do  no t  s ign  th is ,  you  

rea l i se  tha t  these are  the  imp l ica t ions?  So you too ,  as  a  

company sec re tary,  lega l l y  qua l i f ied  –  and my  

unders tand ing  is  tha t  a  company secre tary  does adv ise  on  

lega l  compl iance  and so  on ,  so  i t  wou ld  have been your  

job ,  wou ld  i t  no t  have been,  to  adv i se  the  board  even i f  

they  d id  no t  ask  fo r  adv i ce  to  say  there  is  a  p rob lem here  

or  a t  leas t  p lease apprec ia te  tha t  th is  request ,  th is  

submiss ion  requ i res  you to  au thor ise  a ,  b ,  c ,  d  in  

c i rcumstances where  ord inar i l y  th is  shou ld  no t  be  the  case.   20 

I t  seeks you to  au thor i se  tha t  the  pre -purchase ag reement  

be  conc luded w i th  none owners  o f  OCM when they a re  

cur ren t  owners  o f  OCM and you wou ld  need to  say th is  i s  

p rob lemat ic ,  th is  i s  s t range.   Or  i f  you  thought  there  is  no  

prob lem,  adv ise  them,  hav ing  a le r ted  them to  th is  unusua l  



19 FEBRUARY 2021 – DAY 346 
 

Page 76 of 144 
 

fea ture  and adv ise  them to  say no tw i ths tand ing  th is ,  there  

is  no  prob lem because o f  a ,  b ,  c ,  d .  

MS DANIELS :    Mr  Cha i rman,  a t  the  t ime I  must  admi t  I  d id  

no t  do  tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  you see …[ in tervenes]  

MS DANIELS :    I  took  i t  a t  -  you know,  I  took  a t  face  va lue  

because i t  was the  Ch ie f  F inanc ia l  Off i cer  and Mr  Koko  

invo lved and I  d id  no t  do  tha t  a t  the  t ime.  

CHAIRPERSON :    You see,  i t  i s  d i f f i cu l t  fo r  me to  accept  

tha t .   You know,  as  I  see i t ,  th is  is  l i ke  a  s i tua t ion  where  10 

you want  to  buy a  ca r  and you know tha t  th is  car  be longs 

to  me but  you go and conc lude  an agreement  w i th  Mr  

Se leka,  you buy the  car  f rom Mr  Se leka who does not  own 

th is  car  and you  know I  am the  owner.   How do you not  

p ick  tha t  up?  

MS DANIELS :    You see,  when the  documents  came back  

f rom Mr  Koko and  Mr  S ingh they were  a l ready s igned.  

CHAIRPERSON :    They were  a l ready?  

MS DANIELS :    S igned.  

CHAIRPERSON :    S igned?  20 

MS DANIELS :    By  the  execut ives ,  yes .   S igned o f f .   So 

…[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am sor ry,  bu t  d id  you not  d ra f t  the  

submiss ion  yourse l f?  

MS DANIELS :    Not  a l l  o f  i t  because they made some 
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changes as  we l l .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes bu t  a l so ,  i f  they  made changes and  

i f  th is  was one o f  the  changes,  a l l  the  more  reason why  

you wou ld  need to  say to  them what  you have now put  in  

here  is  p rob lemat ic ,  what  i s  your  reason ing ,  why d id  you 

put  th is  in?    Because I  am not  su re  …[ in tervenes]  

MS DANIELS :    Mr  Cha i rman,  a t  the  t ime …[ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am not  sure  tha t  say ing  tha t  i t  came 

f rom them a l ready s igned or  they made amendments ,  

changes,  anyth ing ,  because to  me i t  seems tha t  the 10 

moment  you knew tha t  th is  document  was ask ing  the  board  

to  au thor ise  the  th ree  o f f i c ia ls  o f  Eskom to  buy f rom Mr  

Se leka a  car  tha t  be longs to  me and you know i t  be longs to  

me,  tha t  shou ld  be  prob lemat ic .   Can you see tha t?  

MS DANIELS :    I  can  see tha t  bu t  a t  the  same token,  I  

wou ld  no t  want  to  be  second-guess ing  these  sen ior  

execut ives .  

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  i t  i s  jus t  a  …[ in tervenes]  

MS DANIELS :    I t  i s  fo r  them to  pu t  the  s tu f f  be fore  the  

board  and the  board  to  a lso  in te r rogate  the  documenta t ion .  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  no ,  I  do  no t  th ink ,  Ms Dan ie ls ,  i t  i s  

about  second-guess ing .   None o f  these o f f i c ia l s  were  

lawyers ,  i s  i t  no t?  

MS DANIELS :    That  i s  co r rec t  bu t  they are  a l so  sen io r  

execut ives  in  the  company.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    You are  no t  suggest ing  tha t  you  d id  no t  

want  to  g ive  them co r rec t  adv ice  jus t  because they were  

sen io r,  cor rec t  lega l  adv ice  because they were  sen ior?  

MS DANIELS :    No,  tha t  i s  no t  wha t  I  am say ing .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  tha t  i s  why I  am say ing  to  you i f  i t  

wou ld  have been cor rec t  lega l  adv ice  to  say to  them lega l l y  

you cannot  buy coa l  –  you cannot  conc lude an agreement  

fo r  buy ing  coa l  f rom somebody who is  p roposed to  be  the  

owner  and there fore  cu r ren t ly  has  no  r i gh t  to  tha t  coa l .   I f  

tha t  was co r rec t  adv ice  i t  wou ld  no t  be  wrong fo r  you to  10 

ra ise  tha t  w i th  them,  wou ld  i t?  

MS DANIELS :    Cha i r,  I  agree w i th  you there .  

CHAIRPERSON :    You accept ,  h ’m.   I s  there  someth ing  you 

wanted to  add ea r l ie r  on  and I  in te r rup ted  you? 

MS DANIELS :    I  am jus t  check ing  the  documenta t ion  jus t  

to  make doub ly  sure .   I  th ink  we covered i t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  you see,  you have –  we l l ,  maybe the  

th ree  execut ives  w i l l  say  we l l ,  we knew tha t  we were  

ask ing  the  board  to  au thor ise  tha t  we conc lude  a  pre-

purchase agreement  w i th  non-owners ,  w i th  peop le  who  20 

were  no t  owners  o f  the  coa l  bu t  here  are  ou r  reasons wh ich  

make th is  th ing  tha t  appears  to  be  so  unusua l ,  jus t i f iab le ,  

wh ich  make i t  jus t i f iab le ,  we w i l l  see ,  bu t  i t  i s  s t range tha t  

about  12  or  so  board  members ,  some o f  whom I  th ink  are  

qu i te  h igh l y  qua l i f ied  and they say  they e i ther  d id  no t  see  
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th is  in  the  reso lu t ion  or  i f  they  saw i t  they  d id  no t  th ink  i t  

meant  anyth ing ,  as  fa r  as  they were  concerned they were  

au thor is ing  a  conc lus ion  o f  an  agreement  w i th  G lencore  

and th is  company secre tary,  who is  lega l l y  qua l i f ied ,  says 

she saw i t  bu t  she d id  no t  th ink  i t  was her  p lace  to  g ive  

lega l  adv ice  to  the  o f f i c ia ls .   You must  jus t  te l l  me i f  I  am 

summing up what  you say incor rec t ly.  

MS DANIELS :    Mr  Cha i r,  in  the  documents  tha t  I  have i f  

you  look a t  the  dra f t  tha t  I  sent ,  I  th ink  –  le t  me jus t  see,  i t  

i s  page –  Eskom 18,  509.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  509.  

MS DANIELS :    Yes.   There  is  an  emai l  to  Mr  Koko and the  

document  a t tached is  ve rs ion  one.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MS DANIELS :    And in  there  –  I  th ink  in  –  on  page 512  

under  the  key assumpt ions,  I  do  –  we –  th is  i s  the  dra f t  

tha t  I  p repared.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MS DANIELS :    You w i l l  see  tha t  I  pu t  there  the  t ransact ion  

be tween Opt imum Coa l  Mine and Oakbay Investments  20 

be ing  fo rmal l y  approved by  the  regu la tory  au thor i t ies .  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am sor ry,  jus t  te l l  me wh ich  c lause you  

are  read ing  f rom? 

MS DANIELS :    I t  i s  number  3 .2 .2 .  

CHAIRPERSON :    “The submiss ion  and dec is ion  requ i red   
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se t  ou t  here in  i s  based on the  fo l low ing key 

assumpt ions.  

3 .2 .2  The t ransact ion  be tween Opt imum Coa l  Mine 

(P ty)  L td  and Oakbay Investments /Tegeta  

Resources is  fo rmal ly  approved by  the  regu la to ry  

au thor i t ies . ”  

What  does tha t  mean in  the  contex t  o f  the  issue we are  

dea l ing  w i th?  

MS DANIELS :    Okay,  what  I  am say ing  is  tha t  th is  –  these  

th ings were  removed by  the  execut ives  in  the  f ina l  10 

submiss ion .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes bu t  be fore  they were  removed te l l  

me what  the i r  p resence wou ld  have meant  in  the  contex t  o f  

the  quest ion  we a re  dea l ing  w i th?  

MS DANIELS :    In  the  contex t  o f  the  quest ion ,  i t  wou ld  

have g i ven the  board  a  fu l le r  apprec ia t ion  o f  what  

t ransact ion  was about .  

CHAIRPERSON :    The t ransact ion  tha t  you were  ta lk ing  

about  there ,  namely  c lause 3 .1 .2 ,  what  t ransact ion  are  you 

ta lk ing  about?  20 

MS DANIELS :   Was tha t  Oakbay/Tegeta  was  buy ing  

Opt imum at  the  t ime.   

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes bu t  s t i l l  tha t  d id  no t  change the  fac t  

tha t  a t  the  t ime o f  the  –  tha t  d id  no t  change the  fac t  tha t  

the  board  was be ing  asked to  au thor ise  the  conc lus ion  o f  
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th is  ag reement  a t  the  t ime when Tegeta  wou ld  no t  be  the  

owners  o f  OCM.  

MS DANIELS :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MS DANIELS :    Bu t  you w i l l  a l so  remember  a t  the  IFC 

d iscuss ion  i t  was po in ted  out  tha t  the  acqu is i t ion  wou ld  

improve the  BEE s ta tus ,  so  there  was some apprec ia t ion 

tha t  th is  was in  t rans i t ion  and tha t  there  was go ing  to  be  a  

new . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  bu t  aga in  even tha t  s t i l l  doesn ’ t  10 

answer  the  quest ion  why conc lude  such an agreement  w i th  

a  non-owner  a t  the  t ime,  when the re  is  a  non-owner  tha t  i s  

known to  you as  Eskom and as  o f f i c ia ls .  

MS DANIELS:    I  th ink  tha t  i s  a  quest ion  tha t  you wou ld  

have to  ask  the  Execut ives  and the  Board .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Sor ry?  

MS DANIELS:    I  th ink  tha t  i s  a  quest ion  you wou ld  have to  

ask  the  execut ives  and the  Board .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l ,  you  too ,  because you were  the  

lega l  adv iso r,  you were  the  Company Secre tary,  as  fa r  as  I  20 

am concerned you were  supposed  to a le r t  them tha t  you 

cannot  conc lude  an agreement  w i th  a  non-owner  o f  the  

coa l  when the re  is  an  owner,  i sn ’ t  i t?    You accept  tha t?  

MS DANIELS:    I  accept  tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  Mr  Se leka?  
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ADV SELEKA SC:    Thank you Cha i r.    Ms . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    I  am sor ry,  you might  even have 

fo rgo t ten  the  quest ion  tha t  you were  on  when I  in te r rup ted  

you but  i f  you  made a  no te  –  I  hope you made a  no te  and  

you remember.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I  d id  bu t  she  answered i t  dur ing  – ja  

her  f i rs t  in te rac t ion  w i th  you Cha i r,  when she sa id  the  

mot iva t ion  was to  he lp  to  ge t  the  pu rchase o f  th is  

…[ ind is t inc t ]  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  ja .  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:   . . . so  because tha t  can on ly  be  the 

exp lanat ion  fo r  th is  as tound ing  dec is ion ,  Ms Dan ie ls .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    And Cha i r,  you see,  Ms Dan ie ls  the  

inc lus ion  o f  th is  p roposed owner,  one can t race  i t  back,  the  

emai ls ,  we l l  maybe you don ’ t  t race  i t  back because by  tha t  

t ime the  submiss ion  was made but  you cou ld  see when one  

o f  the  Board  members  sent  you quest ions,  and I  want  to  

re fe r  you to  the  page so  we can run  qu ick ly,  th rough what  I  

want  to  –  what  I  want  you to  po in t  ou t  to  the  Cha i rperson i f  20 

you cou ld  p lease  be on page 559 .   So,  one o f  the  Board  

members  sends  you quest ions  a f te r  you ’ve  sent  the  

submiss ion  to  them,  tha t  the  Board  shou ld  make a  round 

rob in  dec i s ion  on  the  9 t h  o f  March  and tha t ’s  Ms  Mar iam 

Cass im on page 559.  
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MS DANIELS:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    The quest ions  are  there  on  the  8 t h  o f  

December  2015 you ’ve  jus t  sent  them your  request  wh ich  

we see on –  a t  the  bo t tom o f  page 560 you sent  i t  a t  

5h52pm on 8  December  2015,  she responds a t  9h28pm on  

the  same date  and tha t  emai l  goes to  –  she asks 

quest ions,  you rece ived the  emai l  and then you fo rward  i t  

to  Mr  Ano j  S ingh.   Mr  Ano j  S ingh takes tha t  emai l  on  the  9  

December,  the  next  day and he  fo rwards i t  to  Mr  Er ic  

Wood.   Mr  Er ic  Wood  takes tha t  emai l  on  the  9 t h  o f  March 10 

and he fo rwards  i t  to  Mr  Mohamed Bobat ,  you see those  

emai ls  on  page 559?  

MS DANIELS:    Yes,  I  see them.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    And what  does Mr  Mohamed Bobat  do  

w i th  th is  i s  apparent  on  page 562.   So,  the  emai l  now 

comes f rom h im,  a lso  9  March 2015,  he ’s  rep ly ing  to  Mr  

Er ic  Wood and the  sub jec t  l ine  i s ,  

“Urgent  request  to  approve the  pre -pu rchase o f  coa l  

f rom Opt imum”.  

 And now you see  tha t  there  is  a  fon t  in  red  co lour  20 

wh ich  a re  inser ted  aga ins t  the  quest ions on  page 562.  

MS DANIELS:    Yes,  I  see tha t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    You there?  

MS DANIELS:    Yes,  I ’m  there .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Was i t  apparent  to  you tha t ,  the  
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answers  to  the  quest ions were  com ing f rom outs ide  and not  

f rom…[ in tervenes ] .  

MS DANIELS:    No.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    And not  f rom Mr  Ano j  S ingh h imse l f?  

MS DANIELS:    No,  i t  was not ,  the  emai ls  came f rom Mr  

Ano j  S ingh to  me.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    So ,  to  you they came f rom Mr  Ano j  

S ingh?  

MS DANIELS:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    There  –  i f  you  go to  page 565 ,  a t  the  10 

bot tom o f  page 565 wh ich  goes over  to  page 566,  there  is ,  

aga in  th is  emai l  f rom Mr  Mohamed Bobat ,  9  December  

2015 a t  8h04am to  Mr  Er ic  Wood and on the  next  page you  

see fu r ther  add i t ions  to  the  answers  tha t  a re  be ing  

prov ided.   Now you see both  the  add i t ions  in  red  and now 

there  a re  those in  b lue ,  page 566.  

MS DANIELS:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    A re  you there?  

MS DANIELS:    I ’m  there .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    And the  answer,  th is  t ime around,  the  20 

answer  to  the  f i rs t  quest ion  i t  incorpora tes  the  concept ,  

po ten t ia l  buyer.   So,  the  las t  –  the  answer  to  pa rag raph  

one,  the  las t  par t ,  wh ich  is  in  b lue ,  i t  says ,  

“Consequent ly,  Eskom is  thus in  no  worse  f inanc ia l  

pos i t ion  than before  the  t ransact ion  bu t  has 
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m i t iga ted  the  secur i t y  o f  supp ly  r i sk  and has funded 

i t s  work ing  cap i ta l  f inanc ing  cost  v ia  the  d i scounts  

be ing  o f fe red  by  the ,  and you  see tha t  word ,  

po ten t ia l  buyer ” .  

You see tha t?  

MS DANIELS:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    And these quest ions answered  in  th is  

way by,  what  po ten t ia l l y  looks to  be  Mr  Mohamed Bobat ,  

were  u l t imate ly  fo rwarded to  Ms Cass im.   You remember  

you wou ld  have taken those answers  and fo rwarded the  10 

emai l  to  he r.  

MS DANIELS:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Le t ’s  see because…[ in tervenes] .  

MS DANIELS:    Bu t  my answers  came f rom Mr  S ingh .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja ,  on  page ,  le t ’s  see,  on  page 656  

where  I  was,  on  the  bo t tom o f  the  page is  tha t  emai l  o f  Mr  

Mohamed Bobat  a t  9  December  2015 a t  8h04  about  

tha t…[ in tervenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    What  page is  tha t  aga in?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Page 565,  Cha i r.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  a t  the  bo t tom o f  tha t  page .   So,  i t  

i s  Mr  Mohamed Bobat  rep l y ing  to  Mr  Er ic  Wood,  they have  

kept  the  same emai l  o f  Ms Mar iam,  they ’ re  s imp ly  add ing  

answers  to  her  quest ions.  Mr  Er ic  Wood then fo rwards tha t  



19 FEBRUARY 2021 – DAY 346 
 

Page 86 of 144 
 

emai l  to  Mr  Ano j  S ingh,  9  December  2015 a t  8h11 ,  so  he  

rece ived i t  a t  8h04,  he  fo rwards i t  8h11 to  Mr  Ano j  S ingh so  

he  says,  

“P lease see responses be low,  as  d iscussed,  

regards Er ic ” .  

 The emai l  above,  i s  then Mr  Ano j  S ingh ,  

Cha i rperson a t  8h55 on the  9 t h  o f  December  he  seems to  

rep l y  to  h is  PA,  Po l l y  Ndzotyana,  tha t  was Mr  S ingh ’s  PA,  

Mr  Dan ie l s?  

MS DANIELS:    Mr  Se leka,  can you jus t  g ive  me the  page  10 

re ference,  I  seem to…[ in tervenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    I ’m  los ing  h im or  he ’s  los ing  me as we l l  

now.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Page 565.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  am a t  565 and I  can see Mohamed 

Bobat  bu t  I  see on ly  the  sub jec t ,  I  don ’ t  see the  ac tua l  

content  o f  the  emai l .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  Cha i r,  i t  s ta r ts  on  page –  we l l  i t  

goes ove r  to  566.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l  a t  566 I  see an emai l  f rom Mar iam 20 

Cass im.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

MS DANIELS:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    To  Ms Dan ie ls .    

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  bu t  what  you see there  Cha i r,  i t ’s  
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an  ed i ted  emai l  o f  Ms Mar iam Cass im because her  o r ig ina l  

emai l  on l y  has quest ions.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Repeat  tha t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Her  o r ig ina l  emai l ,  Ms Dan ie ls ,  on ly  

has her  quest ions .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Quest ions?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Quest ion  1 ,  2 ,  3  and 4 .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:    What  you a re  see ing  there  now,  the  

fon ts  wh ich  a re  i n  red  and b lue  a re  the  answers  to  those  

quest ions.  

CHAIRPERSON:     And who i s  g iv ing  the  answers?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    So ,  then you see –  i f  you  go back to  

565,  when Mr  E r ic  Wood fo rwards the  emai l  to  Mr  Ano j  

S ingh,  he  says,   

 “P lease see responses be low as d iscussed” .  

CHAIRPERSON:    So ,  the  emai l  a t  the  bo t tom o f  565 

comes f rom Mr  Mohamed Bobat?  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And th is  i s  on  the  morn ing  o f  the  day on  

wh ich  Mr  Nh lanh la  Nene was f i red ,  9  December  2015? 

ADV SELEKA SC:    I  be l ieve  so  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  we l l  on  th is  day,  Mr  Mohamed 
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Bobat ,  who the  fo l low ing day,  I  th ink  on  the  10 t h  o r  11 t h  met  

w i th  Mr  Des van Rooyen and they d iscussed tha t  Mr  Bobat  

wou ld  be  –  h i s  adv i ce ,  our  Ch ie f  o f  S ta f f ,  I  fo rge t  who was  

Ch ie f  o f  Sta f f  and who was adv i sor,  bu t  on  the  morn ing  o f  

the  9 t h  o f  December  he  is  engaged in  some d iscuss ions  

invo l v ing  what  i s  happen ing  o r  about  to  happen in  Eskom 

in  re la t ion  to  Tegeta  and coa l  and so  on .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Indeed.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t  bu t  –  so  are  you say ing  

tha t  Mr  Er i c  Wood  was  he  send ing  to  Mr  Bobat  the  10 

document  on  page 566?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  Cha i r  so  tha t  Cha i rperson can  

fo l low,  le t ’s  s ta r t  where  I  s ta r ted ,  page 559.  

CHAIRPERSON:   559?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    559.  

CHAIRPERSON:    R igh t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Those are  the  or ig ina l  emai l .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  th is  i s  an  emai l  s ta r t ing  w i th  the  one 

on the  top  o r  the  one a t  the  bo t tom? 

ADV SELEKA SC:    We shou ld  s ta r t  w i th  the  one in  the  20 

midd le .  

CHAIRPERSON:    That  i s  the  one f rom Mr  S ingh,  Ano j  

S ingh?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    The one f rom Ms Mar iam Cass im.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  tha t  i s  addressed to  Ms Dan ie ls .  
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ADV SELEKA SC:    Cor rec t ,  Cha i r  and Mr  

S ingh…[ in tervenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    And who was Mar iam Cass im? 

ADV SELEKA SC:    She was one o f  the  Board  members .  

CHAIRPERSON:    One o f?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    One o f  the  Board  members .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  o f  Eskom? 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    A l r igh t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    So  they wou ld  have rece ived the  emai l  10 

f rom Ms Dan ie ls  on  page 560.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh yes,  tha t  i s  –  they wou ld  have –  a l l  

the  Board  members  wou ld  have rece ived the  emai l  f rom Ms 

Dan ie ls  in  c los ing  the  submiss ion .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Cor rec t  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    To  the  Board  about  th is  t ransact ion .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    And then she  sends an emai l  to  Ms 

Dan ie ls /Mr  Ano j  S ingh,  where  she  ra ises  cer ta in  quest ions 

about  the  content  o r  the  sub jec t  mat te r  o f  the  submiss ion .  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Cor rec t  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja  she asks fou r  quest ions.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    And you w i l l  see  there ,  the re  are  no  
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red  fon ts  o r  b lue…[ in tervenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    That  emai l  Cha i r,  i s  fo rwarded,  i f  you  

go up,  i s  fo rwarded to  Mr  Er ic  Wood by  Mr  Ano j  S ing  on  the 

9 t h .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  i t ’s  fo rwarded to  Mr  Er ic  Wood by  Mr  

Ano j  S ingh.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Who has rece ived i t  f rom Ms Mar iam 

Cass im.  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Cor rec t ,  who a lso  rece ived i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    And sent  f rom her  Iphone,  then  you go 

up,  you see Mr  Er ic  Wood then fo rwards i t  on  to  Mr  

Mohamed Bobat .  

CHAIRPERSON:    And what  page do we go to ,  to  f ind  tha t?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I t ’s  above,  the  one above Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  yes ,  okay.   So,  he  sends i t  to  Mr 

Mohamed Bobat .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    That ’s  co r rec t .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    And…[ in tervenes] .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    A t  7h13.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay 7h13 on the  9 t h  o f  December.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    On the  9 t h  o f  December.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  r igh t .  



19 FEBRUARY 2021 – DAY 346 
 

Page 91 of 144 
 

ADV SELEKA SC:    So ,  tha t ’s  ou tgo ing ,  tha t ’s  ou tgo ing ,  

now,  on  the  page  where  we were ,  you see the  rep l ies ,  the  

responses.  

CHAIRPERSON:    That ’s  565.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    That ’s  565.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Then Mohamed Bobat  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC:   Rep l ies .  

CHAIRPERSON:     . . . rep l ies  to  Mr  Er ic  Wood.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    A t  8h04.    

CHAIRPERSON:    A t  8h04.  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And the  sub jec t  i t  s t i l l  the  same “urgent  

request  to  approve the  p re-pu rchase o f  coa l  f rom Opt imum 

Coa l  P ty  L im i ted .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes and they are  keep ing  th is  emai l  o f  

Ms Mar iam Cass im now they had a i red  tha t  responses to  

her  quest ions.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  so  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    . . .on  the  face  o f  i t ,  i t  i s  Mr  Bobat  who is  20 

prov id ing  answers .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    He is  p rov id ing  answers  to  quest ions  
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tha t  a re  –  were  asked by  a  member  o f  the  Eskom Board  to  

o f f i c ia ls  o f  Eskom.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Correc t  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And not  to  h im.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Not  to  h im.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  bu t  what  happened was tha t  the  

Board  members  quest ions were  sent  to  Ms Dan ie ls  and Mr  

S ingh.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And Mr  S ingh passed h is  quest ions to  Mr  10 

Er ic  Wood,  Mr  E r ic  Wood passed  them to  Mr  Bobat ,  Mr  

Bobat  p rov ided the  answers  . . . [ in tervenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC:    The answers .  

CHAIRPERSON:    . . . in  red  a t  page  566.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Correc t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    And then sent  these –  the  document  a t  

page 566 together  wh ich  conta ins  answers  i n  red  to  the  

quest ions o f  the  Board  member  to  Er ic  Wood.  

ADV SELEKA SC:     Yes,  ja ,  he  requested . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Who I  assume wi l l  send i t  to  Mr  Ano j  20 

S ingh.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Which is  exact ly  what  he  is  say ing  

there  in  h i s  emai l ,  he  says:  

“P lease see responses be low as d iscussed. ”  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  there  he  says on  the  9 t h  o f  
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December.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    E leven minutes  past  e igh t  in  the  

morn ing :  

“H i  Ano j ,  

P lease see responses be low as asked. ”  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Those are  the  responses p rov ided by  Mr  

Mohamed Bobat .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Cor rec t .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  r igh t  so  we l l  when I  heard  the  

ev idence re la t ing  to  Mr  Bobat  and  h is  be ing  appo in ted  as  

e i ther  an  adv i sor  o r  Ch ie f  o f  S ta f f  to  Mr  Des van Rooyen on 

the  10 t h  o r  11 t h  in  the  manner  i n  wh ich  tha t  appo in tments  

seems to  have been made,  one o f  the  quest ions I  asked 

was whether  he  was not  employed or  cou ld  he  be g iven an 

o f fe r  jus t  l i ke  tha t  and he is  sa id  to  accept  i t ,  he  doesn ’ t  

even want  to  go  and th ink  about  i t ,  he  accepted on the  spot  

and ye t  Mr  van Rooyen was I  th ink  say ing  he  d idn ’ t  know 

h im,  o r  he  may  have seen h im  once in  s ix  years  or  20 

someth ing ,  o r  maybe tha t  was not  Mr  Bobat ,  maybe i t  was 

the  o ther  person.  

 Okay,  a l r igh t ,  we l l  I  am t ry ing  to  –  so  now I  know 

tha t  on  the  9 t h  he  was busy a t  Reg iments  w i th  mat te rs  

re la t ing  to  Eskom.  
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ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay now I  unders tand,  now I  fo l low,  yes  

thank you Mr  Se leka.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Then i t  seems they are  no t  say ing  the i r  

sense to  h i s  PA,  he  says to  h i s  PA on  tha t  same page the  

PA u l t imate ly  Cha i r,  the  emai l s  a re  no t  in  sequence,  

Cha i rperson w i l l  have to  go  to  page 554,  she u l t imate ly  

fo rwards i t  to  Ms Suzanne Dan ie ls .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Page 554?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    554.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Th i s  i s  the  emai l  in  the  m idd le  i s  f rom 

Pau l i  N tochane . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC:    On beha l f  o f .  

CHAIRPERSON:    On beha l f  o f  Ano j  S ingh.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    That  i s  r igh t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    For  some reason she emphas is  the  “on  

beha l f  o f ”  Ano j  S ingh,  she sends i t  a t  n ine  m inu tes  past  

n ine ,  December  9  2015 to  Ms  Dan ie l s  and she says 

responses to  Board  Quer ies .   She says:  

“H i  Suzanne,   20 

Responses to  the  quest ions ra ised by  board  

members  i s  as  fo l lows on the  reso lu t ion . ”  

I  take  i t  tha t  what  then she puts  in  under  one,  two ,  th ree ,  

four  i s  exact ly  what  came f rom Mr  Bobat .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    As  is .  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  she has f i led  and I  guess tha t  i s  

someth ing  tha t  Ms Cass im had not  asked.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    That  i s  the  quest ion  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh she ra ised,  h ’m . . .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I t  says  has –  le t ’s  see.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  “has th is  p roposa l  been approved or  

recommended by  the  Board  IFC” .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And the  answer  i s  a  spec ia l  Board  IFC 

was he ld  th is  morn ing  to  cons ider  th is  mat te r  and we were  10 

comfor tab le  to  recommend the  approva l  to  the  Board .    So 

now th is  i s  be ing  sent  to  Ms Dan ie ls  as  answers  tha t  come 

f rom Mr  S ingh?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Correc t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    In  fac t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MS DANIELS:      Can I  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Th is  pa r t ,  th is  quest ion  5  was i t  among  

the  quest ions f rom Ms Cass im,  I ’m  ta lk ing  about  four  

quest ions.  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  tha t  quest ion  wasn ’ t  there ,  bu t  i t  

wou ld  have been a  request  made by  Ms Veroshn i  Na idoo.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ms Dan ie l s  w i l l  reca l l ,  she  was he re  

Cha i rperson and she sa id  she asked k ind ly  ensure  tha t  IFC 
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app roves the  submiss ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m,  we l l  obv ious ly  the  quest i on  tha t  

a r ises  i s  why Mr  S ingh was not  ab le  to  respond to  these 

quest ions ra ised  by  the  Board  Member  on  h is  own be ing  

the  Ch ie f  F inanc ia l  Off i cer  o f  Eskom,  and why he needed 

outs ide  ass i s tance.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes indeed Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   And th is  i s  about  the  submiss ion  so  th i s  

i s  be fo re  the  guarantee,  i t  i s  the  submiss ion ,  I  know in  h i s  10 

a f f idav i t  he  g ives  an  answer  bu t  the  answer  re la tes  to  the 

guarantee,  why he went  ou t  aga in  to  seek adv ice  f rom Er ic  

Wood and he says:  

“ I  fu r ther  w ish  to  po in t  ou t  tha t  a t  the  t ime I  thought  

i t  p rudent  –  bu t  th is  i s  the  guaran tee –  I  thought  i t  

p rudent  to  seek adv i ce  f rom Wood as to  the  op t ions  

presented by  ABSA Bank regard ing  the  guarantee 

as  he  cou ld  proper l y  adv ise  us  w i th  regard  to  h is  

past  bank ing  exper ience. ”  

I  am not  sure  whethe r  he  dea ls  w i th  th is  to  g ive  the  20 

reasons fo r  seek ing  th is  adv i ce  bu t  I  am sure  he  w i l l  

exp la in  when he i s  he re .  

 And Ms Venete  K le in  had a  background in  bank ing  

as  we l l ,  I  wonder  why they d idn ’ t  ask  fo r  her  adv i ce .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay a l r igh t .  
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ADV SELEKA SC:   So  tha t  emai l  Cha i r  i f  the  Cha i rpe rson 

is  s t i l l  on  page 554 a t  the  top  o f  tha t  page is  then Ms  

Suzanne Dan ie ls ,  a f te r  hav ing  rece ived the  emai l  f rom Ms 

Das insk i  she fo rwards i t  to  Ms Merr iam Cass im.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I t  i s  a t  page 556? 

ADV SELEKA SC:    554.  

MS DANIELS:   554.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    554 Cha i r.   So then Ms Dan ie l s  i s  ab le  

to  respond . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh.   10 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja ,  and she a lso  says “see be low,  best  

regards” .  

CHAIRPERSON:    A t  th is  s tage Ms Dan ie ls  d id  you not  

know the  journey tha t  th is  emai l  had t rave l led?  

MS DANIELS:    No Mr  Cha i rman  I  d id  no t  know tha t  the  

journey,  the  ex tens i ve  journey tha t  i t  had taken.    My f i rs t  

exposure  to  tha t  was in  2018 when I  rece ived quer ies  f rom 

the  Mai l  &  Guard ian .  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  mean quest ion  2  was “p lease conf i rm 

tha t  the  coa l  w i l l  be  pu rchased a t  a  5% d iscoun t  to  the 20 

pr ice  in  the  cu r ren t  agreement ” ,  why shou ld  Mr  Ano j  S ingh 

not  know the  answer  to  tha t  quest ion ,  why shou ld  he  go 

back to  Mr  Er ic  Wood and the  Tegeta  peop le  and  

Reg iments ,  because tha t  i s  in fo rmat ion  tha t  ough t  to  have  

been known to  h im a t  the  t ime o f  –  be fo re  there  was the  
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dec is ion  to  make a  submiss ion  to  the  Board ,  i sn ’ t  i t?    I sn ’ t  

i t  Ms Dan ie ls ,  i s  tha t  no t  some in fo rmat ion  tha t  he  shou ld  

have known actua l l y  a l l  o f  them shou ld  have known? 

MS DANIELS:    He shou ld  have known a l l  o f  tha t ,  you now 

the  f inanc ia l  const ruc t  in  the  submiss ion  document  came 

f rom h im,  o r  I  assumed a t  the  t ime tha t  i t  came f rom h im.    

I t  i s  c lear  the  he  had some outs ide  he lp .  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.    Okay,  Mr  Se leka?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Thank you Cha i r.    Ms  Cass im 

u l t imate ly  responds Cha i rperson and says she is  happy 10 

w i th  the  responses.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Sor ry?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I  say  Ms Cass im then approved  say ing  

she is  happy w i th  the  responses,  her  emai l  i s  a t tached to  

her  a f f idav i t  Cha i r  wh ich  is  in  a  separa te  bund le .  

 Cha i r  we cou ld  go  to  those quest ions,  bu t  in  the  

in te res t  o f  t ime le t ’s  see when those who . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l  the  –  I  don ’ t  want  you to  abandon  

impor tan t  i ssues,  so  i f  i t  i s  impor tan t  to  do  jus t i ce  you can 

dea l  w i th  them.  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja ,  I  th ink  i t  may be more  appropr ia te  

to  ask  Mr  S ingh  about  the  quest ions,  h is  quest ions,  h is  

answers  I  beg ou r  pardon.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l  tha t  i s  f ine ,  bu t  i t  may be tha t  on  

some we can get  in fo rmat ion  f rom Ms Dan ie l s ,  because she 
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was the  Company Secre tary  and she had a  du ty  to  ra ise  

quest ions i f  she  was be ing  ins t ruc ted  to  do  th ings tha t  she  

d id  no t  unders tand,  o r  tha t  were  quest ionab le .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    So  when I  say  le t ’s  t ry  and cover  as  

much as  poss ib le  I  don ’ t  mean tha t  we dea l  w i th  impor tan t  

mat te rs  in  a  super f i c ia l  way.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.    Wel l  Ms  Dan ie ls  –  I  th ink  what  I  

cou ld  ask  you in  regard  to  these quest ions,  perhaps is  the  

one –  number  4  wh ich  is  on  page  555.   The quest ion  they 10 

asked is :    

“ I s  Opt imum the  on ly  m ine tha t  can supp ly  coa l  

to  Hendr ina?  Have a l l  o ther  supp ly  op t ions 

been invest iga ted?”  

 Would  you have known the  answer  to  tha t  

quest ion?  

MS DANIELS:    No. . .   I  mean,  the  f i rs t  pa r t  i s  tha t  Opt imum 

is  the  on ly  m ine because i t  i s  r igh t  next  to  Hendr ina  Power  

S ta t ion  and i t  was one o f  the  reasons why Hendr ina  was 

bu i l t  there .   That  i s  f rom the  min is t ry.    20 

 Have a l l  o ther  supp ly  op t ions been  invest iga ted?  

A t  the  t ime,  I  wou ld  no t  have known tha t  w i thout  hav ing  to  

speak to  the  opera t iona l  peop le .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja .   Wel l ,  th is  i s  m ight  take  us  back to  

tha t  quest ion  o f  the  owner  and proposed owner  because a t  
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the  t ime the  owners  were  OCM/Glencore .    

And the  quest ion  is  whether  as  a  mat te r  o f  fac t . . .   

Wel l ,  whethe r  the  board  was to ld .   Now tha t  i s  a  mat te r  o f  

ac t .   OCM was s t i l l  supp ly ing  coa l  to  Eskom at  th is  t ime.    

So th is  quest ion  wh ich  is  seek ing  to  enqu i re  f rom 

you fo r  the  execut ives  whethe r  OCM is  the  on ly  m ine tha t  

can supp ly  to  Hendr ina .    

Shou ld  i t  no t  have been answered by  –  and tha t  

wou ld  have defeated the  submiss ion  –  i f  i t  was answered 

by  –  the  cor rec t  fac ts :   Yes,  OCM is  in  fac t  s t i l l  supp ly ing  10 

to  Hendr ina .   Because tha t  was what  was happen ing  a t  the  

t ime.   CDH knows tha t .    

CHAIRPERSON:    And i t  was supp ly ing  a t  one- f i f t y?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I t  was supp ly ing  a t  one- f i f t y  pe r  ton .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    And i t  had sa id :   We are  coming out  o f  

bus iness rescue.   G lencore  w i l l  fund.  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    And they  w i l l  car ry  on  w i th  the  

agreement  as  i t  was.   So tha t  quest ion  needed a  cor rec t  20 

answer.   What  i s  your  comment  on  tha t?  

MS DANIELS:    I  am not  sure  I  unders tand the  quest ion  

fu l l y.   A re  you say ing  tha t  I  shou ld  have answered tha t?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Okay.   No,  I  am not  say ing  you  shou ld  

have answered tha t .   I  am ask ing ,  aga in ,  whethe r  –  i f  you  
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were  aware  tha t  OCM was in  fac t  supp ly ing  coa l?   OCM 

had under taken to  supp ly  coa l  a t  the  pr ice  o f  the  ex i s t ing  

CSA.    

MS DANIELS:    That  was pa r t  o f  the  meet ing  tha t  I  a t tend 

on the  24 t h  o f  November.   You w i l l  reca l l  f rom my ear l ie r  

tes t imony.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  tha t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MS DANIELS:    I t  was ment ioned in  the  submiss ion .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

MS DANIELS:    So  there  is  a  l ine  in  the  submiss ion  about  10 

tha t  the  owners  wou ld  cont inue w i th  the i r  supp ly.    

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  tha t  quest ion  was,  i s  Opt imum the  

on ly  m ine tha t  can supp ly  coa l  to  Hendr ina .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    H ’m.  

CHAIRPERSON:    The answer  does not  answer  tha t  

quest ion .   Ins tead,  i t  ta lks  about  means o f  ge t t ing  coa l  a t  a  

cer ta in  p r ice .   I t  says  there  is  no  o ther  means o f  ge t t ing 

coa l  a t  a  p r ice  o f  R 150,00 per  ton .   That  i s  no t  what  was 

asked.   The ques t ion  was:   I s  Opt imum the  on ly  m ine tha t  

can supp ly  coa l  to  Hendr ina?  What  was the  cor rec t  answer  20 

to  tha t  quest ion  a t  the  t ime,  to  your  knowledge? 

MS DANIELS:    To  my knowledge i t  wou ld  have been  

Opt imum as the  on ly  m ine tha t  can  supp ly  Hendr ina .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.   And then the  next  quest ion  was:   

have a l l  o the r  supp ly  op t ions been invest iga ted?  To you 
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knowledge,  what  wou ld  have been the  co r rec t  answer?  

MS DANIELS:    I f  I  sa id  yes,  they wou ld  have to  exp la in  

what  they were  and a l so  h igh l igh t ing  add i t iona l  cos ts  in  

te rms o f  log i s t i cs  to  ge t  the  coa l  to  Hendr ina .  

CHAIRPERSON:    When you look a t  tha t  answer.   There  is  

no  o ther  means o f  ge t t ing  coa l  a t  a  p r ice  o f  R150 per  ton .   

To  the  ex ten t  tha t  OCM was supp ly ing  coa l  a t  tha t  p r ice ,  

tha t  answer  was mis lead ing .   Would  you not  ag ree?  

MS DANIELS:    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Because you d id  no t  need to  –  Eskom 10 

d id  no t  need to  have a  pre-purchase agreement  w i th  Tegeta  

in  o rder  to  have coa l  a t  R150 pe r  ton  f rom OCM.   I t  d id  no t  

need tha t  t ransac t ion .  

MS DANIELS:    I t  d id  no t  need tha t  t ransact ion  Mr  Cha i r.   

That  you are  cor rec t .  So i t  i s  sor t  o f  an  open-ended 

answer.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   So . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MS DANIELS:    I t  answers  the  quest ion  on  the  face  o f  i t  

bu t  i t  i s  more  what  i t  does not  say.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l ,  no  i t  does  not  answer  the  quest ion  20 

on the  face  o f  i t  bu t  i t  seems to  serve  a  cer ta in  purpose  

because the  quest ion  d id  no t  ta lk  about  the  means.   I t  

s imp ly  asked:   I s  Opt imum the  on ly  m ine tha t  can  supp ly  

coa l  to  Hendr ina?  Two:   Have a l l  o ther  supp ly  op t ions  

been invest iga ted?   
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 And they say the re  is  no  o ther  means o f  ge t t ing  

coa l  a t  a  p r ice  o f  R 150,00 but  the  fac t  o f  the  mat te r  i s ,  

w i thout  th is  t ransact ion  w i th  Tegeta ,  they cou ld  and were  

ge t t ing  coa l  f rom Opt imum for  R 150,00 per  ton .  

 So the  t ransact ion  was not  necessary  fo r  Eskom 

to  ge t  coa l  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MS DANIELS:    No.  

CHAIRPERSON:    . . . f rom Opt imum f rom R 150,00 per  ton .  

MS DANIELS:    No,  because tha t  agreement  was in  p lace .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:    H ’m.  

CHAIRPERSON:    So  th is  was mis lead ing .   I t  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

MS DANIELS:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I t  sought  to  conv ince board  members .   I t  

sought  to  say to  them:   You know,  we –  th is  t ransact ion  is  

go ing  to  g ive  us  coa l  a t  a  very  good pr i ce  tha t  we do not  

have.   But  the  fac t  o f  the  mat te r  i s ,  tha t  was a  p r ice  tha t  

they were  hav ing  w i th  OCM at  the  t ime.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Indeed.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Wi thout  any agreement  w i th  Tege ta .  

MS DANIELS:    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]   

CHAIRPERSON:    You accept  tha t?  

MS DANIELS:    I  accept  tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    And now. . .   You saw these answers  
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inc lud ing  th i s  one.   I f  you  app ly  your  m ind to  these  

answers  be fore  you sent  them o f f  to  the  board  member,  

Ms Cass im.   Or  they were  sent  by  Mr  Ano j  S ingh.  

MS DANIELS:    They were  sent  by  Mr  Ano j  S ingh and I  

fo rwarded them to  Ms Cass im.    

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

MS DANIELS:    Qu i te  qu ick  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    D id  you app ly  your  m ind to  them? 

MS DANIELS:    Qu i te  qu ick ly.   I  d id  app ly  my mind to  them 

because these came f rom the  Ch ie f  F inanc ia l  Off i ce r.   So I  10 

was not  go ing  to  –  l i ke  I  sa id ,  I  was not  go ing  to  second 

guess what  he  had put  down there .   I  had in te rpre ted  these 

quest ions tha t  you asked more  o f  a  fund ing  natu re .    

CHAIRPERSON:    Mr  Se leka.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    H ’m.   A l r igh t .   Le t  us  see,  po in t  –  

quest ion  4  has –  i t  has  an  e lement  o f  confus ion  in  i t  and i t  

seems to  requ i re  an  exp lanat ion  f rom the  board  in  c lear  

te rms.  

 You. . .   I  mean,  i t  shou ld  –  a  quest ion  asked in  

tha t  manner :   I s  Opt imum the  on ly  m ine tha t  can  supp ly  20 

coa l  to  Hendr ina?    

 The board  member  i s  e i the r  under  the  impress ion  

tha t  Opt imum is  unab le  to  supp ly,  so  we have to  he lp  i t  

w i th  a  cash in jec t ion  so  tha t  i t  can  supp ly.    

 You see tha t?   Because the re  is  a  p repayment  
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request  i f  you  look a t  quest ion  1 .  

MS DANIELS:    Yes?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Bu t  tha t  confus ion  is  no t  c lear.   Look  

a t  quest ion  1  Ms Dan ie ls .   I t  reads :  

“P lease exp la in  the  decrease in  invento ry  

days?”  

 That  i s  on  page 554.   The submiss ion  reads tha t :  

“The coa l  purchase w i l l  be  prepa id  in  te rms. . . ”  

 So I  am s t rugg l ing  to  unders tand how th is  wou ld  

t rans la te  in to  work ing  cap i ta l  sav ing .   And then there  i s  a  10 

long answer  there  bu t  i t  goes on to  say:  

“Th is  amount ,  wh ich  is  the  R 1 .7  b i l l i on ,  can 

be u t i l i sed  to  make the  prepayment  by  

ins t i tu t ing  the  pre-purchase ag reement  wh ich  

w i l l  count  as  par t  o f  work ing  cap i ta l .  

I t  w i l l  pu t  invento ry  back to  54-days.  

The OCM coa l  i s  p ledged to  Eskom as secur i t y  

and i t  fo rms par t  o f  inventory.  

Under  inventory  perspect ive ,  the  t ransact ion  

remains  unchanged.  20 

Consequent ly,  Eskom is  thus in  no  ways in  a  

f inanc ia l  pos i t ion  than before  the  t ransact ion  

bu t  has m i t iga ted  the  secur i t y  o f  supp ly  r i sk  

and has funded  i t  work ing  cap i ta l  f inanc ing  

costs  v ia  the  d i scounts  be ing  o f fe red  by  the  
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po ten t ia l  buyer. ”  

 There  we have tha t  po ten t ia l  buyer.   I t  i s  –  do  

you fo l low tha t  answer?   To  me i t  i s  convo lu ted .    

CHAIRPERSON:    I  am sor ry.   You were  read ing  f rom what  

page?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    554 Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    554.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    The answer  to  quest ion  1 .    

MS DANIELS:    Mr  Se leka,  these  quest ions were  asked o f  

the  respons ib le  o f f i c ia ls .  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

MS DANIELS:    So  you know,  I  wou ld  no t  go  and nose p ick  

i t .   A t  th is  po in t ,  the  board  member  asked the  quest ions.   

The Ch ie f  F inanc ia l  Of f i cer  p rov ided the  answers .   And I  

p rov ide  i t  to  the board  member.   She seemed to  have  

unders tood them because she was comfor tab le  w i th  them.    

 I  am not  sure ,  you know,  how I  needed to  

in te r rogate  a t  tha t  s tage because the  quest ions were  asked 

o f  the  peop le  who submi t ted  –  who s igned o f f  the 

submiss ion .    20 

 And th is  was a  f inanc ia l  const ruc t  tha t  Mr  S ingh 

had in t roduced.   And th is  was ac tua l l y  the  f i rs t  t ime tha t  I  

had seen about  inventory  days and you know the  ac t ing  o f .   

So I  le f t  i t  to  h is  exper t i se .    

ADV SELEKA SC:    H ’m.   Ja  and the  use o f  OCM and  
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po ten t ia l  buyer,  i t  i s  so  confus ing .   But  Cha i r,  I  want  to  

move on to  the  next  po in t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  you can do tha t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.   Ms Dan ie l s ,  le t  us  –  l i ke  the  

emai ls  we have seen in  regard  to  the  –  what  was tha t  –  the  

dra f t ing  o f . . .?   You say the  emai ls  you a re  ge t t ing  a  

dra f t ing  o f  the  submiss ions or  we saw the  emai ls  now 

regard ing  the  answers  to  Ms Mi r iam’s  quest ions,  Ms Mi r i am 

Cass im.  

 Now le t  us  look a t  what  happens in  regard  to  the  10 

under l in ing  agreement  wh ich  s ta r t s  on  page 724,  the  te rms 

o f  wh ich  s ta r t s  on  page 724,  Eskom Bund le  18 .  

MS DANIELS:    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]   

ADV SELEKA SC:    Because tha t  under l in ing  ag reement  

a lso  has an  evo lu t ion  s im i la r  to  what  we see the  pa t te rn  to  

be  in  regard  to  th is  t ransact ion .    

MS DANIELS:    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]   

ADV SELEKA SC:    A re  you there?  

MS DANIELS:    I  am get t ing  there .   There  is  a  lo t  o f  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   20 

CHAIRPERSON:    D id  you say 724? 

ADV SELEKA SC:    724 Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    There  are  two emai ls  there .   One f rom 

Matshe la ,  2010 and to  Ms Dan ie l s .   And anothe r  one f rom 

Bus inessman to  Matshe la ,  2010.  
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ADV SELEKA SC:    That  i s  cor rec t  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    So  we have looked a t  these emai ls  bu t  

jus t  in  o rde r  to  contex tua l i se  what  I  wou ld  l i ke  Ms Dan ie ls  

to  show the  Cha i rperson.   A re  you there  Ms Dan ie l s?  

MS DANIELS:    Yes,  I  am.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.   So tha t  i s  the  beg inn ing  o f  the 

guarantee te rms and the  under l in ing  agreement ,  u l t imate ly.   

So the  emai l  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MS DANIELS:    Yes.  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:    The emai l  comes fo r  Bus inessman 

a f te r  twe lve  m idn igh t  on  10  December  2015 to  Mr  Matshe la  

Koko,  2010.   I t  i s  a  two-pager.   He  fo rwards tha t  to  you a t  

07 :31 ,  10 December  2015 .    

 And on the  next  page,  he  wou ld  have used tha t  

two-pager  to  ins t ruc t  Mr  Mood ley  o f  CDH to  ass i s t  w i th  the  

dra f t ing  o f  the  under l in ing  agreement .   Do you see tha t?  

MS DANIELS:    Yes,  tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.   On page  7 . . .   Le t  me see.   Page  

743.  20 

MS DANIELS:    Yes?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    743,  i t  i s  a  repeat  o f  you r  emai l  to  

Mr  Mood ley  a t  the  bo t tom o f  the  page a t  08 :42 .  

MS DANIELS:    Yes,  I  am there .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.   So i t  i s  a  repeat  o f  your  emai l  
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wh ich  Mr  Mood ley  rece ives and he fo rwards i t  to  –  I  do  no t  

know whethe r  i t  is  m is te r  o r  m iss  -  Bad ia(?)  Maasdorp .  

MS DANIELS:    I t  i s  a  m is ter.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    A m is ter.   A lso  an  a t to rney a t  CDH.  

MS DANIELS:    Yes.   

ADV SELEKA SC:    Okay.   And tha t  i s  on  the  

10 t h  o f  December  2015 and he u l t imate ly  rep l ies  to  you on  

the  10 t h  o f  December  2015 a t  14 :24 .   You see tha t  emai l  a t  

the  top  o f  the  page?  

MS DANIELS:    Yes,  I  do .  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:    And the  a t tachment  i s ,  Le t te r  

Agreement .   I t  says :  

“Suzanne,  see a t tached the  mock-up vers ion .   

Shou ld  OCM not  a lso  be  a  par ty?”  

 He is  ask ing .    

“There  a re  ob l iga t ions on  them e .g .  i ssue the  

cred i t  no tes ,  e t  ce te ra  and they are  ac tua l l y  

the  supp l ie r. ”  

 Now who d id  you unders tand is  he  re fe r r ing  to  

there  as  OCM,  Tegeta  or  OCM under  G lencore?  20 

MS DANIELS:    OCM under  G lencore  in  the  process o f  

be ing  pu rchased by  Tegeta .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.   Wha t  he  is  ask ing  there  is  

because the  under l in ing  agreement  on ly  has Eskom and  

Tegeta  as  the  par t ies  to  the i r  agreement .   I s  tha t  r igh t?  
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MS DANIELS:    Yes.   A t  the  t ime,  yes ,  we changed the  

dra f t  o f  th is  conf ron ta t ion .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Wel l ,  then on page 744 you  sent  an  

emai l  o r  the  dra f ts  to  Mr  Ano j  S ingh and Mr  Matshe la  Koko 

a t  14 :47 ,  s t i l l  on  the  10 t h  o f  December  2015.   Le t te r  

Agreement  i s  the  a t tachment .   I t  says :  

“Ano j ,  Matshe la  herewi th  the  execu t ion  copy o f  

the  le t te r  agreement  in  respect  o f  the  above. ”  

 And you go on to  say:  

“Ano j ,  as  d i scussed,  we have not  inc luded the  10 

date  fo r  the  fu l f i lment  o f  CP ’s . ”  

 Were  the  CP’s  cond i t ion  precedence?  

MS DANIELS:    Cond i t ion  precedence,  yes .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

“The in te res t  payab le .   We w i l l  need to  

conf i rm. ”  

 Now page 749 Cha i rperson.   What  does Mr S ingh 

do w i th  what  you  have sent  to  h im?  So on page 7 . . .   Le t  

us  s ta r t  on  748.   I  beg your  pardon .  

MS DANIELS:    740?  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja ,  748.  

MS DANIELS:    Oh,  e igh t .    

ADV SELEKA SC:    There  is  your  emai l  aga in  to  

Mr  Ano j  S ingh and Mr  Koko to  the  bo t tom o f  the  page wh ich  

goes to  Mr  Ano j  S ingh.   What  happens a t  the  top  o f  the 
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page?  

 You sent  your  emai l  a t  02 :47  p .m.  bu t  a t  the  top  

o f  the  page is  an  emai l  f rom Mr  Ano j  S ingh ’s  PA.   Aga in ,  

Ms Phu le  Nezots iyana(?)  a t  15 :14  on  the 

10 t h  o f  December  2015.  

 I t  goes to  Mr  E r ic  Wood and the  a t tachment  

aga in  i s :  Le t te r  Agreement ,  Tegeta ,  Eskom,  Execut ion  

Copy,  wh ich  is  what  you sent  to  them.    

“Good day s i r,  p lease f ind  above a t tached.   

Warm regards. ”  10 

 D id  you know tha t  th is  had happened? 

MS DANIELS:    No,  I  d id  no t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    And the  a t tachment  fo l lows on the  next  

pages unt i l  page  751.   Then tu rn  to  page 752.   There  are  

two emai ls  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MS DANIELS:    I  am there .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    You are  there .   There  are  two emai ls  

there .   The bot tom one is  f rom Ano j  S ingh.  

MS DANIELS:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    The 10 t h  o f  December  2015.   I  th ink  i t  20 

is  the  same f rom h is  PA.   I t  says :  

“Good day s i r.   P lease f ind  the  above  

a t tached. ”  

 Now i t  i s  sent  t o  Er ic  Wood.   And what  does 

Mr  Er ic  Wood do w i th  i t?   Look a t  the  top  emai l .  
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MS DANIELS:    Mr  Er ic  Wood sent  –  he  sends i t  to  Sa l im 

Essa a t  Gmai l  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC:    Gmai l . com.   10  December  2015 a t  

15 :15 .   The a t tachment  i s  the  same:   Le t te r  Agreement ,  

Tegeta ,  Eskom,  Execut ion  Copy,  Pre-purchase o f  Coa l  f rom 

Opt imum Coa l  Mine (P ty)  L td .   D id  you know about  th is?  

MS DANIELS:    No,  I  d id  no t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Now we do not  see or  the  invest iga tors  

have not  been ab le  to  f ind  how the  agreement  comes back 

i f  a t  a l l  i t  came back to  Eskom but  the  las t  emai l  we have  10 

is  on  page 753 wh ich  i s  an  ema i l  f rom you to  Mr  Ano j  

S ingh,  aga in  a t tach ing  what  you are  say ing  is  the  

execut ion  copy.   Th is  i s  a t  16 :14 .    

 And you say:  

“H i ,  Ano j .   Herewi th  the  ag reement  as  

amended. ”  

 You see tha t?  

MS DANIELS:    Yes,  I  see tha t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Now the  amendments  are  no t  apparent  

f rom the  documents  bu t  who wou ld  have  made 20 

amendments?  

MS DANIELS:    The amendments  I  made here  was to  

. . . [ ind is t inc t ]  [b reak in  t ransmiss ion  –  speaker  unc lear ]   

ADV SELEKA SC:    D id  you . . . [ in tervenes]   

MS DANIELS:    Which  was the  31 s t  o f  March  2016.  



19 FEBRUARY 2021 – DAY 346 
 

Page 113 of 144 
 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Oh,  d id  you persona l l y  make th is  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

MS DANIELS:    On C lause 5 .1 .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  d id  you persona l l y  make  

amendments?  

MS DANIELS:    We –  there  were  s tu f f  tha t  was not  f i l l ed  in .   

I  mean. . .   Sor ry,  in fo rmat ion  tha t  was not  comple ted  and  

the  da te  was one o f  them.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

MS DANIELS:    So  I  t ime s tamped i t  where  you can see i t  10 

says 16 :00.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

MS DANIELS:    That  wou ld  have been the  one  tha t  I  

inse r ted  the  da tes .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    A re  you say ing  you inser ted  the  da te  

fo r  the  fu l f i lment  o f  the  suspens ive  cond i t ions?  

MS DANIELS:    Ja ,  as  d iscussed w i th  Mr  S ingh.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  tha t  was go ing  to  be  my next  

quest ion .   So where  d id  you get  the  da te  o f  31  March 2016  

f rom which  is  C lause 5 .1  o f  the  document?  20 

MS DANIELS:    Cor rec t .   I  go t  tha t  f rom Mr  S ingh.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    D id  you know tha t  on  the  same day,  

10  December  2015,  Tegeta /Oakbay was conc lud ing  an 

agreement  w i th  G lencore /OCH which  had exact ly  the  same 

exp i ry  da te ,  31  March 2016 fo r  the  suspens ive  cond i t ions  
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in  tha t  agreement?  

MS DANIELS:    No,  I  d id  no t  know tha t  a t  the  t ime.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    You d id  no t  know tha t  a t  the  t ime? 

MS DANIELS:    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]   

ADV SELEKA SC:    You say you d id  no t  know a t  the  t ime? 

MS DANIELS:    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]   

ADV SELEKA SC:    Can you hear  me? 

MS DANIELS:    I t  came to  l igh t  la te r  in  the Pub l ic  

Pro tec tor ’s  repor ts  and the  med ia .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Jus t  repeat  tha t  aga in .  10 

MS DANIELS:    I t  came to  l igh t  la te r  in  the Pub l ic  

Pro tec tor ’s  repor t ,  the  S ta te  Cap ture  Repor t  and  in  the  

med ia .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I  see .   So wha t  d id  –  I  mean i f  you look  

a t  th is ,  the  document  tha t  re la tes  to  an  under l in ing  pre-

purchase agreement  w i th  Tegeta .   Why d id  i t  have  to  be  

sent  to  Mr  Er ic  Wood and Mr  Sa l im  Essa?  

MS DANIELS:    Mr  Cha i rman,  I  cannot  answer  tha t .   You 

are  go ing  to  have  to  ask  Mr  S ingh.   I  do  no t  know.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Okay.   And we  see tha t  subsequent ly  –  20 

subsequent  to  th is  exchange. . .   Wel l ,  jus t  be fore  tha t .   D id  

you ask  h im why shou ld  th is  ag reement  be  sub jec ted  to  

suspens ive  cond i t ions  in  the  f i rs t  p lace?  Because the  

submiss ion  requ i red  the  board  to  u rgent ly  make a  dec i s ion  

in  o rder  to  aver t  a  r i sk  o f  coa l  supp ly.  
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MS DANIELS:    A t  the  t ime I  d id  no t  ask  h im Mr  Cha i rman 

because even w i th  the  acqu is i t ion  o f  Opt imum Mine,  there  

wou ld  be  suspens ive  cond i t ions  as  you wou ld  see here  

because the re  wou ld  be  approva ls  f rom the  regu la tory  

au thor i t ies  bu t  a t  the  t ime I  d id  no t  ask  h im why the  

urgency in  respec t  o f  the  f i rs t  dec is ion .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Wel l ,  you  know the  submiss ion  is  made 

to  the  board  on  the  bas is  o f  u rgency.   So the  quest ion  is  to  

what  ex ten t  th is  p re-purchase o f  coa l  agreement ,  i f  you  ask  

the  board  to  u rgent ly  make the  dec is ion .   That  i s  one.   10 

Number  two is ,  why suspend i t  fo r  th ree  months?  D id  you  

ask  tha t  o ther  one,  the  second quest ion?  

MS DANIELS:    No,  I  d id  no t .   I  th ink  you are  go ing  to  have 

to  ask  Mr  S ingh  as  they were  the  de legated o f f i c ia ls  to  

negot ia te  and conc lude th is  agreement .  

MR SELEKA SC :   D id  you f ind  ou t  f rom h im how he chose 

the  da te  o f  31  March 2016 and not  any o the r  da te?  

MS DANIELS:    No,  I  d id  no t .  

MR SELEKA SC :   D id  i t  no t  surpr ise  you as  one o f  the  

persons invo l ved  in  the  dra f t ing  o f  the  submiss ion  tha t  20 

requ i red  a  dec is ion  by  round rob in?  

MS DANIELS:    Not  on  the  –  i t  d id  no t  surpr ise  me because  

the  regu la tory  approva ls  usua l l y  took longer  so  31  March 

was a  conserva t ive  es t imate .  

MR SELEKA SC :   Bu t  they are  approva ls  in  respect  o f  
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what?  

MS DANIELS:    The MPRDA,  the  Sect ion  11  approva l ,  the 

t ransfer  o f  the  m in ing  r i gh t  and approva l  by  the  

Compet i t ion  au thor i t ies  bu t ,  as  we know now,  w i th  the  

benef i t  o f  h inds igh t ,  those two th ings came fa i r l y  qu i ck ly.  

MR SELEKA SC :   Ja ,  bu t  even a t  tha t  s tage tha t  wou ld  no t  

have been an i ssue because o f  the  way  the  agreement  was  

dra f ted .   The ag reement  spec i f i ca l l y  sa id ,  the  under l y ing  

agreement ,  tha t  Tegeta  was go ing  to  purchase coa l  f rom 

OCM and Tegeta  w i l l  then on se l l  to  Eskom.   So regu la tory  10 

issues d id  no t  s tand in  the  way o f  the  way in  wh ich  the  

agreement  was dra f ted .  

MS DANIELS:    No,  bu t  you asked me whethe r  I  was 

surpr i sed by  the  da te ,  so  f rom tha t  pe rspect ive  I  d id  no t  

ra ise  –  i t  was not  a  red  f lag  fo r  me .   

MR SELEKA SC :   Ja ,  bu t  i s  tha t  an  answer  i f  you  look a t  

the  te rms o f  the  agreement?   I t  says :  

“Eskom Hold ings  and Opt imum Coa l  conc luded a  

coa l  supp ly  agreement  in  te rms o f  wh ich  OCM 

supp l ies  and de l i vers  coa l  to  Eskom.   OCM has  20 

become the  sub jec t  o f  bus iness rescue  

proceed ings.   Eskom has obta ined a  mandate  f rom 

i t s  board  o f  d i rec to rs  to  enab le  Tegeta  to  p re-

purchase coa l  f rom OCM for  the  supp ly  and de l i very  

o f  coa l  in  accordance w i th  Eskom’s  approva ls  
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f ramework  on  substant ia l l y  the  te rms and cond i t ions  

se t  ou t  in  the  ex i s t ing  coa l  supp ly  agreement .   

Tegeta  i s  in  t he  process o f  acqu i r ing  a l l  sha res  on  

OCM.”  

Which  is  a  separa te  mat te r.   But  OCM i s  there ,  Tegeta  i s  

go ing  to  p re -purchase coa l  f rom OCM and supp ly  to  Eskom.  

Why suspend th i s  ag reement?   Do you have a  response to  

tha t?  

MS DANIELS:    I  am jus t  read ing  th is  aga in .   Okay.   

MR SELEKA SC :   A re  you look ing  fo r  the  ag reement?  10 

MS DANIELS:    No,  no ,  I  am jus t  read ing  the  agreement  

jus t  to  fami l ia r i se  myse l f ,  i t  has  been a  wh i le .   Okay.   I  s t i l l  

–  we l l ,  i t  does ment ion  the  purchase o f  OCM by Tegeta  so  I  

th ink  i t  was reasonab le  to  expect  tha t  in  there  and  i t  does 

say tha t  c lauses  –  tha t  the  c lauses tha t  you read wou ld  

become e f fec t i ve  immedia te ly  bu t  they are  s t i l l  sub jec to (?) .   

I t  was a  b i t  –  ja ,  i t  i s  confus ing .  

MR SELEKA SC :   I t  i s  confus ing ,  indeed.  

MS DANIELS:    Yes.   But  fo r  me the  da te  o f  31  March was 

reasonab le  in  te rms o f  the  regu la tory  approva ls .  20 

MR SELEKA SC :   Ja ,  bu t  tha t  be longed to  the  acqu is i t ion  

agreement ,  to  the  sa le  o f  sha res agreement ,  i t  d id  no t  

be long to  the  pre -purchase ag reement ,  i f  i t  was any 

re levant .  

MS DANIELS:    No,  I  agree w i th  you there  bu t  i t  is  in  here  
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now so  tha t  i s  how I  unders tood i t .  

MR SELEKA SC :   Then go to  page 773,  Eskom bund le  18 .  

MS DANIELS:    Yes,  I  am there .  

CHAIRPERSON :    D id  you 73,  Mr  Se leka?  

MR SELEKA SC :   773.  

CHAIRPERSON :    773?  

MR SELEKA SC :   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

MR SELEKA SC :   So  your  emai l  to  Mr  S ingh  o f  the 

amended agreement  i s  aga in  re f lec ted  there  on  the  bo t tom.   10 

Mr  Ano j  S ingh takes your  emai l  and fo rwards i t  to  Mr  Er i c  

Wood.   Do you see tha t  he  sent  tha t  …[ in tervenes]  

MS DANIELS:    I  see  tha t .  

MR SELEKA SC :   You see tha t?  

MS DANIELS:    Yes,  I  do .  

MR SELEKA SC :   A t  4 .26  p .m.   Mr  Er ic  Wood responds in  

the  ea r ly  even ing  o f  the  same date ,  10  December  2015 a t  

16 .42  and he is  ask ing :  

“Any luck  w i th  the  guarantee d ra f t?   Regards. ”  

In  response to  Mr  Ano j  S ingh.   What  d id  Mr  Er ic  Wood have  20 

to  do  w i th  the  guarantee?  

MS DANIELS:    Noth ing  f rom my perspect ive ,  I  on ly  learn t  

f rom Ms Mathepu ’s  ev idence before  the  Commiss ion  tha t  

he  had ac tua l l y  spoken to  ABSA about  the  te rms o f  tha t  – 

o f  the   guarantee .  
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MR SELEKA SC :   Yes.   Then tu rn  to  page 778.   778 is  an  

emai l  now f rom Mr  Koko ’s  PA.   I s  tha t  Mr  Koko ’s  PA?   

Execut ive  Ass is tan t  to  Mr  Matshe la  Koko,  ja .   The 

s ignature  there ,  end o f  the  emai l .  

MS DANIELS:    Yes.  

MR SELEKA SC :   Do you see tha t?  

MS DANIELS:    Yes,  tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

MR SELEKA SC :   So  th is  emai l  –  i t  i s  on  Thursday 10 

December  2015,  a t  16 .56 ,  i s  addressed to  Mr  Nath  o f  

Oakbay.   Nath@Oakbay.co .za ,  c . c .  Pau l i (? )  Nzot iana(?)  10 

08 .21 tha t  Mr  S ingh ’s  PA.   Yes,  tha t  i s  cor rec t .    

MS DANIELS:    Yes,  tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

MR SELEKA SC :   And the  le t te r,  agreement  i s  a t tached.  

“P lease f ind  a t tached le t te r  fo r  your  a t ten t ion ,  

shou ld  you requ i re  and fu r the r  c la r i t y  p lease fee l  

f ree  to  speak to  Matshe la . ”  

And tha t  ag reement  i s  in  the  next  four  pages,  i t  i s  s igned 

by  Mr  Nath .   You  were  no t  aware  o f  tha t  co r respondence,  

were  you?  

MS DANIELS:    Which ones,  be tween the  PAs?  20 

MR SELEKA SC :   Yes.  

MS DANIELS:    No,  I  was not  cop ied  on tha t  bu t  the  

agreement  was s igned and I  th ink  I  go t  a  copy back  s igned  

by  the  par t ies .  

MR SELEKA SC :   Jus t  in  conc lus ion  he re  on  th i s  po in t .   
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Page 784 there  is  a  le t te r  f rom Tegeta  10  December  2015.  

MS DANIELS:    Yes.  

MR SELEKA SC :   Addressed  to  Mr  Matshe la  Koko  

prov id ing  the  bank ing  deta i l s .   Do you see tha t?  

MS DANIELS:    Yes,  I  can see tha t .  

MR SELEKA SC :   Ja ,  name o f  account ,  Tegeta  Exp lora t ion ,  

the  bank is  S ta te  Bank o f  Ind ia  and the  account  i s  g iven.   

Now I  was surp r ised by  th is  because when I  read the  

under l y ing  agreement ,  I  saw a  c lause there  wh ich  says the  

prepayment  w i l l  be  made to  OCM.   Do you reca l l  tha t  10 

c lause?  

MS DANIELS:  The advance payment ,  yes .  

MR SELEKA SC :     Yes.   The agreement  exp ress ly  sa id 

tha t  p repayment  w i l l  be  made to  OCM.   I t  says  – ja ,  tha t  i s  

c lause 2 :  

“Eskom has obta ined a  mandate  f rom i t s  board  o f  

d i rec tors  to  enab le  Tegeta  to  p re-purchase coa l  

f rom OCM fo r  the  supp ly  and de l i very  o f  coa l  in  

acco rdance w i th  Eskom’s  approva ls  f ramework . ”  

Do you have any comment  there?  I  can a lso  …[ in tervenes]  20 

MS DANIELS:    No,  i t  says  what  i t  says .  

MR SELEKA SC :   Le t  me a lso  read  6 .1 .   C lause 6 .1  says:  

“Eskom wi l l  make an advance payment  to  OCM to  

pre -purchase fu tu re  coa l  supp ly  in  te rms o f  ex i s t ing  

coa l  supp ly  agreement . ”  
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And advance payment  to  OCM and  they seem to  have made 

a  d is t inc t ion  be tween OCM and Tegeta  in  the i r  cont rac t .  

MS DANIELS:   Tegeta  I  th ink  was purchas ing  OCM.  

MR SELEKA SC :     Yes.  

MS DANIELS:    Opt imum Coa l  Mine,  ja .  

MR SELEKA SC :   Yes.   And now the  money is  go ing  to  go  

S ta te  o f  Bank o f  Ind ia .  

MS DANIELS:   Wel l  there  is  a lso  one la te r  fo r  Baroda.  

MR SELEKA SC :     That  i s  on  page  786.  

MS DANIELS:    Oh,  okay.  10 

MR SELEKA SC :   Account  name Bank o f  Baroda.   But  now 

th is  one comes f rom Er ic  Wood and i t  i s  addressed to  Mr  

Ano j  S ingh and bank ing  deta i l s  a re  d i f fe ren t  f rom the  one  

g iven in  the  le t te r  addressed to  Mr  Koko.   So d id  Er ic  Wood  

have anyth ing  to  do  w i th  Tegeta ,  to  your  knowledge? 

MS DANIELS:   To my knowledge,  no ,  I  do  no t  know.   You  

wou ld  have to  ask  Mr  Koko and Mr  S ingh.  

MR SELEKA SC :     Okay.   I  th ink  tha t  conc ludes the  issue 

here .   Anyth ing  you want  to  say to  the  Cha i rperson before  I  

move on.   I  see  there  was an ema i l  f rom you on page 788  20 

about  the  cond i t ion  precedent .   One and th ree  were  s t i l l  

open.   That  means were  no t  fu l f i l l ed .  

MS DANIELS:    That  was subsequent .  

MR SELEKA SC :    Ja ,  tha t  i s  16  March 2016.  

MS DANIELS:   [ ind is t inc t ]  14 .47  yes.   The approva ls  had 
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no t  been obta ined to  t ransfer  the  m in ing  l i cence and the i r  

query  was whether  the  guarantee wou ld  be  ex tended but  i t  

lapsed on the  31  March.  

MR SELEKA SC :     Ms Dan ie l s ,  can we qu ick ly  dea l  w i th  

the  659 prepayment .   I  say  qu ick ly  because we have the 

fax ,  the  fax  tha t  i s  re la ted  by  Dr  Mthethwa before  the  

Cha i rperson.  

MS DANIELS:    That  i s  why I  am smi l ing  because  you say 

qu ick ly.  

MR SELEKA SC :   The submiss ion  was made or  was  dra f ted  10 

over  the  weekend .   You were  sent  a  copy o f  tha t  on  Sunday  

n igh t  on  the  10  Apr i l  2016.   We have grapp led  w i th  the  

answer  to  the  quest ion  why d id  tha t  meet ing  take  p lace o f  

the  BTC by te leconference,  take  p lace on the  11 t h ,  the 

n igh t  o f  the  11  Apr i l  2016 when there  was a  BTC meet ing  

schedu led  –  a  pr io r  schedu led  BTC meet ing  fo r  the  13  Apr i l  

2016?  Your  answer?   

MS DANIELS:   I  was ins t ruc ted  by  Mr  Khoza to  convene 

the  meet ing .   He was the  Cha i rperson o f  the  BTC a t  the 

t ime.  20 

MR SELEKA SC :     Ja and we have asked th i s  quest ion ,  

you wou ld  know tha t ,  tha t  the  dra f t  submiss ion  document  

a l ready had a  da te  o f  11  Apr i l  2016 when i t  came to you.   

How d id  tha t  happen?  

MS DANIELS:    I  am not  sure  I  unders tand,  Mr  Se leka,  i t  
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came wi th  the  da te .  

MR SELEKA SC :   Ja ,  the  d ra f t  submiss ion  –  we l l ,  then le t  

us  do  th i s  because I  have seen f rom a f f idav i t  you  say Mr  

Zethembe Khoza  ca l led  you on the  11 t h  when you were  

a l ready a t  home.  

MS DANIELS:   Yes.  

MR SELEKA SC :     Monday 11 Apr i l .   What  I  am ask ing  you 

is ,  the  dra f t  document  tha t  came to  you Sunday even ing  

tha t  was exchanged over  the  weekend on Sunday,  i t  

a l ready had a  da te  o f  11  Apr i l  2016 on i t  fo r  BTC meet ing .   10 

How d id  tha t  happen i f  Mr  Khoza on ly  go t  i t  on  Monday? 

MS DANIELS:    Wel l ,  a t  tha t  s tage we were  s t i l l  p repar ing  

i t  fo r  the  13 t h ,  I  d id  no t  –  I  d id  no t  have any expecta t ion  

tha t  there  w i l l  be  a  meet ing  on  the  11 t h .  

MR SELEKA SC :   Ja ,  bu t  i t  i s  no t  answer ing  the  quest ion ,  

how d id  the  da te  o f  11  Apr i l  2015  get  to  be  inser ted  on  a  

dra f t  document  tha t  was exchanged befo re  Mr  Khoza ca l led  

you,  accord ing  to  your  vers ion ,  and sa id  le t  us  have a  

meet ing  on  Monday the  11 t h?  

MS DANIELS:   I t  came f rom Mr  Mthethwa a l ready and a t  20 

tha t  s tage we were  ta lk ing  about  the  content .   I  ac tua l l y  d id  

no t  check the  da tes  bu t  the  assumpt ion  was tha t  th is  was 

go ing  to  the  13 t h ,  the  meet ing  o f  the  13 t h .  

MR SELEKA SC :     Who had made tha t  assumpt ion?  

MS DANIELS:    Wel l ,  I  d id  because she spoke to  me on the  
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–  I  th ink  i t  was la te  a f te rnoon o f  the  8  Apr i l  and asked me 

how cou ld  she get  someth ing  on  the  agenda and  I  sa id  

p lease prepare  the  submiss ion  and submi t  i t  as  qu ick l y  as  

poss ib le  because ,  you know,  we have a  meet ing  schedu led  

fo r  the  13 t h  and  Mr  Khoza wou ld  be  the  one tha t  wou ld  

have to  approve tha t  submiss ions.  

MR SELEKA SC :   Wel l ,  I  –  you see,  the  11 t h ,  s im i la r  to  the  

9  and the  10  December  2015 has deve lopments  tha t  a re  

tak ing  p lace para l le l  to  what  was happen ing  w i th in  Eskom 

and tha t  aga in  i s  the  acqu is i t ion  o f  OCH by Oakbay.   So 10 

accord ing  to  the  ev idence o f  Mr  Marsden,  on  the  11  Apr i l  

2016 he had been approached by  Mr  Howa and to ld  tha t  

Tegeta  has a  shor t fa l l  in  respect  o f  the  purchase pr ice  and 

tha t  shor t fa l l  was R600 mi l l ion  and he wanted some 

ass is tance,  e i the r  the  bank defer  the  payment  o r  to  g ive  

them a  br idg ing  loan.   The banks re fused.   By  15 .00 tha t  

day he  gets  a  message,  Mr  Howa,  f rom Mr  Marsden tha t  

the  banks dec l i ned the i r  request .   D id  you know tha t  

…[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    One second,  Mr  Se leka and Ms Dan ie l s?   20 

Okay,  p lease cont inue.  

MR SELEKA SC :    Thank you,  Cha i r.   So d id  you know tha t  

–  d id  you know those fac ts?  

MS DANIELS:    No,  Mr  Cha i rman,  I  d id  no t  know those  

fac ts  a t  the  t ime,  those came out  la te r  when Mr  Marsden  
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tes t i f ied  a t  the  pa r l iamentary  inqu i ry.  

MR SELEKA SC :   D id  you know tha t  Dr  Mthethwa had been  

approached by  Tegeta ,  Mr  [ ind is t inc t ]  20 .44 ,  f i rs t l y  w i th  a 

request  to  supp ly  coa l  wh ich  la te r  incorpora ted  a  

requ i rement  o r  request  fo r  a  p repayment .  

MS DANIELS:   That  i s  what  she spoke to  me about  over  

the  weekend  when  we were  pu t t ing  the  submiss ion  

together,  yes .  

MR SELEKA SC :     Did  you know tha t  –  p roceed?  

MS DANIELS:    I  do  no t  th ink  she spec i f i ca l l y  ment ioned 10 

Mr  Nath ’s  name but  she d id  men t ion  tha t  she had been 

approached by  Tegeta .  

MR SELEKA SC :   She says she –  I  mean,  in  the  emai l  we  

see exchanged w i th  you she exp l i c i t l y  says to  you tha t  she 

has no t  dea l t  w i th  the  issue o f  a  p repayment .  

MS DANIELS:   Ja,  what  tha t  ema i l  means is  tha t  she had 

not  dea l t  w i th  i t  in  the  submiss ion .  

MR SELEKA SC :     Yes in  the  submiss ion  bu t  i t  was on ly  in  

the  reso lu t ion .  

MS DANIELS:    Yes.    20 

MR SELEKA SC :    So her  ev idence is  tha t  she  had not  

dea l t  w i th  a  prepayment  request  be fore  and so  she  d id  no t  

know what  to  do  w i th  i t .  

MS DANIELS:   So tha t  i s  why she asked fo r  my ass is tance.  

MR SELEKA SC :     Oh,  so  you wou ld  have ass is ted  w i th  
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the  prepayment?  

MS DANIELS:    The dra f t ing ,  how you put  i t  in  the 

submiss ion ,  yes .  

MR SELEKA SC :   Yes.   You know tha t  she had not  been 

g iven an o f fe r  in  wr i t ing  a t  tha t  s tage over  the  weekend as  

you were  d ra f t ing  the  submiss ion?  

MS DANIELS:   No,  she d id  no t  have anyth ing  in  wr i t ing  as  

she tes t i f ied  bu t  she was ab le  to  speak to  me 

te lephon ica l l y  about  what  she had d iscussed w i th  the  

supp l ie r.  10 

MR SELEKA SC :     Yes.   Wel l ,  the  reason I  was  put t ing  

tha t  to  you is  because I  saw your  a f f idav i t  say ing  there  

shou ld  be  no con fus ion  about  the  prepayment  because the  

supp l ie r  had put  i t  in  wr i t ing  in  the  le t te r  da ted  8  Apr i l  

2016.  

MS DANIELS:    I  was respond ing  to  what  she had  put  in  

her  a f f idav i t ,  Mr  Cha i rman,  bu t  a t  the  t ime o f  d ra f t ing  she  

d id  no t  have anyth ing  in  wr i t ing .  

MR SELEKA SC :   And,  as  a  mat te r  o f  fac t ,  she does  say in  

her  a f f idav i t  tha t  tha t  le t te r  was rece ived on ly  on  the  12  20 

Apr i l  and i t  was backdated to  the  8  Apr i l .   You wou ld  have 

seen tha t  in  her  a f f idav i t .  

MS DANIELS:   Yes,  I  d id .  

MR SELEKA SC :     Who came up w i th  the  mot iva t ion  fo r  

the  prepayment ,  Ms Dan ie ls?  
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MS DANIELS:    I  do  no t  unders tand,  Mr  Se leka.  

MR SELEKA SC :   Who in  the  submiss ion  cra f ted  or  

d ra f ted ,  inser ted  the  mot iva t ion  fo r  the  prepayment?  

MS DANIELS:   I  ass is ted  Mr  Mthethwa in  d ra f t ing  the  

mot iva t ion  fo r  the  prepayment .  

MR SELEKA SC :    Ja,  we were  cons ider ing  tha t  mot iva t ion  

in  the  submiss ion  aga ins t  the  reason g iven by  the  supp l ie r  

in  the i r  o f fe r  le t te r.   The mot iva t ion  in  the  submiss ion  

suggests  the  reopen ing  o f  the  expor t  componen t  o f  the  

m ine.   Do you reca l l  tha t?  10 

MS DANIELS:    Yes,  I  saw tha t .  

MR SELEKA SC :   And the  o f fe r  f rom the  supp l ie r  seems to  

ta lk  about  increas ing  the  amoun t  o f  coa l  and us ing  the  

money fo r  the  purposes o f  benef ic ia t ion .   Do you reca l l  

tha t?  

MS DANIELS:   Yes,  I  do .  

MR SELEKA SC :     What  we wanted to  unders tand is  

whethe r  the  two reason ings,  a re  they the  same or  

d i f fe ren t?  

MS DANIELS:    I  am not  su re  because my fo rmula t ion  was 20 

based on my conversa t ion  w i th  Ms Mthethwa or  sor ry,  Dr  

Mthethwa,  Mr  Cha i rman.   So they shou ld  be  s im i la r  

because she was hav ing  the  conversa t ion  w i th  the  supp l ie r.  

MR SELEKA SC :   So  are  you suggest ing  tha t  she wou ld  

have g i ven the  reason ing  fo r  the  prepayment  to  the 
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supp l ie r?  

MS DANIELS:    Please repeat  tha t?  

MR SELEKA SC :   A re  you sugges t ing  tha t  she wou ld  have 

g iven to  the  supp l ie r  the  reason ing  fo r  the  mot iva t ion  so  

tha t  the  supp l ie r  cou ld  pu t  i t  in  the i r  o f fe r  le t te r  to  Eskom? 

MS DANIELS:    I  am not  sure  tha t  I  can say tha t  bu t  based 

on our  conversa t ion  tha t  i s  what  she gave  or  the  

in fo rmat ion  tha t  she gave me and i f  i t  made i t s  way in to  the  

le t te r  then she wou ld  have been the  condu i t  be tween the  

supp l ie r  and Eskom.  10 

MR SELEKA SC :   Ja .   D id  you say anyth ing  to  Mr  Khoza  

about  the  reques t  fo r  the  meet ing  –  the  request  made to  

you to  schedu le  a  meet ing  fo r  the  11  Apr i l  when there  was 

a  meet ing  coming  up on the  13  Apr i l  2016?  

MS DANIELS:   Yes,  I  d id ,  Mr  Cha i rman,  Mr  Khoza –  I  sa id  

to  h im we l l ,  we have a  meet ing  in  48  hours ,  I  mean – we l l ,  

i t  was less  than  48 hours  because i t  was la te  Monday 

even ing  and he  sa id  tha t  the  opera t ions team had 

approached h im and tha t  i s  was u rgent .  

MR SELEKA SC :    You wou ld  have  seen some o f  the  board  20 

members  who came here  and the  a f f idav i t  o f  Mr  Khoza 

say ing  they were  m is led  by  you and Dr  Mthethwa and you  

were  co l lud ing  w i th  Tegeta .   What  i s  your  comment  on  

tha t?  

MS DANIELS:    On the  co l lus ion  aspect  I  th ink  Mr  Khoza is  
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wrong,  we were  –  I  was ass is t ing  my co l leagues and I  know 

tha t  was –  i t  looks  prob lemat ic  bu t  tha t  i s  how we dea l t  

w i th  i t  because they were  under  p ressure  f rom Mr  Koko and 

I  am not  sure  about  Mr  Khoza but  I  know Mr  Koko.   In  

te rms o f  the  co l lus ion ,  my meet ings tha t  I  tes t i f ied  about  

w i th  Mr  Essa was  about  the  suspens ions and la te r  w i th  the  

Guptas  was about  Mr  Mole fe  suspens ion  mat te r  and had 

noth ing  to  do  w i th  coa l .   In  fac t  I  was not  aware  tha t  Dr  

Mthethwa had met  w i th  the  Gup tas  regard ing  the  coa l  

i ssues,  so  I  re jec t  h is  ve rs ion  tha t  we co l luded.   He was 10 

we l l  aware  o f  the  reason fo r  the  meet ing ,  he  was the  one 

who ca l led  the  meet ing ,  he  was the  Cha i rman o f  the  BTC,  i t  

was h is  p re rogat ive  to  have the  meet ing ,  no t  m ine.  

MR SELEKA SC :   Okay,  i f  the  –  we l l ,  the  assumpt ion  tha t  

the  da te  o f  the  11 t h  in  the  dra f t  submiss ion  over  the  

weekend cou ld  on ly  have come f rom you be a  fa i r  

assumpt ion  o r  un fa i r  to  you?  

MS DANIELS:   I  th ink  tha t  i s  un fa i r  to  me.   I  was not  the  

or ig ina tor  o f  the  document ,  I  had adv ised Dr  Mthethwa tha t  

the  meet ing  was go ing  to  take  p lace on the  13 t h ,  i t  was a  20 

schedu le  board  tender  commi t tee  meet ing ,  the  o f f i c ia ls  

wou ld  have been aware  o f  tha t .  

MR SELEKA SC :     Dr Mthethwa has sa id  tha t ,  in  her  

a f f idav i t ,  there  was no reason why the  BTC cou ld  no t  wa i t  

un t i l  the  13 t h  o f  Apr i l .   I  th ink  Mr  Koko says someth ing  to  
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tha t  e f fec t ,  wh ich  means tha t  there  was noth ing  so  urgent  

to  make the  BTC meet  on  the  11 t h  o f  Apr i l  2016.   What  i s  

your  comment  on  tha t?  

MS DANIELS:    These were  the  respons ib le  o f f i c ia ls  who 

wou ld  have mot iva ted  fo r  the  meet ing ,  Mr  Koko s igned o f f  

as  the  respons ib le  execut ive ,  he  bypassed h i s  own  

subord ina te ,  tha t  i s  Mr  Mboweni  and s igned o f f  on  these  

documents .   So he shou ld  have been aware  or  he  ought  to  

have been aware  tha t  the  meet ing  was go ing  to ,  you know,  

or  the  urgency.   10 

And i t  a lso  i s  cont rary  to  what  he  had sa id  i n  

Par l iament  abou t  unders tand ing  why the  meet ing  was  

urgent  fo r  the  11 t h .   He ta l ked about ,  he  once aga in  ta lked 

about  supp ly  i ssues,  and demand tha t  a re  no t  e tce tera .   So 

I  contes t ,  you know tha t  he  d id  no t  know tha t  tha t  the  

meet ing  -  wh i le  he  was the  one  who mot iva ted  fo r  the  

urgency.   I f  i t  was not  so  then he wou ld  have to  answer  fo r  

i t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I  see .   Now,  the  BTC d id  u l t imate ly  

have a  meet ing  on  the  11 t h  -  on  the  13 t h  o f  Apr i l  2016.   D id  20 

you a t tend the  BTC meet ing?  

MS DANIELS:    Yes,  I  d id .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    And we see f rom the  minutes  tha t  Mr  

S ingh tendered an apo logy to  the  BTC about  what  he  sa id  

were  issues he had not  d isc losed to  the  BTC regard ing  the  
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go ing  concern  o f  Tegeta ,  Tegeta ’s  go ing  concern  s ta tus?  

MS DANIELS:    Yes,  tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Can you te l l  the  Cha i rperson a  l i t t le  b i t  

about  what  those issues were?  

MS DANIELS:    Mr  S ingh po in ted  out  to  the  Board  

members ,  Mr  Cha i rman,  tha t  Tegeta  was hav ing  issues w i th  

the  banks.  He d id  no t  -  I  do  no t  reca l l  i f  he  spec i f i ca l l y  

ment ioned,  bu t  f rom what  was happen ing  a t  the  t ime,  they  

were  fac ing  the i r  bank accounts  be ing  c losed.   

I  th ink  he  a l so  worked out  tha t  the  sure t y  tha t  tha t  10 

he  had accepted was not  acceptab le  and tha t  i s  someth ing  

e lse  needed to  be  pu t  in  p lace ,  and then he a l so  d id  a  cash  

f low ana lys is  based on what  was a l ready cont rac ted  to  

Eskom by them.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    So  Tegeta ’s  bank accounts  had been  

c losed?  

MS DANIELS:    I  th ink  they were  in  the  process o f  be ing  

c losed Mr  Cha i rman I  am not  sure  tha t  they were  s t i l l  

ope ra t ing .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Wel l  i t  shows tha t  they were ,  the  20 

minutes  shows tha t  they were  c losed or  f rozen.  

MS DANIELS:    Oh,  f rozen so  they were  in  the  process o f  

be ing  c losed then .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Bu t  go  fu r ther  about  the  secur i t y  

because there  were  cer ta in  th ings you needed to  do  pr io r  
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to  the  pre-payment  be ing  made.   One o f  them was to  

cons ider  whethe r  th is  was a  feas ib le  t ransact ion  fo r  

Eskom.  

MS DANIELS:    Yes,  the  meet ing  o f  the  11 t h  had  asked,  

had tasked h im w i th  assess ing  whether  th is  was f inanc ia l l y  

v iab le  fo r  Eskom to  en ter  i n to  and what  he  then d id  was he 

looked a t  the i r  s ta tus  fo r  the  nex t  per iod ,  I  th ink  i t  was 

next  th ree  to  12  months ,  and he had put  in  p lace  a  sess ion  

o f  revenue.   

And he had come back and sa id  tha t  th is  was not  10 

v iab le  and tha t  a l te rna t ive  secur i t y  wou ld  have needed to  

be  found fo r  Tegeta  and th i s  i s  when the  i ssue o f  p ledge  

and secur i t y  in  the  fo rm o f  the  shares o f  Tege ta  was 

ra ised,  and he sa id  tha t  tha t  was more  acceptab le  to  

Eskom.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    When you do say tha t  in  your  a f f idav i t ,  

bu t  by  the  t ime  the  payment  was made,  what  was the  

pos i t ion  in  regard  to  those p ledges  and secur i t ies?  

MS DANIELS:    Those p ledges and secur i t ies  were  no t  in  

p lace  ye t  Mr  Cha i rman and I  had not  ye t  comple ted  the  20 

necessary  paperwork  fo r  tha t ,  when the  payment  was made  

i t  was ac tua l l y  made ear l ie r  in  the  day based on – and th is  

was based on the  ev idence o f  Mr  Sne l l  Naga,  be fore  the  

Commiss ion ,  and  l i s ten ing  to  tha t ,  and knowing tha t  a t  the 

t ime when tha t  payment  was made,  the  p ledge and  secur i t y  
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agreements  were  no t  ye t  in  p lace .   

They were  s igned towards the  end o f  the  day,  

because there  were  i ssues w i th  the  share  ce r t i f i ca tes  tha t  

were  presented to  us .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  so  you say in  your  a f f idav i t :  

“Mr  S ingh fu r the r  adv ised the  BTC tha t  Tegeta  had 

been engaged w i th  and the  secur i t y  now be ing  

o f fe red  bas ica l l y  const i tu ted  a  p ledge o f  a l l  Tegeta  

shares as  secur i t y  fo r  the  pre-payment .  E f fec t i ve ly,  

Eskom wou ld  ho ld  the  assets  o f  the  company and  10 

be the  owners  o f  the  coa l  m ine and a l l  i t s  

resources.   There  was no ment ion  o f  a  d iscount  a t  

th is  feedback,  ne i ther  the  economic  v iab i l i t y  o f  the  

t ransact ion . ”  

MS DANIELS:    That  i s ,  sor ry.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    P lease proceed.  

MS DANIELS:    That  i s  cor rec t  I  do  say tha t  in  my a f f idav i t  

a t  paragraph 83.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  you a l so  say a t  85 ,  the  p ledge  

and secur i t y  agreement  was not  ye t  in  p lace .  20 

MS DANIELS:    That  i s  co r rec t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    D id  you draw tha t  to  the  BTC’s  

a t ten t ion?  

MS DANIELS:    When the  payment  was made I  was not  

aware  tha t  i t  was made on the  day.   The  p ledge 
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agreements ,  I  was excused f rom the  BTC meet ing  o f  the 

13 t h  to  go  and dra f t  the  p ledge ag reements  and put  them in 

p lace .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    So  when d id  you become aware  tha t  

payment  was made?  

MS DANIELS:    Round –  w i th  t im ing  o f  the  payment  I  was,  I  

became aware  when Mr  Naga tes t i f ied  as  to  how tha t  

payment  was ac tua l l y  made,  and the  t ime a t  wh ich  i t  was 

made,  and tha t  made me rea l i se  tha t  a t  the  t ime tha t  i f  -  I  

th ink  i t  was 12 o 'c lock  o r,  you know i t  was ve ry  ear l y  in  the  10 

day,  i t  was not  p rac t ica l l y  poss ib le  tha t  i t  was made  

aga ins t  those p ledge  ag reements  because I  on l y  comple ted  

i t  in  la te  a f te rnoon.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Then le t  me jus t  qu ick l y  pa in t  the 

p ic tu re  fo r  you because th is  agreement  i s  conc luded or  the  

pre -purchase submiss ion ,  p re -payment  submiss ion  made in  

Apr i l  2016 leads to  the  conc lus ion  o f  an  ag reement ,  a  shor t  

te rm agreement  w i th  Tegeta .   But  th is  t ime Tegeta  had 

been in  shor t  te rm agreements  w i th  Eskom in  respect  o f  

our  A rnot  Power  S ta t ion  f rom January  2016.   20 

So they have a  shor t  te rm agreement  in  January  

2016 and anothe r  shor t  te rm agreement  in  February  2016,  

wh ich  was to  end in  Apr i l  2016.   Those ag reements  Dr  

Nte ta  has conf i rmed in  respect  o f  those agreements ,  tha t  

Tegeta  d id  no t  ask  fo r  a  p re-payment .   Were  you aware  o f  
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these fac ts?  

MS DANIELS:    Not  to  tha t  de ta i l  Mr  Cha i rman.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Okay,  were  you aware  tha t  Tegeta  was  

supp ly ing  Eskom wi th  coa l  a t  A rnot  Power  S ta t ion?  

MS DANIELS:    I  was not  aware  o f  the  spec i f i c  A rnot  

agreement  un t i l  the  submiss ion ,  I  was aware  tha t  they were  

supp ly ing  a t  B rak fon te in .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Wel l ,  then they were  supp ly ing  a t  A rnot  

and Dr  Nte ta  has  sa id  the  supp ly  p lan  o f  Apr i l  2016 cannot  

be  re l ied  upon as  a  reason fo r  u rgency fo r  th is  dec i s ion ,  10 

fo r  those two th ings,  and the re  was in  fac t  a lso  no  reason  

to  ask  fo r  a  pre -payment  fo r  the  ex tens ion  o f  the  

agreement  tha t  a t  the  t ime ex is ted .  

The on ly  mot iva t ion ,  and I  wou ld  l i ke  to  hear  your  

comment  on  th is  as  rece ived f rom the  ev idence was aga in  

Eskom tak ing  a  s tep  to  f inanc ia l l y  ass is t  Tegeta  in  pay ing  

what  on  tha t  day  o f  the  11 t h  was a  shor t fa l l  by  Tegeta  to  

pay o f f  the  purchase pr ice ,  in  respect  o f  OCH.   Your 

comment  on  tha t?  

MS DANIELS:    F i r s t l y,  I  was surpr i sed by  Dr  Nte ta ’s  20 

comments  a t  the  Commiss ion ,  as  she and Mr Maba lane  

f ie lded qu i te  a  lo t  o f  quest ions  on  the  11 t h  as  to  the 

urgency,  and as  to  the  pre-payment ,  and as  to  why i t  was 

requ i red ,  you w i l l  see  tha t  in  the  m inutes .   

Subsequent ly,  I  wou ld  ag ree w i th  you based on  
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what  we know now tha t  th is  t ransact ion  was more  to  ass is t  

Tegeta  in  acqu i r i ng  op t imum than  the ,  you know,  what  i s  

the  word ,  the  fac ts  pu t  be fore  the  BTC in  the  submiss ion ,  

tha t  th is  was an emergency.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Cha i r  we w i l l  show the  ev idence  in  due  

course  o f  tha t  money how i t  t rave l l ed  f rom Eskom to  Tegeta  

and the  Bank o f  Baroda u l t imate ly.   Ms Dan ie ls  we d id  

touch on the  pena l t ies  when you were  he re  las t  t ime,  d id  

we?  

MS DANIELS:    I  am not  sure  Mr  Se leka i t  has  been a  10 

wh i le .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja ,  bu t  anyway,  what  i s  in t r igu ing  

about  these pena l t ies  tha t  even  before  Eskom issued a  

le t te r  o f  demand  in  Ju ly  2015.   CDH the  a t to rneys fo r  

Eskom at  the  t ime,  say  tha t  they had adv i sed Eskom of  the  

cha l lenges in  regard  to  no t  on ly  the  ca lcu la t ion  o f  the  

pena l t ies  and the  methodo logy,  bu t  a lso  the  ev idence to  

p rove the  f igures  tha t  Eskom had ca lcu la ted  in  o rder  to  

a r r i ve  a t  tha t  R2.17b i l l i on .  

They ta lk  about  a  memo 11 –  a t  leas t  a t  the  very  20 

la tes t  in  March 2015 ra i s ing  these  concerns,  bu t  we know 

tha t  Mr  Koko and  Mr  Br ian  Mole fe  had sa id  tha t  –  and they 

do  in  the i r  a f f idav i t ,  tha t  Eskom was ent i t led  to  th is  

R2.17b i l l i on .   Were  you not  aware  o f  OCH’s  concerns in  

regard  to  th is  amount  be fore  the  le t te r  o f  demand? 
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MS DANIELS:    I  was not  invo l ved in  the  mat te r  tha t  t ime 

Mr  Cha i rman,  bu t  what  I  can te l l  you  f rom my own 

exper ience w i th  the  Opt imum cont rac t  i s  tha t  Eskom 

actua l l y  d id  no t  manage tha t  cont rac t  very  we l l  and so  the  

ca l cu la t ion  o f  pena l t ies  has a lways been an issue o f  

content ion  w i th  the  supp l ie r,  f rom the  BHP B i l l i t on  days.   I  

was in  Pr imary  Energy a t  the  t ime and I  d id  manage some 

arb i t ra t ion  issues  around i t  and we a lways had a  prob lem 

prov ing  the  pena l t ies .    I t  was no t  cons i s ten t ,  so  I  wou ld  

no t  be  surpr ised  tha t  there  was tha t  memo a t  tha t  ear l y  10 

s tage o f  the  game.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    So  when d id  you become invo lved w i th  

the  c la im fo r  pena l t ies?    

MS DANIELS:    I t  was la te  2016 when I  took over  f rom Mr  

Mayo S i lanco as  Act ing  Head o f  Lega l  and Compl iance.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    And you say i n  your  a f f idav i t  tha t  your  

observa t ion  was tha t  Mr  Koko had shown a  keen in te res t  in  

the  mat te r?  

MS DANIELS:    Yes he  d id ,  a t  tha t  s tage he had jus t  been 

appo in ted  Act ing  Group Ch ie f  Execut ive  and one  o f  the 20 

f i rs t  th ings tha t  he  sa id  to  me is  tha t  he  wou ld  be   happy to  

se t t le  a t  roundabout  R500mi l l ion  on  tha t  c la im,  and I  was 

surpr i sed,  I  hadn ’ t  had the  t ime ye t  to  s tudy  a l l  the  

documenta t ion ,  I  d id  caut ion  h im  tha t  we were  a l ready in  

a rb i t ra t ion  and you know how d id  we get  f rom R2.1b i l l i on  to  
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R500mi l l ion .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Was tha t  your  quest ion  to  h im?   

MS DANIELS:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Was tha t  your  quest ion  to  h im? 

MS DANIELS:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    And what  was the  response?  

MS DANIELS:    I  don ’ t  th ink  he  gave me a  proper  

response,  he  jus t  sa id  tha t  he  wou ld  be  happy to  se t t le  the 

mat te r,  he  wanted i t  o f f  h is  desk.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Bu t  the  mat te r  . . . [ in te rvenes]   10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Mr  Se leka we  might  have to  take  an  

ad journment  o r  some t ime,  what  is  your  assessment ,  I  

suspect  tha t  there  are  s t i l l  qu i te  some mat te rs  to  dea l  w i th .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I  have the  las t  mat te r  o f  McK insey  

Tr i l l i an .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I  cou ld  take  l ess  than 30 minu tes  w i th  

i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  the  pena l t ies  one aren ’ t  there  s t i l l  

qu i te  some issues,  the  op in ions f rom CDH and so  on?  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja ,  there  is  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    What  i s  your  assessment?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I f  she  doesn ’ t  –  bu t  the  t r i cky  par t  was  

–  i t  i s  no t  a  t r i cky  par t  bu t  the  d is t ingu ish ing  aspec ts  w i th  

Ms Dan ie l s  i s  tha t  i f  she  d id  no t  know about  these op in ions 
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g iven a l ready in  2015 and she comes la te r  once  can go 

in to  the  de ta i l s  o f  them wi th  he r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l  i t  may we l l  be  tha t  we mus t  e i ther  

make anothe r  t ime ava i lab le  fo r  us  to  cont inue w i th  tha t ,  

because wh i le  we  want  to  f ina l i se  the  ev idence o f  as  many  

w i tnesses as  poss ib le  w i th in  a  shor t  space o f  t ime we 

never the less  wan t  to  dea l  w i th  i ssues p roper l y  s t i l l .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    So  maybe we cou ld  f ind  t ime.   In  next  

week I  w i l l  be  hav ing  qu i te  a  few even ing  sess ions ,  maybe 10 

we cou ld  look a t  the  poss ib i l i t y  o f  an  even ing  sess ion  w i th  

her  dur ing  the  week a f te r  next .   Which  week are  you –  a re  

you here  du r ing  tha t  week?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    That  i s  the  one I  am in ,  the  f i rs t  week  

o f  March Cha i rpe rson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh is  tha t  the  f i rs t  week o f  March .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  I  cou ld  jus t  en l igh ten  the 

Cha i rperson . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   H ’m?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I  cou ld  in fo rm the  Cha i rpe rson in  20 

regard  to  recent  cor respondence  w i th  Mr  Ano j  S ingh ’s  

a t to rneys,  I  have seen co r respondence f rom them tha t  they 

wou ld  be  ava i lab le  e i ther  on  the  11 t h  o r  the  12 t h  o f  March.   

For  Eskom Cha i r  had g iven h im a  da te  o f  the  3 r d  o f  March,  

so  tha t  becomes an open s lo t ,  i f  the  Cha i r  accommodates  
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h im on the  11 t h  o r  the  12 t h .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l  i sn ’ t  the  11 t h  o r  12 t h  somebody 

e lse ’s  week,  Transnet ’s  week?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I  th ink  the  da te  o f  11 /12  was proposed  

th rough h im in  the  le t te r  f rom Transnet  work  s t ream.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  bu t  he  there fore  can ’ t  say  –  he  

can ’ t  p ropose to  take  Transnet ’s  s lo t  and g i ve  i t  to  you isn ’ t  

i t?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    [ laugh ing ]  

CHAIRPERSON:    From what  you are  say ing  i t  seems tha t  10 

he  was say ing  tha t  he  wou ld  be  ava i lab le  du r ing  the  

Transnet  week fo r  Eskom ev idence? 

ADV SELEKA SC:    I  th ink  he  was dea l ing  w i th  bo th  Eskom 

and Transnet  a t  the  same t ime Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  bu t  they are  separa te .  

ADV SELEKA SC:     They a re  separa te  i ssues.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  so  in  regard  to  your  week he hasn ’ t  

g iven anyth ing?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    No.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  we l l  –  bu t  he  has been to ld  tha t  we 20 

don ’ t  have t ime in  te rms o f  days so  has to  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC:    I  w i l l  engage fu r the r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    . . .make h imse l f  ava i lab le ,  so  bu t  dur ing  

the  week o f  the  f i rs t  o f  March ,  tha t  f i rs t  week o f  March you 

say you w i l l  be  do ing  Eskom ev idence.  
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ADV SELEKA SC:    Correc t  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON:    And d id  we f in ish  Ms K le in ’s  ev idence?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    We d id  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    We are  done w i th  her?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    We are  done w i th  her  ja ,  we f in ished 

by  v ideo l ink .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Why does i t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC:    Am I  no t  g iv ing  a  conv inc ing  answer?  

CHAIRPERSON:    I t  seems tha t  you are  no t  sure .   I  am 

t ry ing  to  look  a t  the  w i tnesses tha t  we haven ’ t  –  we s t i l l  10 

need to  do  under  Eskom othe r  than Mr  Koko,  Mr  Ano j  

S ingh,  Mr  Br ian  Mole fe  and Ms Lynn Brown.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  Mr  Zwane .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Mr  Zwane.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Mr  Romeo Khumalo .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Romeo Khumalo .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    And Mr  Tsots i  has tendered to  come 

back.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    To  dea l  w i th  a l l  the  a l legat ions coming  20 

out  here  aga ins t  h im.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  so  we  s t i l l  have qu i te  a  few 

wi tnesses on Eskom.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  th ink  le t  us  –  Ms Dan ie ls?  
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MS DANIELS:    Yes s i r?  

CHAIRPERSON:    How i s  our  s i tua t ion ,  to  what  ex ten t  

wou ld  you be ab le  to  be  ava i lab le  a t  sho r t  no t ice ,  when I  

say  shor t  no t ice  l i ke  two days no t ice ,  th ree  days  no t ice ,  

genera l l y  speak ing?  

MS DANIELS:    Genera l l y  speak ing  tha t  w i l l  be  f ine  Mr  

Cha i rman,  i t  i s  jus t  bear ing  in  m ind the  t ime d i f fe rence.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  no ,  no  sub jec t  to  you be ing  

accommodated on the  t ime,  two days,  th ree  days  no t ice  

m ight  we l l  work ,  be  f ine  fo r  you?  10 

MS DANIELS:    Yes,  tha t  w i l l  work .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t .    Okay I  th ink  le t  us  

ad journ  and we a re  go ing  to  t r y  and have Ms Dan ie l s  back 

to  f in ish  her  ev idence.     Your  es t imate  is  how much t ime 

do you need to  f in ish  a l l  he r  ev idence and hav ing  done  

jus t i ce  to  the  issues but  no t  too  much t ime.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes Cha i rperson i f  we go i n to  the 

de ta i l s  o f  the  op in ion  o f  the  CDH we cou ld  take  an hour  

w i th  Ms Dan ie l s ,  an  hour,  an  hour  th i r t y  m inutes ,  ja  tha t ’s  

my es t imat ion .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    That  i s  fo r  eve ry th ing?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    For  the  ba lance o f  what  i s  rema in ing .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  okay,  so  there  is  no t  a  lo t  tha t  i s  

le f t ,  I  jus t  assumed i t  was s t i l l  –  okay a l r igh t ,  no  we shou ld  

f ind  t ime.  
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ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay we w i l l  –  I  th ink  Ms Dan ie ls  we w i l l  

s top  here  fo r  today but  we w i l l  make ar rangements .   Mr  

Se leka th inks  tha t  more  or  less  an  hour,  anothe r  hour  o f  

your  ev idence might  be  enough to  comple te  your  ev idence,  

so  maybe i f  i t  takes longer  i t  m igh t  be  an  hour  and a  ha l f ,  

so  we w i l l  see  bu t  they w i l l  be  in  touch w i th  you to  see on 

what  day we cou ld  do  tha t .   

 I t  seems to  me –  oh  by  the  way  because o f  the  

d i f fe rence in  t ime we wou ldn ’ t  be  ab le  to  – I  wou ldn ’ t  be 10 

ab le  to  hear  your  ev idence in  the  morn ings be fo re  we s ta r t  

a t  ten ,  because you wou ld  be  fas t  as leep a t  the  t ime.  

MS DANIELS:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  okay we w i l l  make a  p lan  and then  

we w i l l  con t inue and then comple te  your  ev idence.  

MS DANIELS:    Thank you Mr  Cha i rman.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  thank you ve ry  much,  okay le t  us  

ad journ  then,  and  I  th ink  next  week I  th ink  I  am l i s ten ing ,  I  

w i l l  be  hear ing  ev idence re la t ing  to  PRASA,  I  am jus t  

say ing  th is  fo r  the  benef i t  o f  the  pub l i c  and the  med ia ,  bu t  20 

I  th ink  next  week i t  i s  PRASA re la ted  ev idence.    

 Okay,  we w i l l  ad jou rn  fo r  the  day,  thank you to  

everybody fo r  s i t t ing  un t i l  th is  t ime and work ing  un t i l  th is  

t ime.  

 We ad journ .  
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ADV SELEKA SC:    Thank you.  

REGISTRAR:    A l l  r i se .  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS TO 22 FEBRUARY 2021  


